/—\ AGENDA

MERID
W

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING

DIAN
T B H | PAY& E
v March 16,2020 7PM

B wn e

v

10.

11.
12.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

PUBLIC REMARKS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. February 24, 2020 Regular Meeting

COMMUNICATIONS - None
PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC), establish an approximately
268,263 square foot senior living community comprised of 230 units on an
undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 20-401-005, located at the

east end of Hannah Boulevard.

B. Special Use Permit #20021 (Andev Group, LLC), construct building greater
than 25,000 square feet in size on an undeveloped parcel identified as
Parcel Number 20-401-005, located at the east end of Hannah Boulevard.

C. Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho), rezone approximately 4.67 acres located at
5654 Okemos Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family-Low

Density).

D. Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission), rezone approximately 0.10 acre

located at 5937 Potter Street from C-1 (Commercial) to RN (Mixed

Residential).
UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None

OTHER BUSINESS
A. Form based code

REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. Township Board update.
PROJECT UPDATES

A. New Applications - None

B. Site Plans Received - None
C. Site Plans Approved - None
PUBLIC REMARKS

ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA page 2

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

March 16, 2020 7PM
TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
March 30,2020
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Special Use Permit #20031 (McCreary’s Healthy Homes), establish auto
detailing service at 1477 Haslett Road.

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC), establish an approximately
268,263 square foot senior living community comprised of 230 units on an
undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 20-401-005, located at the
east end of Hannah Boulevard.

B. Special Use Permit #20021 (Andev Group, LLC), construct building greater
than 25,000 square feet in size on an undeveloped parcel identified as
Parcel Number 20-401-005, located at the east end of Hannah Boulevard.

C. Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho), rezone approximately 4.67 acres located at
5654 Okemos Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family-Low
Density).

D. Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission), rezone approximately 0.10 acre
located at 5937 Potter Street from C-1 (Commercial) to RN (Mixed
Residential).

3. OTHER BUSINESS - None

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Principal Planner Peter Menser, 5151 Marsh Road,
Okemos, M1 48864 or 517.853.4576 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M148864 Township Hall

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. \—/ A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN DRAFT
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

February 24, 2020
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Trezise, Hendrickson, Lane, Shrewsbury, Clark, and
McConnell

ABSENT: Commissioners Cordill and Richards

STAFF: Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach and

Principal Planner Peter Menser
1. Call meeting to order
Chair Lane called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.
2. Public Remarks - None
3. Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Trezise moved to approve the amended agenda.
Seconded by Commissioner McConnell.
VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes
A. February 10, 2020 Regular Meeting

Commissioner Hendrickson requested amendments in the minutes to include the following items:

e Item 8B, 2020 Goals- Amend to read: Review the Sign Ordinance by the end of September, and
propose new changes by the end of the year.

e In the discussion of the Big Goals- Add: Creation of TIFs for both the Grand River Corridor and
the Haslett PICA areas

e Add: Amend the Planning Commission/Township Board review process so that a proposal
being presented to the Board for the first time does not undergo changes after the Planning
Commission has voted on it and/or allow for an expedited process if a matter gets referred back
to the Planning Commission so that it only takes one meeting for the Planning Commission to
review and approve/deny the amended proposals.

e Add: Improve the information flow among the various boards and commissions and the
Planning Commission, specifically on projects of great interest.

Commissioner Hendrickson moved to approve the amended minutes.
Seconded by Commissioner Trezise.

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

5. Communications - None



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
February 24, 2020

Page 2
6. Public Hearings - None
7. Unfinished Business
A. Special Use Permit #19141 (The Cured Leaf TC, Inc.), establish commercial medical

marihuana provisioning center at 3520 Okemos Road.

Principal Planner Menser noted the applicant has submitted responses to the special use permit
criteria and they are available in the meeting packet for review.

Motion by Commissioner Premoe to recommend approval of Special Use Permit #19141.
Supported by Commissioner Hendrickson.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioner Premoe, Hendrickson, McConnell, Clark, Shrewsbury, Trezise, and Chair Lane.
NAYS: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

B. Special Use Permit #19131 (The W. Investment Holdings), establish commercial medical

marihuana provisioning center at 1614 Grand River Avenue.

Principal Planner Menser commented there would be different conditions for this request
compared to the previous special use permit discussed because new construction is proposed.

Motion by Commissioner Trezise to recommend approval with the 17 conditions stated in the
resolution for Special Use Permit #1131.
Supported by Commissioner Premoe.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioner Trezise, Premoe, Hendrickson, Shrewsbury, Clark, McConnell, and Chair Lane.
NAYS: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

C. Zoning Amendment #20020 (Township Board), amend Section 86-376 of the Code of
Ordinances to allow a mix of single family and multiple family dwelling units in the RD, RC,
and RCC (Multiple Family) zoning districts.

Principal Planner Menser noted a map showing the location of multiple family zoning districts
(noted in red) in the Township was included in the meeting packet per the request of the Planning
Commission at the February 10, 2020 meeting. He also noted that changes to the text of the draft
ordinance included swapping out the term “living unit” for “dwelling unit” where applicable.

Motion by Commissioner McConnell to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Zoning
Amendment #20020 in accordance with the revised draft ordinance language dated

February 11, 2020.

Supported by Commissioner Trezise.

Commissioner Hendrickson stated he would be voting in opposition to the proposed zoning change
because of the concerns he expressed at the February 10, 2020 public hearing.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
February 24, 2020
Page 3

ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioner McConnell, Trezise, Premoe, Shrewsbury, Clark, and Chair Lane.
NAYS: Commissioner Hendrickson

MOTION CARRIED: 6-1

8. Other Business
A. 2020 Planning Commission goals

Principal Planner Menser summarized the four goals discussed by the Planning Commission at the
February 10, 2020 regular meeting and noted they were listed in the meeting packet.

Commissioner Hendrickson asked to amend the language of the fourth goal to reflect the date
change from June 30t to September 30th as previously discussed for the amended minutes.

Motion by Commissioner Hendrickson to adopt the amended 2020 Planning Commission goals.
Supported by Commissioner Trezise.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioner Hendrickson, Trezise, Premoe, McConnell, Clark, Shrewsbury, and Chair Lane.
NAYS: None

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0

B. Form Based Code meeting

Principal Planner Menser thanked Chair Lane, Vice Chair Hendrickson, and Commissioner
McConnell for attending the Township Board Meeting on February 18, 2020. Chair Lane and Vice
Chair Hendrickson presented an overview to the Board of what the Planning Commission has been
working on relating to the Form Based Code initiative. A link to the video of the presentation was
included in the meeting packet as well as a copy of the memo from Principal Planner Menser to the
Township Board.

Planning Commission Discussion:

e The Board may be more supportive of the Form Based Code after having time to review the
ordinance draft details.

o Follow up with another presentation to the Board after submitting the written draft to discuss
questions they may have.

o The Board expressed interest in prescribing the uses and having final approval of projects.

e The purpose of the ordinance change could help streamline the process for applicants and
create a unique look and feel of the area.

e Suggestion to hold a work session before the next Planning Commission meeting to continue
working on the ordinance.

Chair Lane asked Principal Planner Menser to schedule a work session before the next Planning
Commission meeting on March 16, 2020 starting at 6:00 p.m.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
February 24, 2020
Page 4
9. Reports and Announcements

A. Township Board updates.

Principal Planner Menser provided a summary of the February 18, 2020 Township Board meeting
and provided a preview of what is on the agenda for the March 3, 2020 Township Board meeting.

Commissioner Premoe provided an update from attending the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
meeting on February 20, 2020.

10. Project Updates

A. New Applications
1. Special Use Permit #20031 (McCreary’s Healthy Homes), establish auto detailing
service at 1477 Haslett Road.
B. Site Plans Received - None
C. Site Plans Approved
1. Site Plan Review #20-16-05 (GBC Design, Inc.), revisions to existing drive-through

lane for Chick-fil-A restaurant at 2075 Grand River Avenue.
11. Public Remarks - None
12. Adjournment
Commissioner Premoe moved to adjourn the meeting.
Supported by Commissioner Shrewsbury.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

Chair Lane adjourned the regular meeting at 7:47 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,
Debbie Budzynski, Recording Secretary



To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner

Date: March 12,2020

Re: Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC), establish an approximately

267,543 square foot senior living community comprised of 230 units on
10.73 acres of a 58 acre undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel 1.D. #20-401-
005 located at the east end of Hannah Boulevard.

Andev Group, LLC has requested a special use permit to construct a 230 unit senior living
community at the east end of Hannah Boulevard. The project site is 10.73 acres of a larger 58 acre
unaddressed parcel identified by Parcel I.D. #20-401-005. The applicant is proposing to extend
Hannah Boulevard further east and construct a cul-de-sac to serve the development. The property
is zoned RAA (Single Family, Low Density), which allows senior living communities by special use
permit. In addition to the special use permit for the senior living development, a special use
permit is required to construct a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in gross floor
area (SUP #20021). The special use permits are being processed concurrently.

A total of 230 units are proposed in the 267,543 square foot building, which is comprised of a mix
of assisted living, memory care, and independent living units, each located in a separate wing. A
720 square foot garage building is also proposed on the property. The applicant is proposing to
construct the development in two phases, with the first phase consisting of the assisted living and
memory care units and the second consisting of the independent living units. The following table
provides information on the number each unit type in the building.

e Memory | Assisted | Independent | Total # of
Building Size | ¢, o Living Living Units
Phase 1 111,105 sq. ft. | 42 units 67 units 0 units 109
Phase 2 156,438 sq. ft. 0 units 0 units 121 units 121

The building varies in height by wing, with the independent living wing at four stories tall, the
assisted living wing at three stories tall, and the memory care wing at two stories tall. At its tallest
point, the building is approximately 52 feet in height.

To facilitate the proposed development, and others like it, in 2019 the Township Board initiated a
zoning amendment (ZA #19040) to allow Senior Living Communities to locate in residential
zoning districts subject to approval of a special use permit. The amendment was approved for
final adoption by the Board at its meeting on May 21, 2019. It added Senior Living Communities
under the Institutions for Human Care category in Section 86-654(c) of the Code of Ordinances,
which permitted those types of development by special use permit as a nonresidential use in
residential zoning districts.



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 2

The adopted ordinance defines a Senior Living Community as: “a facility comprised of a building or
group of buildings providing a continuity of residential occupancy and health care for elderly
persons. This type of facility includes dwelling units for independent living, assisted living, and
memory care or other licensed professional care for residents; it may include ancillary facilities for
the further service or care of the residents. The facility is restricted to persons 55 years of age or
older or married couples or domestic partners where either spouse or partner is 55 years of age or
older.”

The ordinance allows the age restricted (persons 55 years of age or older) independent living units
only in conjunction with the provision of licensed professional care units for residents, such as
assisted living or memory care. A maximum 2:1 ratio of independent living units to required
licensed professional care units is proposed. With 121 independent living units and 109 memory
care/assisted living units proposed the project meets the established 2:1 maximum ratio.

LOCATION MAP
g I S - [:
>0 s
B "7§ﬁ,: '
—a—
RiV er o fOO r‘Rwer/
L T River o, aeet™
Terrace er. < i
L -
T . | “Lodges —
_ |L.The MAC _|. of 5
) | Suburban ::%’
| ‘ ’ Ice | [ =} =
Hannah BIVd— o =
"g" S Marriéttl/
| Resid'e:;icellnn il (
= |Hannah
S| Lofts
r‘%/ﬁ
'Offices ArrowheadRq
=] —a
'«
=
N — =
=
&)
- =l

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 3

Master Plan

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the R2-
Residential 0.5 - 3.5 dwelling units per acre category.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

~

Dawn Ave_

il
AT,

Hannah Blvd————

. \
v
=]
S
@ -
= ;
% 2
(0 T

1

4[|,—TA I'T0 wj:zﬁj

B Busi /Technology

Commercial

Institutional

MR-Residential 5.0-14.0 du/a
[0 Parks

PUD

R2-Residential 0.5-3.5 du/a

R3-Residential 1.25-3.5du/a

Tt T

=L

[1]

T 71 T JELE T T
I 0
R i e

Zoning

The subject site is zoned RAA (Single Family-Low Density). The applicant is proposing to divide
the current 58 acre parcel into three different parcels, the middle of which is proposed for
development at this time. 10 acres is the minimum lot area requirement for a senior living
community development. The minimum lot width requirement is 100 feet. Upon division the
project site has 10.73 acres of lot area and over 300 feet of frontage on the to-be-extended Hannah

Boulevard.

—— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 4

ZONING MAP

Dawr]l_.‘]\ve‘_

s

C-2 RP s

| PO* =
— Hannah Blvd =

Z g \\ RAA

= [=%

& e

2 C2* 2

g = <

ES

'<: /’——Qu

Physical Features

The site is currently undeveloped. The topography of the site, with corresponding elevations, is
depicted on the property survey provided by the applicant. The applicant has also provided a
natural features study prepared by Marx Wetlands LLC describing the vegetation on the site and
an inventory of significant trees.

Floodplain
Portions of the property are located in both the floodway and 100 year floodplain. The proposed

development project is located outside of the floodplain. The applicant’s site plan shows the
location and elevations of the floodplain on the property.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 5
FLOODPLAIN MAP
\//,,, 2 | ¢
"%,////’,{III;-..,,’ - e
NG 1 ity
R e

Hannah B

M_OLIDjoSsH

T

\L

s [
BT
1] Floodway 6- =

) 1 [ | Floodway fringe

Wetlands

The applicant submitted a wetland delineation report prepared by Marx Wetlands LLC for the
northern two-thirds of the 58 acre parcel in 2018, which are the limits of the developable portion of
the property. The report has been verified by the Township’s wetland consultant. There are a total
of eight wetlands distributed over the property, identified as A through H on the site plan and map
below. Meridian Township regulates wetlands 0.25 acre or greater in size, or those contiguous to or
within 500 feet of a regulated inland lake, stream, river, or pond. For wetlands equal to or greater
than two acres in area the Township requires a 40 foot setback from the delineated wetland
boundary. For wetlands equal to or greater than 0.25 acre, but less than two acres in size, a 20 foot
setback is required from the delineated boundary.

Six of the eight wetlands on the site are regulated by the Township and the Department of
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE). The applicant is proposing to fill Wetland F, which
at 0.04 acre in size is not regulated. A permit is not required to fill Wetland F as it is not regulated
by the State or Township due to it being under 0.25 acre in size. The following table shows the size,
regulatory status, and required setback, if any, of each wetland on the property.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 6
Delineated Size | Regulatory Authority Required Setback
Wetland A Off-site Township and State 40 feet
Wetland B 2.21 acres Township and State 40 feet
Wetland C 5+ acres Township and State 40 feet
Wetland D 0.21 acre Township and State 20 feet
Wetland E 0.30 acre Township and State 20 feet
Wetland F 0.04 acre Not regulated No setback required
Wetland G 5+ acres Township and State 40 feet
Wetland H 0.38 acre Township and State 20 feet
WETLAND MAP
'q>j ~ A \!
E ”””] Wetlands |_
g [m]
Ripe
e Wetland B
Wetland H Wetland_'E=
|—
WEtlandA / 6 :5 '
_ —£
—W—H*aﬂa Blvd— Wetland F| =M é
[=)
g Wetland G‘D }\D <
§/—E' dePk Wetland D
—
Wetland C whead Rq
[ g%\
—_— —.N "
—3__ 1
I— )
—= [
N :,5__
| — a T

*Wetlands depicted by staff, see attached delineation report for details.
Greenspace Plan
The Township Greenspace Plan shows a Priority Conservation Corridor (PCC) south of the area of the
property proposed for development and a Fragile Link to the east of the project area. A PCC is a

network of ecologically significant open spaces and a Fragile Link is an area where a PCC is
exceptionally narrow or fragmented.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 7
GREENSPACE MAP
) e » o Tl T H
- E AL JoNN
s v AR o b " i~
% 4 2 sl
Q .....
Rj, A e
Il'er ‘Ter Lt e . ..'r
Z,
m %2
| S %
[ = °
ST
Hannah Blvd———— “é—
-g. T e
%- : . . . o (
s 7
N L
_f— 7
T
,, I2)
Fas IA -
N L :: . :‘(\; —~== Off Road Pathway :Z:’:_:
Q‘ . Qo{? [~ 7] Fragile Links -SI
L ‘7}? [/ A priority CorridorJ
e, » (T T

Streets and Traffic

The site fronts on what is proposed to be an extension of Hannah Boulevard, which is designated
as a Local Street on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. Neither
the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) nor the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) has recent traffic count information for Hannah Boulevard. The applicant is proposing to
construct a five foot wide sidewalk along the east side of the extended road, which will connect it
with the other developments in the immediate area.

The applicant has submitted a trip generation letter prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates,
Inc. providing information on the number of vehicle trips expected to be generated by the
proposed development. The letter uses the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip
Generation Manual (10th edition) to identify expected traffic generation for the proposed land use.
Land Use Code 255 (Continuing Care Community) was used to represent the proposed development.

\/ A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 8

A traffic impact study is required for new special uses which would generate over 100 directional
trips during morning and afternoon peak hours of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day. An
average day is the average 24-hour total of all vehicle trips counted to and from a study site from
Monday through Friday. A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could
generate between 50 and 99 directional trips during morning and afternoon peak hours of traffic.
Based on the projected traffic volumes neither a traffic assessment nor traffic impact study is
required.

Parking

The ordinance uses the following formula for determining required parking for a senior living
community: One space for each dwelling unit of independent living + one space for every four
units of licensed professional care + one space for each employee working on the largest shift.

With 121 independent living units + 109 assisted living/memory care units (109/4 =27.25 or 28
spaces) + 40 employees at the largest shift a total of 189 parking spaces are required for the
project. 227 parking spaces are proposed by the applicant.

Public Utilities

Municipal water and sanitary sewer are available to extend to serve the subject site. The location
and capacity of utilities will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the special use permit
is approved.

Staff Analysis

The applicant is requesting a special use permit to construct a 230 unit senior living community in
one 267,543 square foot building. The nine general special use permit criteria listed in Section 86-
126 of the zoning ordinance and specific standards for senior living communities found in Section
86-654(f)(5) should be used for consideration of the request. The Planning Commission has the
authority to approve the SUP for the senior living community, however the SUP for construction of
a building greater than 25,000 square feet in size will go on to the Township Board for a final
decision.

The following table provides a summary of the project’s consistency with the ordinance standards
for a senior living community development.

Density. The ordinance allows up to 25 dwelling units per acre (du/a). With 230 units on 10.73
acres the proposed density of the projectis 21.4 du/a.

Maximum independent living unit to licensed professional care unit ratio. A maximum 2:1 ratio of
independent living units to required licensed professional care units is proposed. With 121
independent living units and 109 memory care/assisted living units proposed the project meets
the established 2:1 maximum ratio.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 9

Accessory Uses. The ordinance allows a senior living community to have accessory uses such as
places of worship, indoor and outdoor recreation, retail and banking facilities, dining facilities,
beauty salons, gift shops, security facilities, medical offices, and pharmacies, provided that the
accessory use is ancillary to the primary use of the property as a senior living community and not
advertised for public use. A letter from the applicant indicates such uses as a dining facility, salon,
medical clinic, and chapel, among others, are planned for the building.

Setbacks adjacent to residential property line. Buildings 35 feet or less in height can be no closer
than 50 feet to a residential property line. When buildings taller than 35 feet are proposed, this
setback is increased 1.5 feet for each foot the building exceeds 35 feet in height. At its tallest point
the proposed building is 52 feet 4 inches tall, which requires a 76 foot setback from the north, east,
and southern property lines, all of which have been met and exceeded.

Building height: The applicant is proposing a three-story building that is 39 feet, 2 inches in height
measured at the midpoint of the peak and eaves. Building elevations are provided in the MUPUD
application materials, which indicate the building complies with the maximum height limitation of 45
feet.

Other ordinance requirements related specifically to the senior living community ordinance are
summarized in the table below.

Criteria Requirement Proposed
Minimum lot area 10 acres 10.73 acres
Minimum lot width 100 feet 300+ feet
Maximum building coverage | 35% 19%
Front yard setback 25 feet ~90 feet at closest point
Maximum building height 60 feet 52 feet 4 inches at tallest point

The following is a review of additional considerations for the project.

Emergency access road. The submitted site plan depicts a 20 foot wide emergency access road
from the north side of the cul-de-sac and out to the parking lot of the Lodges of East Lansing
Development. The Fire Code requires that anytime there are 30 or more dwelling units on a road
with one access then a second means of access is required. The width and composition of the
emergency access road is subject to approval by the Fire Department. Prior to issuing a building
permit for the project the applicant must provide an executed access agreement with the adjacent
property owner.

Phasing. The project is proposed to be developed in two phases. Phase 1 of the project is the
memory care/assisted living portion of the building and Phase 2 is the independent living portion
of the building. Phase 1 will also include the extension of Hannah Boulevard and the emergency
access road. Special use permit approval grants the applicant 24 months to commence the project.
All construction on the project has to be completed within 36 months, unless specifically approved
as a phased development. Site Plan Review provides 24 months for approval of a building permit.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #20011 (Andev Group, LLC)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 10

For phased developments the first building permit has to be approved within 24 months and all
subsequent building permits have to be issued within 5 years of the date of Site Plan Review
approval.

If the special use permit for the senior living community is approved by the Planning Commission, and
the special use permit for the building size is approved by the Township Board, the applicant will be
required to submit for Site Plan Review before work on the project can begin. Site Plan Review is a
detailed staff-level analysis of the project which includes reviews of storm water, utilities,
landscaping, grading, and other issues to ensure compliance with all applicable ordinances as well as
confirmation of approvals from local agencies such as the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office
and Road Department.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.
A resolution will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Special use permit application and attachments received by the Township on February 11,
2020.

2. Letter from Michael Samuels dated February 28, 2020.

3. Site plans prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated March 25, 2019 and received by the Township on March
3,2020.

4. Building elevations and floor plans prepared by Ganther Construction Architecture, Inc. dated
February 11, 2020 and received by the Township on March 3, 2020.

5. Conceptual landscape plan prepared by Teska Associates dated February 28, 2020 and received
by the Township on March 3, 2020.

6. Trip generation analysis prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. dated February 3,

2020.

Natural Features Study prepared by Marx Wetlands LLC dated January 25, 2016.

Wetland delineation report prepared by Marx Wetlands LLC dated August 28, 2018.

9. Wetland verification prepared by FTCH dated December 10, 2018.

®© N

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2020\SUP 20011 (Andev_senior living comm.)\SUP
20011.pcl.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M| 48864
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal
application.

Part |

A Applicant __ ANDEV Group, LLC
Address of Applicant _ 680 N. Lake Shore Dr., Unit 1103, Chicago, IL 60611
Telephone - Work _847-525-6681 Home Fax :mail anbarholdings@
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant Option Other)  gmail.com
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.) Con rchaser

See attached page from title commitment.
B. Site address / location / parcel number __"Hannah Farms" Parcel #33-02-02-20-401-005
Legal description (please attach if necessary) _See Attached.
Current zoning RAA
Use for which permit is requested / project name __ Development of a Senior Living Community / TBD
Corresponding ordinance number 2019-09 * Non Residential use in Res. District
Building over 25,000 S.F.

C. Developer (if different than applicant) _Same as above.
Address
Telephone — Work Home Fax
D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:

Name  Ganther Construction|Architecture
Address 4825 County Road A, Oshkosh, WI 54901

Telephone — Work _920-426-4774 Home Fax _ 920-426-4788
E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross _10.7  Net
F. Explain the project and development phases: Project consists of an interconnected series of 2 story memory care, 3 story
assisted living and 4 story independent senior residences. The project may be
G. Total number of: phased to build the 2&3 story sections first and add the 4 story section later.

Existing: structures 0 bedrooms_0  offices 0  parking spaces_ 0 carports 0 garages_0
Proposed: structures__1* bedrooms_262 offices 8  parking spaces 227 carports 0 garages_ 1
*may be constructed in two phases
H. Square footage: existing buildings_ 0 proposed buildings_ 267,543
Usable Floor area:  existing buildings__ 0 proposed buildings_ 267,543

If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift
and hours of operation: See the attached schedule.

J. Existing Recreation: Type __None. Private property, no tresspassing. Acreage 0
Proposed Recreation: Type _ Landscaped grounds, walkways and patios Acreage 5.6
Existing Open Space: Type __Undeveloped land. Acreage _ 10.7
Proposed Open Space: Type _ Fully landscaped and maintained. Acreage _ 5.6

Page 1


mdsam
Typewritten Text
ANDEV Group, LLC

mdsam
Typewritten Text
680 N. Lake Shore Dr., Unit 1103, Chicago, IL 60611

mdsam
Typewritten Text
847-525-6681

mdsam
Typewritten Text
anbarholdings@
gmail.com

mdsam
Oval

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Ganther Construction|Architecture

mdsam
Typewritten Text
4825 County Road A, Oshkosh, WI 54901

mdsam
Typewritten Text
920-426-4774

mdsam
Typewritten Text
920-426-4788

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Same as above.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
1*

mdsam
Typewritten Text
*may be constructed in two phases

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
262

mdsam
Typewritten Text
8

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
227

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
RAA

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
1

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
267,543

mdsam
Typewritten Text
267,543

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Contract Purchaser

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
10.7

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
None. Private property, no tresspassing.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
0

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Landscaped grounds, walkways and patios

mdsam
Typewritten Text
5.6

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Undeveloped land.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
10.7

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Fully landscaped and maintained.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
5.6

mdsam
Typewritten Text
"Hannah Farms" Parcel #33-02-02-20-401-005

mdsam
Typewritten Text
See Attached.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Development of a Senior Living Community / TBD

mdsam
Typewritten Text
2019-09

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
See attached page from title commitment.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Project consists of an interconnected series of 2 story memory care, 3 story 
assisted living and 4 story independent senior residences. The project may be phased to build the 2&3 story sections first and add the 4 story section later.

mdsam
Typewritten Text
See the attached schedule.

kkalmbach
Typewritten Text
* Non Residential use in Res. District
   Building over 25,000 S.F.


If Multiple Housing:
Total acres of property N/A

Acres in floodplain Percent of total

Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) Percent of total

Total dwelling units

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent Condo
Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
Number of townhouses: for Rent Condo
Number of garden style apartments: for Rent Condo
Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

o~ 0N~

Nonrefundable Fee.

Legal Description of the property.

Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property.

Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application.

Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures,
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and
colors.

A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation.

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips
during a peak hour of traffic.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article 1V, Division 2.
b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2.

Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following:

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.
C. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and
Development in certain circumstances.

Page 2


mdsam
Typewritten Text
N/A


Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group
Housing Residential Developments the following is required:

1. Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States
Geological Survey (USGS) data.

2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number,

size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces;
architectural sketches of proposed buildings.

4, Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review
and comments.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following
material as part of the site plan:

1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial
waste tailings, or unusable by-products.
3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise,

glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of
zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality.
A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one
inch representing 100 feet.

3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.
4, A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge
area or zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours.
A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of
Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks,
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet
in gross floor area.

Page 3


mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text


Part Il SUP REQUEST STANDARDS
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of
current adoption.

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a
use will not change the essential character of the same area.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community.

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers,
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas.

Part lll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

X Yes (] No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

<
February 10, 2020

Signature of Applic?nt Date

Dan E. Anbar, manager, ANDEV Group, LLC
Type/Print Name

Fee: Received by/Date:

Page 4


mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text

mdsam
Typewritten Text
X

mdsam
Typewritten Text
Dan E. Anbar, manager, ANDEV Group, LLC

mdsam
Typewritten Text
February 10, 2020

mdsam
DEA Blue Transparent


Special Use Permit Application Attachment

Site Plan Requirements Per Section 86-124(c)(4)
A site plan, drawn to a legible scale, containing the following information where applicable:
a. Boundaries of the subject property.
b. Total area of the subject property.
c. Location of all existing and proposed structures.
d. Approximate location and distance of all structures within 100 feet of the subject property.
e. Uses of existing and proposed buildings, on the subject site.
f. Proposed means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress to the subject property.

g. Public and private roads and streets, rights-of-way, and easements, indicating names and widths, which
abut or cross the site.

h. Existing and proposed parking spaces, and vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns.

i. The buildable area of the subject property indicating all required setbacks, yards and open space.

j-  Zoning classification of the subject and adjacent properties.

k. Existing and proposed fencing, screening, landscaping, and buffers.

I.  Location and sizes of existing utilities including power lines and towers, both above and below the ground.
m. Amount and location of all impervious surfaces.

n. The verified boundaries of all natural water features and required setback lines.

Page 5



T RAN S NAT I O N Contact Information: _
1675 Watertower Place, Suite 200
TITLE AGENCY East Lansing, Ml 48823
Ph: 517-318-4360
Kim Case 517-318-4366
kcase@transmi.com

SCHEDULE A

Issuing Office File No.:
Commitment No.:
Property Address: V/L Hannah Blvd, East Lansing, Ml 48823

1. Commitment Date: June 20, 2019 at 8:00 am
2. Policy or Policies to be issued:

2006 ALTA Owner's Policy

Policy Amount: _

Proposed Insured: Andev Group, LLC, an lllinois Limited Liability Company

3. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in this Commitment is
Fee Simple

4. Title to the estate or interest in the Land is at the Commitment Date vested in

George F. Eyde Family, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company

5. The Land is described as follows:
Located in the Township of Meridian, County of Ingham, State of Michigan,

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A"

This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This
Commitment is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part | —
Requirements; and Schedule B, Part Il — Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic
form.

Underwritten by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Countersigned by:

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights 7 )

reserved. The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is ) W W

restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing C rn .

as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under

license from the American Land Title Association. Kim Case Audia

27C165B



LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND PARCEL NUMBER ANDEYV Group, LLC

For:

Andev Group, LLC
680 N. Lake Shore Drive, Unit 1103
Chicago, IL 60611

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION

Survey Address:

Vacant Hannah Boulevard
East Lansing, Ml 48823

ID: 33—-02-02—-20-401-005

Parcel B:

A parcel of land in the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of Section 20, T4N, R1W,
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan, the surveyed boundary of said parcel described
as: Commencing at the West 1/4 corner of said Section 20; thence S89°36°48"E along the
East—West 1/4 line of said Section 20 a distance of 2651.27 feet to the Center of said
Section 20; thence continuing S89°36'48"E along said East—West 1/4 line 308.73 feet; thence
S0005'46"W 45.34 feet to the North line of Hannah Boulevard; thence S87°58'54°E along
said North line 27.63 feet; thence S02°01°06"W 66.00 feet to the South line of Hannah
Boulevard and the point of beginning of this description; thence S88°31'51"E 12.78 feet;
thence Northeasterly 317.98 feet along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of
208.00 feet, a delta angle of 87°35'30", and o chord of 287.91 feet bearing N47°39'59"E;
thence NO3"52'14"E 321.52 feet; thence S89°37'52"E 745.58 feet to the West line of Indian
Lakes Estates No. 3 Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 29 of Plats, Pages 37-38, Ingham
County Records; thence S0014'01"W along said West line 198.16 feet to the Southwest corner
of said Indian Lakes Estates No. 3 Subdivision; thence S00°22°28"W along the West line of
Indian Lakes Estates No. 2 Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 28 of Plats, Pages 30-31,
Ingham County Records, a distance of 304.03 feet; thence N89°43'39"W 399.81 feet; thence
S44°40'28"W 215.00 feet; thence N89°26°32"W 415.00 feet; thence S09°37°28"W 32.47 feet:
thence N12°37°45"W 176.58 feet to said South line of Hannah Boulevard; thence S87°58’54"E
along said South line 19.92 feet to the point of beginning; said parcel containing 10.73 acres
more or less; said parcel subject to all easements and restrictions if any.

SOUTHWEST CORNER INDIAN

LAKES ESTATES NO. 3

WEST LINE OF INDIAN
LAKE ESTATES NO. 3
LIBER 29, PAGES 37-38

S89°37'52"°E 745.58

E2] b
T = 300 b S00"14°01" W~ |
Sn| PARCEL B 19815
_ B85 £10.73 ACRES ¥
WEST 1/4 S87'58'54°E Q™
27.63 z , =
CORNER CENTER OF _ :
SECTION 20 s 22 {8
S 2o oy S89'36'48"E -~ RADIUS = 208.00° 83
e _ 308.73 A = 87°35'30" NS
SB9'36'48"E 2651.27° CHORD = 287.91" s"
HANNAH S000546"W 4534 BRG. = N47°39'59"E v
S02°01°06"W 66.00° SEERERER
BOULEVARD SBE'3VSIE 12.78" /o, 399.81"
o 87°58'547E 19.92° /0
N12:37°45"W 5 o
176.58’ N89"26'32"W A

WEST LINE OF INDIAN
LAKE ESTATES NO. 2
LIBER 28, PAGES 30-31

415.00°
DRAIN EASEMENT
LIBER 1866, PAGE 161 &
LIBER 3390, PAGE 1264—o

S09°37°28"W
32.47

This plan was made at the direction of the parties hereon ond intended solely for their immediate use and no
survey has been made and no property lines were monumented, all easements recorded or unrecorded may not

be shown, unless specifically noted, and no dimensions are intended for use in establishing property lines.
KYES ENGINEERING

KEBS, INC. BRYAN LAND SURVEYS

2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Ml 48840
PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339—-8047

13432 PRESTON DRIVE, MARSHALL, Mi 49068
PH. 269-781-9800 FAX. 269-781-9805

= Deed Line
—~—= Distance Not to Scale

®

/
& y
/ / Ct/ps /4 DRAWN BY  SSF SECTION 20, T4N, R1W
Lo . FIELD WORK BY  ——-— JOB NUMBER:
ERICK R. FRIESTROM DATE 94114.PLT
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR __ NO. 53497 SHEET 3 OF S



mdsam
Typewritten Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND PARCEL NUMBER    ANDEV Group, LLC


S —
juswdojorsp a1e)se |eal

]
dnouao aaany M|

6L°€0L L¥TL  ¥LSE YOGS 61°€0L 9. 9 yjog s[ejoL
6LV,  LOLL  ¥6'SZ  ¥ZLE 6LvL gg Buipiing O / TV BI0L
090€  0L¢C 01’6 0v'6L 09'0€ €Z
08¢ ov'L o'l 08¢ vl z 08'C vl z S10J031IP [EUONERIODY
08¢ o'l o'l 08¢ vl z 08'C vl z Buidesxesnoy
0z oL'e oL'e 0zy vl € 09'S vl ¥ YETNER
08¢ or'L o'l 08¢ vl z 08 vl z 20UBJSISSY UBUONY
08¢ or'L o'l 08¢ vl z 08'C vl z $4000
00°'L 00'L 00'L L L 00} | L Josinedng Aiejelq
or'L 00 0,0 or'L vl L or'L vl L |BLO}UEL PUE SOUBUSIUIE|
00°'L 00'L 00'L L L 00} 00°} L J10j0811q SOUBUSIUIBI
0z or'L o'l o'l 0z'y vl € irad vl € Nd1 - yeis BuisinN
or'L o'l or'L vl L o'l vl L L8iiTle}
or'L o'l or'L vl L o'l vl L sisiuondecay
08¢ 08'C 08¢ vl z 082 (9€ uuop ybnoay L Bunaxsep pue ssjeg
196png j08lo1d Bunase|y Ul 1oy pajunodoyy)
00'L 00’} 00'L L L 00’} 3 | Jabeuel juessissy
00°'L 00’} 00'L L L 00’} 3 L Jabeuew eys uQ
TIOL  EWIUS ZWUS THUS seofoldwg 314  Suousod papelold 314  Suonsod (SIUS[eAINbT SWIL [N Ul passaldxd) buiers Jayio
TS Jod seaAojdug
1612 Buyeys Jonibaie Yoo e Aeq L [ejoL
o'l sjusjeAinb3 swi [In4 0L WBAUOD
z5cC  0EY 19'8 19'6 [543 9l LE°G) Buiyels sonbaied [ejoL
o€y o€y o€y vl € L0'€ €597'19 Ol 0z RIS
19'8 19'8 19'8 vl 9 SL'9 €59V'19 OF'L oL ZHus
198 19'8 19'8 vl 9 SL'9 €59V'19 0oL oL L Jus
00'L 00’} 00'L L L 00’} 0 00'L J0j0811q 8180 Y
TI0L ETWIUS ZWus TUS seofodw3 ~ 314  suopsod pajoelold  Sjueplsey  oney JuspISay Buinr] pejsissy
yeis 314 yoes Jo4
/22T Buyeys Jenibaie) yeop e Aeq L [ejoL
or'L sjus|eAinb3 awi] ||IN4 0] HOAUOD
012 19 €28 €28 1012 9L 16'GL Buiyels sonbased (ejoL
19'¢ 19'¢ 19'¢ vl € 85T I6V1°9€ OF'L i € s
€T, fora) €L vl S 9L's T6V19E OF'L L ZHus
€T, forad €L vl S 9L's T6V1 9 OF'L L L Bus
00°€ 00'L 00'L 00'L 00'€ L € 00'€ 0 00'€ JaBeuep - Nd1
TIOL  EWIUS ZWUS THUS seofoidws ~ 314  suopsod pajpelold  Sjuspisey  oney JuspIsay a1e) Alowspy
0062 Ot 08'6 08'/L [ o062 | [z | 00°0€ |ejoL g 7| - seakoidwg [ejoL
08¢ ov'L o'l 08¢ vl [3 08T vl z Jed 19[eA pue s1aALg
08¢ o'l o'l 08¢ vl z 08¢ vl z S10J03.IP [EUONERI0DY
08¢ o'l o'l 08¢ vl z 08¢ vl z Buideaxasnoy
0z oLe oL'e 0z'y vl € ozy vl € BEVES
08¢ o'l o'l 08¢ vl z 08¢ vl z 20UBJSISSY UBUONY
08¢ o'l o'l 08¢ vl z 08¢ vl z $4000
08¢ ov'L o'l 08¢ vl z 08¢ vl 14 [ELIO}UEL pUE SOUBUSIULE|
or'L o'l ov'L vl 3 o'l vl I EeiiTle}
08¢ 08¢ 08¢ vl z 08¢ (9€ yuo ybnouy | 3ebpng Bunesuely pue sejes
108(o1d Bunayepy ul 1o} pajunoody)
or'L o'l ov'L vl 3 o'l vl L abusouod
00°'L 00'L 00'L 3 3 00} L L Jobeue| juelsissy
TIOL  EWIUS WUS THIUS seofoidws ~ 314  suopsod papelold  J14  Suonisod
yeis

Ajunwwo) BuIAI JoluaS diysumo| ueipLsp Joy
suopnosfold YIys pue 8akojdwz 977 ‘dnol AJANV


mdsam
Andev Group Logo

mdsam
Typewritten Text
ANDEV Group, LLC Employee and Shift Projections
for Meridian Township Senior Living Community

mdsam
Typewritten Text


'y ANDEV GROUP

—

February 6, 2020

Mr. John Scott-Craig, Chairman
Members of the Meridian Township Plan Commission
c/o Mr. Mark Kieselbach, Community Planning and Development Director Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us

Re: Application for Design Review and Application for Site Plan Review

Ladies and Gentlemen,

Andev Group, LLC is the contract purchaser of the approximately 10.7-acre parcel located at the eastern
end of Hannah Blvd. The attached proposal is for a Senior Living Community as defined by local
ordinance to be located at the current terminus at the eastern end of Hannah Blvd. The property at this
location is currently undeveloped land. The proposed purchaser of the property is ANDEV Group, LLC, or
its nominee, who would be purchasing in order to provide the Senior Living Community facility to be
operated by a yet-to-be-named, but major senior living operator. ANDEV Group, LLC is a Midwest
developer of senior housing having developed multiple sites located in Wisconsin and lllinois.

The existing site is zoned RAA which requires a conditional use approval for a Senior Living Community
facility. The proposed building will house three separate types of housing, specifically designed for and
restricted to residents over the age of 55. The building will house an assisted living section with 67
apartments, a memory care section with 42 units and a section consisting of 121 independent living
apartments with full kitchens and amenities. The assisted living and memory care portions of the facility
will be licensed as a Home for the Aged through the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs (LARA); whereas the independent living apartments will be age-restricted to residents 55 and
older and will not require licensing through LARA.

The site is surrounded by zoning types: RAA to the north, RAA to the east, RAA to the south and RAA to
the west. Based on the use of the facility, the road, and driveway design and landscaping features, the
impact on neighboring parcels will be minimal.

Parking per zoning code is required to be 1 space per unit for the independent residences for a total of
121. Parking required for licensed professional care is to be 1 space/4 units plus 1 space for each
employee in the largest shift for a total of 84 spaces. The total parking required for the entire
development is 205 spaces. 227 spaces are proposed.

Parking for the assisted living and memory care portions of the facility is limited to staff and visitors, as
residents do not drive, and transportation is provided by the operator by van or bus. Visitation is
typically light, with an increase on certain holidays or special events. The day shift is the maximum
staffed shift and includes approximately 56 employees. Shifts will most likely operate on a 7-3, 3-11 and
11-7, 24-hour rotation.


mailto:Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us

'y ANDEV GROUP

—

As residents of the memory care units are impaired and pose a wandering risk, that section of the
building is a “secure” facility. Exterior courtyards are fenced and building exiting is controlled. Residents
needing to go off-site are supervised. Fire exits are controlled through the use of code-approved delayed
egress devices.

Like the country as a whole, East Lansing’s population is becoming significantly older, and the
demographic and social changes that are beginning to affect the city will forever alter how the
community looks and feels. With an aging population, this community will face both new opportunities
and challenges in responding to older people’s needs and wishes.

In 2010, over 13% of Michigan’s population were 65 and older (an estimated 2 million people), and this
percentage is rising. By 2023 this proportion will rise to almost 19% (an estimated 3 million people). In
2009, about 5.3 million Americans are living with Alzheimer's disease, according to the national
Alzheimer's Association. This includes 5.1 million people age 65 and older and 200,000 individuals under
age 65 with early-onset Alzheimer’s disease.

One out of eight people age 65 and older (13 percent) has Alzheimer’s disease. As older people move
toward retirement, local governments, community and health organizations and families are becoming
more aware of the challenges of our aging population:

o Local governments are realizing the demand for accessible, age-friendly infrastructure and
transportation options.

o Families are navigating the social and economic challenges of parents and grandparents that
require extra care and who may have to move from their homes and communities to access services and
specialized accommodations.

All of ANDEV Group’s senior housing establishments are conceived and designed specifically to meet the
needs of the growing segment of the senior population, many of whom are no longer capable of
independently performing activities of daily living such as cooking, cleaning, laundry, dressing, bathing,
etc. but are not so ill or incapacitated that they need full-time nursing care. Additionally, many of these
older persons suffer from dementia and memory loss. These people are at risk to themselves as they
become easily confused, disoriented and lost. They are not, however, necessarily in need of being
placed in a nursing home. Assisted living housing provides a safe and protective environment for them in
which their needs can be met while maintaining a residential setting for their comfort.

Older adults are a vibrant cohort of all communities and contribute to the economy, support extended
families, participate in volunteerism, and generally enhance the social health of our neighborhoods. By
encouraging creative housing solutions such as assisted living communities, transportation alternatives,
and social and recreational programs we have the opportunity to play an important role in facilitating
the ability of older adults to age in place in East Lansing.



'y ANDEV GROUP

—

With respect to the factors applicable to the Special Use contained within Meridian Township’s
ordinance section 86-126 for ANDEV’s proposed Senior Living Community we submit the following:

(1) We believe that the project is consistent with the intent and purposes of the chapter and, specifically
according to the provisions of Meridian Township ordinance 2019-09 to provide a variety of safe and
secure senior housing alternatives for an aging population within a single integrated community.

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land-use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of
current adoption in that all building codes and zoning restrictions are being incorporated and respected
without variance.

(3) The project, as can be seen from the elevations and renderings has been designed, and will be
constructed, landscaped, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a use will not
change the essential character of the same area. This area is currently vacant land covered with
vegetation that is of no particular character and will improve that character with engineered stormwater
control management, aesthetically pleasing buildings, and professional landscape design.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. ANDEV will be
meeting with the neighbors and their representatives prior to presenting its application to the Plan
Commission to ensure that their questions, opinions, and preferences are heard and satisfactorily
addressed. The developer has been informed that the primary concern of the residents of the single-
family homeowners that will be nearest to the project is that there be no connection with Mohican Lane
that would allow for cut-through traffic from Hannah Blvd. into their neighborhood. The project design
has respected this preference. The second concern is with regard to building height. As previously
stated, the proposed building respects the zoning requirements regarding height and setback
requirements and has been designed and laid out to orient only the two-story element of the facility
adjacent to the existing homes and will have an extra-large setback incorporating a large, heavily
landscaped berm as an additional noise and visual barrier to the homesites.

(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the
community. To the contrary, the project anticipates the direct creation of approximately 110 new jobs
and will support local businesses and suppliers — generating increased sales and real estate taxes that
will benefit the residents of the entire township.

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. All of
the utilities necessary for the project’s construction and maintenance will be extended to the site either
within the proposed extension of Hannah Blvd or through the vacant property to the north and are sized
of sufficient capacity to accommodate the needs of the proposed new community.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities. The same factors listed above
regarding roads, stormwater, etc. are applicable to the availability and capacity of the water main and
sanitary sewer connections.



'y ANDEV GROUP

—

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. The project has been specifically
designed and engineered to provide all necessary traffic improvements to accommodate further
development consistent with existing zoning to the north of the project without connecting to the
single-family neighborhood to the east, but still providing a second route for fire and emergency services
from the north if necessary.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources
of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes,
rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas, all of which are being respected in the design
of stormwater detention and avoidance of natural wetlands.

| am available to answer questions or provide further clarification if necessary,

Very truly yours,

ichael D. Samuels, authorized agent for
Andev Group, LLC



February 28, 2020

FROM: ANDEV Group, LLC

TO: Meridian Township Project for Hannah Boulevard

Ladies and Gentlemen,

ANDEV is pleased to present its vision for the development of the eastern terminus of Hannah
Boulevard. In a recently enacted ordinance, Meridian Township encapsulated the concept of a senior
living campus (referred to as a Senior Living Community) to allow for the development in one integrated

site of the following types of senior residences:

e Independent Living Apartments

O

O O 0O OO0 0O O 0O O O o0 o ©

O

Fully functional—includes fully equipped kitchen and in-unit washer/dryer
Choice of floorplans from Studio to Two-bedroom, two bath units available.
Community dining

Cafe

Chef-run kitchen for meal service

On site hair salon

Sports lounge

Card room

Exercise room

Media room/theater

Chapel

Meeting rooms

Concierge service

Housekeeping services available

In-home assistive services can be available (from third-party providers)

e Assisted Living Apartments

O

O O 0O OO0 OO 0O O O o O o0 O

Choice of floorplans from Studio to Two-bedroom, two bath units available.
Community dining — all meals included

Cafe

Chef-run commercial kitchen for meal service
On site hair salon

Medical clinic room for visiting physicians
Card room

Exercise room

Media room/theater

Chapel

Housekeeping and laundry services included.
Activity director

Assisted living services included (Bathing, dressing, medication reminders, etc.)

Care givers and RN on staff.
Bus/van Transportation supplied



o Memory Care

o All units (1 or 2 beds) are studio suites with handicap-accessible bathrooms.
All features and services included above for assisted living PLUS:
Specially trained care-giver staff
Full time RN
Controlled access to ensure residents are safe and secure within the building
Fully fenced and secure separate outdoor patio.

O O O O O

ANDEV intends to incorporate all three of the above housing types in its Senior Living Community
proposed development. We have designed a single, integrated building to house all three types of senior
residences. Each type will be contained within well-defined areas of the complex. It is anticipated that
the building will be constructed in two phases. The first phase will entail the construction of the two-
story memory care portion, containing 42 suites and the three-story assisted living section, containing
67 apartments. The second phase of development will add the four-story element housing 121
independent living apartments. This section will tie-in to the previously completed portion and will be
constructed without disturbing the lives or services and amenities used by the existing residents.

As the project will be built in phases, the area shown as phase 2 on the site plan will not be constructed
initially. The 4-story independent apartments, including the western parking area adjacent to Hannah
Boulevard, will not be built. Perimeter and parking lot landscaping adjacent to the 4-story building will
also not be installed during phase 1. The central courtyard sidewalks will be temporarily modified to
function to only serve phase 1 until phase 2 is completed. The phase 2 area will be stripped, graded, and
reseeded only as necessary to maintain proper drainage of that area until the construction of phase 2
commences. The remainder of the site outside of phase 2 will be completed, including required street,
access lanes, utilities, and infrastructure.

We anticipate commencing construction within a short time after the final approval of the project.
Construction of phase one will take approximately 18 months. Construction of phase two will start after
the completed phase one is 50% occupied, or 18 months from the completion of phase one, whichever
comes first. Its construction should also be completed approximately 18 months from commencement.

Michael Samuels, for

ANDEV Group, LLC



\

\

\

\IMANEZO96\ 96\l

W #5:L0'8 OZOZ /Ol /¢ "o diS-45096-9

ONINVd d3¥IND3N

S30VdS 0SG LVHL JJOW 4l LOIYLSId TIVILNAJISIY WOd4 .0
S3FOVAS 06 NVHL SS3IT 41 LO141SId TVILNIAISIY WOd4 ,0¢

©
~
Il

g1(,6¢—,.6,62) + ,06 =

AVM 40 1HOIM avOd WOd4 ,0¢
‘ONIMNVd

06 = Moval3s
HOIH .6C€ — ONIM OW
AOVHL3S
HOMH .6.6¢ — ONIM TV

G L(,Ge—.¥.28) + ,0G6 = MOovaL3s

HOIH 7,26 — ONIM I
‘SMOVEL3S INIATING d3S0d0dd

HOIH ,G¢ d3A0 I HOV3

d04 S°1 MOVELIS JASVIYONI NIHL LHOIFH NI S ¥3A0 ONIdTNg 4l

"LHOIFH

NI .G¢ LVHL SS3T ONIQTING 41 LOI¥1SIA VILN3IAIS3Id WOd4 NIN ,0S
10141SI1a TVILNIAISTI—NON W04 G2 — dv3Id ANV 3dIS
AVM—40—1HOIY 40 3903 WOd4 G2 — LNOHS

pASTANAS

%61

1vOS OL 1ON

‘ONITING
S)JvaL3s a3dindbaN

4S 1Z9°29%/4S TS YT 3FOVAMNS SNOIN¥IdNI 03SOd0O¥d

%G/ = 3F0V4INS SNOINHILNI WNINIXV N

4S ¢£92'89¢ = IvlOL
4S 02/ 39VHv9 ‘A4S ¢+S°/9Z ONIATING d3S0d0odd

4S 129°29¥/4S 00z'88 =

3OVYIA0D 9NIQTING Q3S0d0¥d
%G¢ = 39VHIA0D ONIATING WNNIXYIN
(OW) FUVD AMOWINW
(I¥) ONIAIT d3LISISSY
(7)) ONIAIT LNIAN3J3ANI
:3SN Q3IS040¥d

d3s0d0dd SLINN 0¢C
SLINN 89¢ = GZ X S3HOV ¢/°01
3HOV/SLINN GZ = ALISN3IQ 318YMOTIV

S3YOV €4°01L = VIHV JLIS TvLO0L

10[41SIa TVILNIAIS3FS NI 3SN VILNIAISII—NON

dVIN ALINIOIA

‘Q3IND3Y SLINY3L 3ISN VI03dS
YV ONINOZ ONILSIX3

VIvQ 318

00¢ 002

JLiIs

A

dIHSNMOL
NVIAId3IN

Iz
avo¥ INVT avd

00l =

avou 3dOH W /
uum ALISHIAINN
WV HONINOAML m 31VLS A
w;owm_ 2 NVOIHOIN M
¥
% avoy / NS
"IN TG HVNNVH
S =t
_
Ve z

Gy

"3 ANV MVHS

Q\< v@@

L1331S 3n908

J
|

V3YV NIv1dQ00d

%

<
e}
[}
No
A,
A
o)
&Y "'.‘:n

3k~

B
|<
O

Iezs

[

<<

&

~
4 FI6r 2
N1 NVDIHON I
2 _w [°d
i
4% O
A o9sel
s 6% o ¢ 9seyd
Fo0
— — F00 a
, . 3ON34 VLN 310d
MLY 'N¥L ‘0Z NOILO3S ASLIEL HOH .S vo
e e ” | CLUNIA L/ \
¥..8¢ ’ _|_ @ & (D
N1 NVOIHON 7 S - S — = _
X VAV
= 1 | =
7 ogazvo «¥—,CS 1HOI3H [] =
~ A4OLS—V 4 —
— ONIM I >

‘AUD JI SUOI}OLI}Sa) PUD S)USWISDa |Ip 0} }03(gns |9o4pd pIDS :SS3| U0 dJow S349D ¢/°0| Buluibjuod |9oupd pips :Buiuuibaq

40 juiod oy} 0} 333} g6l dUl| Yynog pios Buoip 3,$G,8G,/8S SOUSY} PJDASINOG YDUUDH JO 3Ul| YINOg PIDS 0} 3934 8G°9/L M,SGY.LE.ZIN ddUsUy 389 /4°Z¢ M,B82.L£.60S
3ouay} ‘3994 00'Sly M.ZE.9C.68N 9oUSU} 393} 00°GLZ M.8C.0b.bvS 9oUsU} 393} 18668 M,BL.LH.68N 30UaU} 3994 ¢O'H0L 4O OUDISIP D ‘sploday Ajunoj woybu| ‘|¢—0g
s9bpd ‘s}b|d 4O 8Z 49QIT Ul PSPJOD3J SD ‘UOISIAIPQNS Z ON S93D}ST S9YDT UDIpU| JO Sull }SSM Sy} Buop M 8Z,2Z.00S 90USY} UOISIAIPGNS ¢ ‘ON $9}D}S] S9YDT UDIpU| pIps
JO JaUJOD }SOMUINOS 8y} O} 3834 9L'8FL oull 180 pIbs Buoip M, 10,4 1.00S SoUsy} sploosy Ajuno) woybu| ‘ge—/¢ sebbd ‘s}b|d 4O BZ J4oqI] Ul pPapUodss SD ‘UOISIAIPNS ¢
"ON $0)D}S3 So%D7 UDIpPU| JO BUll }SeM oU) 0} 189} 8G'GH/ I,ZG,/$.68S 90UBY) 189} ZG'lZS 3I,71,ZG.CON 90oUsy) (3,6G,66.L7N DBulpeq 1es) 16°/8Z JO pJoyd D pub ‘,0¢,GC./8
Jo o|bup pyep D ‘388 00'80Z 40 SNIPPJ D Bulapy eAINO pIps ‘Yol dyy 03 eAInd D Buop 1esy 86°LLE AlJeySDeyLION eousyy 988y g/°ZL 3I,1G,1£.88S eousy) ‘uondiiosep

siu} Jo Buuubeg o julod BY} pup PIoASINOG YDUUDH JO BUIl UINOS BU} O} 398} 00°99 M,90,10.20S 8oUsY} 1488} £9°/Z Bull YoN pios Buop 3,¥G,8C./8S 8dusyy ‘pipAsinog
YOUUDH JO BUl| UIJON 8y} O} 399} $£'GH M,9+,50.00S @ouay} 388y ¢/°80¢ aull +/| 3Sam—3iso3 pios Buop 3,8+,9¢,68S bBuinupuod sousy} Qg UOIOSS PIDS JO JBIUS) By} O}
1994 /7°1G9Z 4O 92UDIS|Ip D Qg UOI}03S PIDS Jo 3ull /| 3SdM—3sp] 8y} Buop 3,8%,95.68S 90USY} 07 UOI}OSS PIDS JO JSUIOD /| }SSM Sy} }b Bupuswwo) :sp paquossp
[904od pips jo Aippunoq paksains sy} ‘ubbBiyoly ‘Ayunod woybu| ‘diysumo] upbiplUSN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘OC UOIIO9S 4O /| }SDBYINOS 8y} pup 4 /| }SDSYIION Sy} ul pup| jo |9o4od vy

«t J1VIS

Y | \ smov oo % VVN L L O LT L )
—_— e F ONVUIM S S —————......
_ ; -~ 0d Q3NOZ
F.26L
: FTONVRLL NoiSl
N zﬁmﬂo\ﬂ\ —______ - w _ Wy Q3INOZ Mﬂm wwwzﬁ._o * w.ﬂ_zw%m. m.__.w_nw__m /me
s z23 _ 3N ALY3ONd e He
\_ N 3 NO Q3¥3LN3J LN3NW3SV3 e
£ > Q\_\/ SS300V 1071 SSO¥D =
oo =z JANG Q3YVHS J3S0d0oyd N 5
oo \¢.onM m _mww e aIsodoud -
L . T
mmw | =
T e
o s % 3 S8
3 3 7
(@]
& . O oo 24
\\ - m““w M«W ~ m
e % 3% -
-3 s = * ks
e oS i @
oW
%“m g™
:g [994pd no mmww ! H€ e W
: . I w«_m
| V3¥V NIV1da00d @ w«mﬂm
001 0 S 3Z SIV 1TTF e 3 SS300V.2
== 8. ONVILIM 2
238 e AONIDNINI
S I 3am mowN €3
o ey, o
ﬁmw mm.w - : 69ZL 39vd ‘06£E M3
MMW / ww IN3IN3SY3I SS3I00V
— — 88 GAVN 1'Zh8 _ _._
~=NIV1d 00074 MVIA—001 o i
NN oL sHnLaNUIS N0 SoNIaING ON T NIV1dQ001d
6£€d 6LyL ¥3EN .QV. ~— VIA—001 —
ININIFUOV JIHSNMOL NVIQRIIN »; S¢ / — \
R
VIV SIHL NI FJ_:WMZO W&WM.A £Q [ T ~—
OL S3YNLONYLS ¥O SONITING ON /H v\\: .M. W.NA — ~—
6£8d BLYL ¥3EM 40 S, ~
o) LN3WI3¥OV dIHSNMOL NYIQININ &\ q Iﬁ. ~ — m
oz g
a0 Ny 5 — g
\ V\Q m 9 43y, E/ -3
Q T\QWSQM ~-——
7 womon L¥08—65E (£1G) XV /ﬂ&\ al ~

O

.0—.6Z LHOIZH

AOLS-C
ONIM OH ONIATINg

d3s0d0¥d

ase
ntv 2 C Z 9seyd »
\
\ 3NN 3SVH
«6—.6€ 1HOIFH
e 7 8seYd

S3ILNINY.

N1 NVDIHOW F, 129 _

J0N3d VLN
HOH &

¢

i
v | -i-

(=72

i F.9°/49 —

A
Y orado ana

v\_:. 3dAL 10N

\T 3.90,L0.2ON

(3am ,99 -211gnd)

“ONVAIINOSG HYNNVH

R4 4

3.9¥.50.00N

pG.8S.L8N
dVO % dve
o<
S [
A S

¥101—-6¢¢ (£1G):Hd
0v¥88% ‘IW ‘LLIISVH
‘@ LLIISYH 9L1g
"ONI ‘sgay

‘40 JHOHS IAV1

6vvv¥—,26 (ZIE):Hd
11909 I ‘09VIIHO

&
/

JAV NIV1dd
dV3IA—-0C

bt o)

‘N 089

271 ‘dnous Aspuy

“HOAIAYNS/YIINIONI

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOO WYHINI ‘dIHSNMOL

:LN3IM0

NVIdIYIN

)Se5] sue, yeuuey

404 NVid dNS

£L808 \\$

31.8¥.92.68S

028 39vd ‘9Zv¢e ¥3dn
ININISVYI NIVINEFLYM

Vo GNVILIM

\\

M ‘NvL ‘0T
NOILO3S 40 ¥3LN3D

O ‘dnous) Aspuy (88 "Q'A'V'N) LL'¥98 — NOILYATT3 1¥3IANI HLNOS . :
dn.ooo . o e oL o7 i Nang SN HLnos P — (3344-T10L) N A313 84N0 40 dOL A3SOdodd 00'008 /LW
# gor AS Q3IZINOHLNY AmW_M_I._.O }mv NV1d 3dVIOSANY NO AL¥3dOdd "O°'V'W 40 ¥INJOD LSVIHLNOS LV l¥'2€8 —HLNOS do¥ 2 7Y Y S MO019 LSNYHL \4
/ IO O N e LnOS, V168 THLNOS 0¥ PT I WOMd NOILVMVA3S TVOILYIA 8L % NOILYYVJ3S ILIL-Cor-00% |
9 40 | L3S . e —Gz—¢ ¢ NV1d SNOIAd3dAI SNOIAGEd "9 L1668 — i TVLNOZIMOH 0L 3AVH TIVHS ¥3LVM ‘3LON IAVA HILVM ®
MOW L03ro¥a| Ol7SCTE HIVd HLNOS NVId TYAOW3Y 33ML % AJAMNS ONILSIX3 'S (88 TAVN) 99798 — NOUVAIII (Ha36) h 94 55N T
Amr MM 0oL =1 :3V0S . DV OL 3ONVULNI 40 dINYOD LSIMHLAON Lv 001# NISVE HOLYO N LINVYQAH 314 2
A0 Gouay oty 90 = g INLEON Nvid VAONG 331 % AnanS ONLSHG 7 B e 910 104 2030 T ALy — — — — — —
NVId ALMILN 3LIS 440 %® Nv1d TIVH3A0 ) ey, LIS340) (SAVA ONIXHOM €) AVM 40 LHOI¥ QVOY
NV1d NOISNINIQ .N *‘SHYVINHON3S § NN avod 40 ANM ¥3IINID —3— — —3
}SeH sue yeuueH NVId ALITILN 3LIS 440 % NVId TIVY3IA0 'L
: N X3ANT LIIAS ) S Tomwn o
- - M .7 s
Ot oo ¥33NION3 2] _ . ‘8D (35040Yd »
| S3AN v © / (M3N) ITIOHNVI ®
LY08—6EE—LIS XV ¥10L—-6E€E—LIG "Hd ® dns 0¢-2¢0-£0 LW EEEEE _ ¥IMIS WHOLS 03S0d0¥d —x ® -
0¥88% IN ‘LIFISVH ‘QvOd LLIISVH 9LIZ VILNENS _ \ ¥IMIS ANVLINVS Q3SOdONd —e ® -
m»%nm_mwzm%ﬁ_ mzuﬁw_mm ONI 'S83M SNOISIATY mm _ oo L\ SNOILYATT3 "LX3 %,
mm _ dvo ® m<m\_\ L dIMIS WHOLS “IXd —p)g— O — 5 —
443rd0L98668#AIANNS A ¥IMIS AUVLINVS IXI —ge— —& T
yL¥6-3 4 _ - \_\/ S NIVA M3LYM IX3 — - — - — - —
IAVIv£096-3 3% NIVI400014 / - SYNOLNOD IX] ———————————
ke _ dVIA-00L ___ —80%Y ﬁ—zmum..—
84 /e 3,92,1%.1LN
103r08d 3HL 40 NOILITdNOD NOdN ¥FANIONI ALID IHL _ ) IV0S ON Hsng = 3%
Ol d3¥3AN3AA 39 1SN SNOILYAITI % SNOILYIOT ALMILN Aw_._m_mm_/m_%m - | / oIS umu._m__uhwm___m_m_<m 1504 . 390 SNONIJINOD = e
/M 3LVYNIGY000) NOILYTIVISNI OL ¥OI¥d SILMILN 3LY¥D0T — muxﬁmzm_mzmuwmhmmo#:o _ NOIS - 43dl snonaioda = mmw
S3LON 40 ¥3NYOO LSIMHLYON ONINOE T1I0S ® SA0OM 40 3943 =
— HALIN H3IALYM m AUVANNOY ANV ILAMN = sccccccccccccccccces
SY3LSdNNG 3LIS—NO _ ¥3LIN SVYO 8 SIYIM QVIHYIAO = — —o03— —
‘HSVHL ! @ =— —Mn— —
NISYE NOILNIL3A 3LIS—NO i . . ¥3ALIN 0181033 014103713 ANNOYOHIANN
‘NHOLS H \/\w/— V3NV SIHL NI LTIng 38 = = = HIANHOASNV AL @ NOISIATT3IL ANNOYOY3IANN = ————= 0 ————
. - w( OL S3M¥NLONMLS ¥O SONIATING ON M M
AHVLINYS TN . 38 O, 2 2 WLS3a3d ALMILA = 3INOHJITIL ANNOYONWIANN = — —A— —
: 3 aQ
NIVA ¥3LVM OIand “dml N wu_ 3HM AND — AN SV = — —9— —
: % g N
mm_w_.__.m"..__.mﬁ / L= 8«_ GILNNON TTVM 310d AN9 A
o \ M_ / 4 370d LHOM x NOILYAT13 ¥NOLNOO ONILSIX3 =
d3S0do¥d 4S £80°8 T / \_ )mw ) 310d ALMILN o NOILVATT3 1OdS ONILSIX3 =
d3IN03Y S Ovs'y = 002 XWM%A\MMOMN_WXW%WM T _HM,_ / »# 438 ISPV NOLVAIENGD W 4 —+ ANTVA ® TAVED =
- 5 __ 99ZL 39Vd ‘06€€ ¥3AN ININIINOV _ —_ u.m,/zq>..< R |wU _
0l HOV3 ¥04 4S 00Z = a3¥INOIY ANVISI IdVOSANYT HOI¥ILNI e \ _ A _z_z L - )mw M Sozm_ﬂ_wmmm/w_:uzﬁ = uﬂ_mwumm =
-1 0 \ o 88 GAVN 1'Z+8 \ « @ £ o =
TVLOL 91 = S3FAOTANI ANV SLINN I ¥O4 Q3SOdO¥d ONIMHVL Ixid G \ | % 0 oS Subv Z0aeF N4 0001 ¥V3A-004 \ f )mw z 4= _
\ _ 3503 SAALVM 0L . : NISVE HOLVO ® I0N34 =
SIOVAS /ZZ = 3SOdONd SIOVAS TVLOL = e YR OGN, 3Ry ovess \ ]  wa FTIOHNV INOHJITAL (0] 37VOS 0L LON JONVISIa =
S3IOVdS 681 = QIWINDIY SIOVAS TvL1OL ooy ’ £3 % NIN .zl FIOHNVI O1¥L0T13 e
Q@3¥IND3Y SFOVJS 0¥ = mueﬁo._&ﬁ 0 — L14IHS 1S39¥V1 o _ - O« ONVILIM / QALNNON 1504 FTIOHNVIN 3OVNIVHQ Q@ Q3LON SSIINN LNINNNOW ANNO4 =
d34IN03d S30OVdS 8¢ = ¥/SLINN 60L — ON ® 1V o \ " : / FIOHNYN AYVLINVS ® dvO HLIM ¥ve ,Z/1L 13S =
_ _ 3 Wy @3NOZ V3V ININLYIML 2661 “
d3¥IND3Y SIOVdS 1zl = SLINN 2L — I 2 M woaen %._ ,#* aivm Ruois 3,55.85./85 TG
L4IHS 1S394v1 IHL NI I3A0TAN3 X ; |_ N zcaszt
HOV3 404 30VdS | + SLINN ¥ AY3AT ¥O4 3OVdS L OW ANV 1V mwv/#* A0 % uve 00'99
LINN ¥3d 30vds L — I P / o, y




syuun gy |e1ol
syuun aJed Asowsw paqg-z (2)
syun olpnis aJed Alowsn (0v)
:24e2 Alowan

Sjuswyede 1y /9 [e10]
syuswiede o1pnis (6)
sjuswede pag-z (1)

sjuswede uap snid pag-T (v2)
syuswede pag-T (0€)
:3UIA pRISISSY

syjuswypede 7| TZT |e10L
sjuswiede olpnis (9)
sjuswpede pag-z (82)
syuswiede uap snid pag-T (6€)
sjuswede pag-T (8v)

:3uIA] Juapuadapu

NMOQAXV3Idd LINN d3SOd0dd

v3S Ol LON
dVIN ALINIOIA

avoy 3dOH N

z ALISHIAINN
NVHONDIOAML | & 3LVLS
alis ——
MAd |3 NVOIHOIN
j um J0A3

.o>._mM HVNNVH

dIHSNMOL
NVIAI&d3IN

3 ANV MVHS

L34S 3Ind08

g

0G| 001 0S 0

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I y ™ T T /| ;;
Z 3 .

0S = I FIVOS

:

-

Vvl

N

N1 NVOIHOW
SVA%Z I

\|N\|\u_A

7 /7]

N1 NVOIHON
\SLY#

N

v,/

D ANVILIM
vwd J3ANOZ

N\

V34V NIV1dd0oO14

Aovalls__————

ONIMAvVd .0¢

H_./ ONIM AJOLS—¢

¥04 >oval3s |

N1 NVOIHOW %
coLv#

/
ONIM AHOLS—

404 MOvEl3s

S /,Om_._m_ .0S

u

N1 NYOIHON ./

L9LY# \|N_

77

4

\ et
N1 NvOIHOW /"=
LLLY#
/

2/
¥

vwd d3INOZ

NT NVOIHOW 7/
S8/ v# y
’ \ y

/

/ / _ ONIM A¥OLS—¢

d04 MOvdl3s
‘0018 8§

N1 NVYOIHOW ”_
SBLY# %

j /[tk\xr*“'\

Aovdl13s

AN3931 X3

P

Aoval3s
Xd1g ‘dodd

\

06'¥6

ONIMAVd 06" °

Qac

@

B

|

1@

D

»

\\

©
~

‘9019 "d0odd

@111

_oo_an _

| N\

N

) S0
rain Mivm|.s /
+~=.2S 1HO9I3H
AY0LS—F K
ONIM I
AdONVO

JONVYINIT

EE\

N9IS 4/8 _H

E,,
e

2

AN
P

N

AMVANOO3S \\ ,

(¢

W | e I V2 _,. -.W- ,.
0—.62 1HS9I3H
— 4 Ad01S—¢
ONIM O ONIAINg
— v.j<>> S M Dmmoaom&
soumao 4300

( JUNSOTONI
¥31SdNNa

SHovavd'

AovEl3s a4
JdvA INOM4 S¢

¢ °seyd

V3dV LINJNLV3ILL
d3LVM NdOLS

ONIM AHO1S—+
404 MOoval3s
‘0018 9L

Aoval3as

ONIMEVd .ONFIVW

—_—

IAIHA d3dVHS d350d0dd

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIQIM3AN
)SeH suue, ] yeruuey

-404 NVid dNS

88 UAVN LZv8
—NIVld dOO014d dVIA—-00l

3

T /
o [ |
d31v1NO34—NON 0€3zvo !
S3IHOV +0'0F i T I
«de INVILIM 6 6¢ 1HOIH A | \\
- |
G ] i v
6 —
w3 2 ‘ 0¢ —
A T e ] (S
| \\%v 8|a \\._M_IPMTIT\L\ l/s
%a' 5 — NIVM L — _ y
shov oror — i b =~ L gl = iT@L L& TWLl = b | 63
3. ANVILIM 5 m“w
B S~
—INPEVd
INEA A3HVHS ONIM AJ0LS—¥
ONDINA ONEVY 02 S Sy
wWd dINOZ \ mmww
ANI'T A1ddd0dd Mﬂw %Ww
— NO d3d41N3O0 LNIWNISVA w«m
3 €3 SS300V 107 SSO¥D

7¢096 0T ‘dnoug Aspuy HSng = "A313 9YND 40 dOL AISOJONd 00008 O/LW
# gor o ‘A8_Q3ZI4OHL NV . 150d . 3341 SNOYIHINOD = (3344-TI0L) < %0018 L1SNYHL v
9 10 z LT3HS . 6l-SZ—¢ 31va MOVEL3S 9078 06 SILONIT — . L I3 SNONADId = i () 22— INTVA HILYM ®
YOW 103ro¥d . \@0
T ST MOVEL3S 9078 .59 SILONIA SQ0OM 40 39q3 = , LNVYOAH 313
X ) 0S =, 3OS ONI¥Og T10S ® Q\Q mm\t 3«6 ,
A8 QIA0ULY :¥INOISIA MOVEL3S ONIMYVd ,0Z SILONIA _. R INM ALYIHOYd
NV1d NOISNIWIQ d3LIN 3LvM “ AVANNOE ANVILIM = - 74| AVM 40 LHOIM avOM
¥ALIN SVO ol SIYIM QVIHYIAO = am\\ﬁ <m§mﬁzwwm%mv avoy 40 3INM ¥3INID —3— — —3
Hm“m mé\mm g‘mgq‘m E . 313N D1¥10313 [kl J1410373 ANNOY9YIANN = § m LNIWNISYI ALMILN
I —rov - MINHOASNY L & NOISIATTAL ANNOMOYIANN = — ('’Xx3) TTOHNVYW o
0086—18.—-692 "uUd H3IANIONT ‘90 03S0d0oyd ]
30440 IIDYSION e Iv1S3A3d ALMILN 8 INOHJITIL ANNO¥OY¥IANN = ——AU— (MIN) TTOHNYI Py
LPOB—6EE—LIS 'XVA ¥I0I—6EE—LIS Hd o dns 0¢—-20-£0 M A3d433 JUM AND — INM SV = ——— oIS WHOLS 03S0d08d —75 * s
o¥88¥ IN ‘LLIISVH ‘QY0N LLTISVH 9112 ~NIINEAS 104 ANO & NIV SElvm dasodong NV
. ¢ dns 0e—li—e 310d 1HON ot NOILYAT13 ¥NOLNOD ONLSIX3 = " %, i
SAIAYNS ANV NVANS = SNOILYATT3 “1X3
ONIIINIONT SIAA ONI "S83X SNOISIA3Y 3104 ALMILN I NOILYATT3 10dS ONILSIXI = HIMIS WHOLS '1XT — - =
443rdOL98668#AIANNS IATVA ® JIAVED = HIMIS ANVLINVS 1X3 —ms—— © -
¥£096—3 SINLS 4/d 0 HFANN dFs0d08d4 sAUoNTd 0 INVYAAH 3d14 o JLIYONOD = z_mu:%ﬂ% ww e TV
LNONVITO AMVLINVS Rl LIVHdSY = ANIDHT
MQ(ﬂ_m Ml_ﬁ_mmMQQ/\ Z<> Q.M&%N_ﬂ_ mM\_.QZMQ g NISVE HOLVD @ IDON3I4 = SYIMIS TV
JTOHNVIN INOHJ3IT3L (V] J7vOS Ol 1ON 3JDNVISIA = NOM4 NOILYYVJAS IVOILYIA .81 % NOLLYMVJL3S
SINAS ONIMAA OTX6 Jd0 dFdNIN ddsod0Ed ST I1oNId @ JTOHNYA 01810313 € IVLNOZIMOH 0L 3AVH TIVHS ¥3LVM :3LON
TIOHNVA FOVNIVNQ () @3LON SSTINN LNINNNOW ANNO4 =
FIOHNYA ANVLINVS ® dvd HLM ¥va ,z/l 135 =

/ 4 L1¥3AIN0 N,
: o8

—_— e——— —

(88 "TA'V'N) L1'#98 — NOILVAIT3

QYVAITINOE HVNNVH

NO AL¥3dO¥d "O'V'W 4O ¥3INJOD LSVIHLNOS 1V
LNVHQAH 3¥I4 NO 3, ¥3ANN L1708 LSYIHLYON — Z#NWg

(82 "O'A'VY'N) 99498 — NOILVAITI
*O'V'N OL 3ONVYINT 40 H¥3IN¥OO LSIMHLYON LV
LNVYQAH 3¥14 NO 3, ¥3ANN 1708 LSIMHLYON — I#Ng

(3LI1s440)
SHYYAHONIS

LY3ANI HLNOS
Y3IMOT HLIM N3AJ HLYON SMO14
l¥'2€8 —HLNOS ddYd .¥2

16°2€8 —HLYON dO¥ ¥Z

LI'6E8 —NIY

(3AIH339)

00l# NISVE HOLYD

AYOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3

gYVYAIIN0S HYNNVH

“\\Wuiao Xog

d350d0dd

WY NIY1dd00T4 -
yv3IL—00l
]

! .
V¥V NIV1dgo04
4V3IA-0G1

/]
/
/
/

/
/
/ B
/
/
/

Ve UNVILAM




7€096 0711 ‘dnoug Aspuy

#_gor ‘A8 QIZINOHLAVY
ST P

9 40 & 14 "MOW 103r0Yd| Bl~S¢—f ‘Alvd
MMP SMP _ :

A8 03AONddY] :yanoig3g| 0 et FVOS

NVId LNIWIOVNVIN ¥3LVM WHOLS ANV ‘ONIQVYO ‘NYOLS

1Seq swae] yeuueH

0086—18.-69Z "uUd
30440 IIDYSION

LP08—6EE—L1S XVY +101—-6£€—L1S "Hd ®
0¥88% IN ‘LLIISVH ‘OVOY LLIISVH 911

"ONI ‘Sa3X

SAIAUNS ANV NvVANE
ONIYIINIONT S3AM

J33NIONA

S3AM

dnNS 0¢—-¢0—¢0

‘M AFH443r

VLLINGNS
dnsS 0¢—L1l—¢

SNOISIA3S

443rd0L98668#AIAYNS
¥£096—3

v3S Ol LON
dVIN ALINIOIA

avoy 3dOH N

z ALISHIAINN
NVHONDIOAML | & 3LVLS
alis - 3
MAd |3 NVOIHOIN
m| 3043 /
- avoy 0N3S

.o>._mM HVNNVH

dIHSNMOL
NVIAI&d3IN

L34S 3Ind08

0G|

Y \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I y T T T |
Z 3 o

0S = I FIVOS

:

\Hl\

—_—
prm—
——

o XYW ,0°L +
= ‘AF13 /0

J1vOS ON

(‘'M'O'Y 4TVH)

NIVda 3904

(*aA1g ypuupbH) Y3ILIND % g4ND

anNvs Il 70 0L
3svadans

J1VO3dOOV Vi .8

10N — 3Svd

AN
. Lt R
¢ O .

8 .0,0%

SEINRER!

% gdno

3sve VNH M W “
ONIYIM VYAH (VEL) .2

N

VeLl) &

avoy 1/2

Moy 4TvH

£

G'LL

«D ANVILIM

vV NIV1ddoOO14

1S0d

NOIS

ONIJ08 TIoS

31N HIALVM
d313N SVO

d313NW 01410313
JINHOASNV L
VLS3d3ad ALMLN
JdM AND

370d AND

370d LHOM

370d ALMILN

IANTVA

INVHOAH 3414
LNONVITO AYUVLINVS
NISVE HOLVO
JFT1OHNV INOHJIT4L
JIOHNVA O1d10373
JTOHNVI JOVNIVHA
JTOHNVIN AUVLINVS

|;, .

‘é’e\o\g\o\lxzﬂgaa

Q
o
(o]

® 6 06

]
®

HSNg

3341 SNOJ34INOD

3341 sSnoNaido3ad

Saoom 40 3943
AdVANNOE ANVILIM
S3dIM AVIHY3A0
J1LOFT3 ANNOYOHIANN
NOISIAFTIL ANNOHOHIANN
INOHJIT3L ANNOYOHIANN
aNIT SVO

NOILVATTI dNOLNOD ONILSIX3
NOILVATT3 10dS ONILSIX3
13AVYHO

3134ONOD

L1IVHASY

JON34

J1vOS OL 1ON 3ONVLSIA

J3LON SSIINN LNINNNOW dNNOA
dvO HLIM ¥va ,z/L L3S

vV3d
\Nm,qm_%oo_

(dAL) WMOLS

(3344-T70L)
Li-or00§ '}
900 550 ThD &
904 (04 2032

(SAVa 9NIXYOM €)

A U

S

\
9

/_a \

: ,///..o: aNVILIM

‘A3 94N 40 dOL a3S0doNd 00008 2/LW
%0078 1SNYHL v
INVA MIALYM ®
LNVHQAH 3314 2,

ANIT ALY3d0dd

AVM 40 1HOIY dvOd

dvod 40 3INIT ¥3LN3D 3— — —3

ININISV3I ALMILN

("Xx3) FTOHNVI
‘80 03S0d0¥d

d3IM3IS WHOLS d3SOd0odd

o)
[ ]
(M3N) JTOHNVI e
T
e

¥IMIS ANVLINYS 03SOdOdd —mpe o
NIVA Y3LVM Q3SOdOY¥d ——p .
[

SNOLLYATTI "LX3 %,
¥IMIS WHOLS LXI —s 5 =
HIMIS AUVLINYS 1XT —e 0 —w
NIVA Y3LVM 1X3 —p G

SHNOLNOD IX3 — — — — — —
ANUDHAT
'SYIMIS TV

WOYd NOILVYVJIS TVOILY3A 8L ® NOILVYVJIS
IVINOZIH4OH 01 3AVH TIVHS d3LVM 310N

(88 "TA'V'N) L1'#98 — NOILVAIT3

QYVAITINOE HVNNVH

NO AL¥3dO¥d "O'V'W 4O ¥3INJOD LSVIHLNOS 1V
LNVHQAH 3¥I4 NO 3, ¥3ANN L1708 LSYIHLYON — Z#NWg

(82 "O'A'VY'N) 99498 — NOILVAITI
*O'V'N OL 3ONVYINT 40 H¥3IN¥OO LSIMHLYON LV
/ Hzéerxm_m_.._zo.”._._mm_oz:h_omkmm_;xEoz|izm

‘SHYVWNHON3E

L1Y3ANI HLNOS

Y3IMOT HLIM N3AT HLYON SMO4
lr'2eB —HLNOS dOd .¥¢

16°2¢8 —HLYON dOd .+2

1168 —NIY

00l# NISVE HOLYD

AYOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3

JYYATIN0G HYNNVH

43S0d0Yd - m.m /_Jr_ L
—_— [ _— /
: = .0—.6Z _LHDFH— /\\ / \ i
/ \\ «ﬁ \_n\] < AMOIS-Z— — y Z/ N\ Sz \
sl _oowor - oNigling &1
e / ﬁ — - /@// N R NN
- & . 4 S Jﬂmm dd AN
— \a ¥OLVHAN3O / @D.D \ AN ?/
-~ \%z ol 5 (slls \ h
N / ( /Du%mo._ N3 \ /N N
— & —— ¥3LSdANG /o K
N/ o Sovavd' | - \ ¥\ AN
A VAR |\ /77 \
ST = N
— \\\ e e \\\\\ N
A A N i ~Q3LYIN9IY-NON \ / N
\ / y Y \\\ / A e s3yov v00F / , )/ / - ~ RS P
- v \/ N il g ode ONVIIW /62 0 IHQEH — — — N A Hd—
@\ A4 ~ N | / \@EmM ™ ~
\\0@ mw&mwma%m&ﬁ%@ - g / / / ﬁ —_— \\ /oz_>> |_</ . o _/lmmm\l_l _
\ Q" \\ Xy _w / \ _|_I-|_I _Cr_\_\\_\_mLF —
\ \\ %\ \\\\\ / I -
\ | \\ P o H M V Cm
/ / \\\\ / \ S RN . L\ —
o0 A s3doy 08 0F | ) -~ NN // =
A/ 3. ONYILIM \ / “ = O
T IR N —~——
\ | | ! i / / , X
/ | \.\.\ \m // A@\\\ “\\\\\ m/\ / ~ N \ /
il NS ST = A NN
N J»» A@ : / T RN —~—
¥J~+//ﬁmwwmwywu RN T /@/// ] sotu
/1 TN el e IR N - N
o\ T > lwmw\w\ mmwﬁ wmw \ | \ // // — 7 T~
- / — nSBPE / / \ N /
= ' \ \ o W\ \\; /\ / / | // RN N
~— S~
/// // \\ //// A ﬁ \/(\ZK — T /// — -
\ v \ 1 / | | - ~~ ™~ — ~. S ™~
{1 LSy on i/ ~ N —o \ 2% N

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIQIIN ™

)SeH suue, ] yeruuey

-404 NVid dNS

R

(dAL) WyOL
a3s0doy

/ 0y

88 OAWN L'Z¥8

3

gV

/
Iv1d ooy m/ﬁT@o_\\ '/
/

<mw_< ‘Z_ \._n_omvmv

= ININ3S

V. ONVILIM

/




WY Sv%5'8 OZOZ /11 /T "M WhOWZS 22-X3-+5096- INIMANYE 096\ 96 \ |

$S096 9 40 ¥ 133HS
:43ANNN - gor 48 A8 ¥om g3l
MLy ‘N¥L ‘0Z NoILO3S HIS A8 NMVYQ ._<t_zmwm 0Z=11-2
0086—-18,—69Z "ud G®¥ S133HS
321J0 |IPYsJIoN a3aayv 9L/€1/10
NIV1da0014
LY0B—6EE—LIS 'XVd +IOL—BEE—LIS "Hd ® q3aav si/se/cl
o¥88% IN ‘LLIISYH ‘GvOY LLIISVH 9lLIZ
. 5 TYNIOINO S1/22/zl
ONIIAYNS ANV
ANV ONRIFINIONT oz_ mmux SININWNOD SNOISIATS

aNg/d01°98668

L6VES 'ON  ¥OAIAYNS TVNOISSI40dd
diva WOYLS3Id4 "d MOld3

J3AON3Y 38 Ol S33dl S3ALON3A O

08l 0cl 09 0

v

09 = |l F1IVOS

)
|

1vOS Ol 1ON
dVIN ALINIOIA

avoy 3IHV1 Mdvd

iy

"

13341S \3n908

avoy 3dOH ‘1IN /
T ALISHIAINN
3
WYHONIMOAML umv 3Jlvlis .
LIS r 3002 NVOIHOIN W
(%2
= avoy JONYIS
"GAT8 HYNNVH & —1
2 1 ,, =
5
=
NV IAI83N
"3 INVT MVHS

LY 99y ’ /5 N A NG ¥ & N ~ ~ / e ‘ \ s T~ — " 1
AW R K -~ ) R |
: Fl6y S/ O O T = g (SGoae) | ~ ~ P
Yz @ Lie ~ RN ﬁ C \ ~ ~_ S
S oo N N0 N R D
~ - m_NM@aWN_wWJM N Nt > - / a -
C x N\ i _ / S ( x AN —
X X : = - _ / —x /\@
AR G NN & ST PO B ——— e
\s //f// \\ N\ ////\\ \\ - — —I88— — — - ///VL: ~ \ \ // 9% —Lvg B
nﬂ.h\.wm — ~ \ [ST [ ~ ™~ m@\\ 88— — — - \ / / ™~ ~ / / N N\ Ewm /////// Va \
9crs / SN \ -~ - Q&% - AN NN >N \ // \ N /
1 voton o Loy ) : / W — VN /N N% * Nolxe u@&%w@@\m 3an
coLvh i ENRN i L _ N s 1N / X 7 UNINFSVINVAYILYM
, j N ﬁ% b e T \ ) ® D T S
B |
ﬁ |
- . R
// / B
AN o / _
nm.nmwwm_n' Fevo | e / \\
L= s N —
ERLE! ge T - o Y,
N7 NYOIHOW < — &
_— /
Locvk L FLs N/ , o
@/IHQ | ~
- B \o — /( // \/% \ ™
Sre— N \ \\\% .
. N AN
e J N
e 1 S
NT NYOIHOW /\ S 3 \ \\ g
LLLv# <~ S s \\ 7
/// ] P S
| /7 ~
’ Hn.mnu A | \ \\ / \\ \\ —
"] i \\ \\ Y \\
/ \\\\\ N A
\\ / // k \ 9\ s/ \\
., \ T Y
N NYOIHON | L A Ay
/L
SeLv# \\\ \ / AR S
_oveve . / /359 | A \ . e P
T4 NI % 1/ £
9\ \\ - % \ \ \ \\...AA@ / /
s R \
// / s £ gze
— /)4 ANV 3. vy MMMWW\ /
S ANV TLIM
- /
\m«w\\

NT NVOIHOW
S6Lv#
8¢°8¥8

N1 NVOIHOW
S08Y#

62°¢Yv8

- ANRN
S AN
~ N
z,v.#«w,
— Nw_VAQVA,!Av1 N
— ~
N

~ P9

l9cvs
-4 NI R —
N1 NVOIHOW iﬁ/ :: Tl ™~
seevt, «n_%if FLL <uqu_yao@ ~ VOV AN O . J o3 Mﬂm
s A NN NN~
,V,V,?/; ‘ B
L
//w/w.n.nn
-4 NI | | | ﬂ, -
NT NVOIHOW | : | :
\\ : 1.— // «Je Mu@q
// /// | ANVILIM
m ///wrﬁ
J C \7//4///8/
\5 Wc /// \ W,.K.Nh

5
N1 NYOIHOW B v3¥V SIHL NI L1ing 38 \ 9
S8 | /// OL SIINLONYLS ¥O SONIATING ON o\ / . —NIVd
SRS i // 6ccd 6LPL ¥3EN O RGhr — —oF — ==
—74 "NI4 I LINIWIFHOV dIHSNMOL NVIQIMIAW i S mm/// M <O 8¢t
o e T S
/////7 /ﬁ/.mmmﬂ,uwfﬁwlwﬂm 3 '
WY — e )
LT ~— e s
o SN N
/) NS = :
NN s
RN VIWV SIHL NI L7iNg 39 N
\ ///nW//// OL SANLONHLS ¥O SONIGTINE ON & vﬁwmv./w/w@/vﬂﬂ/
= % 6eed 6L) ¥38N 9
/ @/ w\v///vv gAY 8VA3D0 d3y INFNIINOV JIHSNMOL NVIININ &
< /
)

N7T NVOIHOW
S98v#

HLJON NV'Id TWAONJS J4dL % AJAGNS ONILSIXS

+«NOILd0d HLJdON —-LSVH SINdVAd HVNNVH,,

—NIVd Mm_

[
28 QAN LEvS
0074 m<z>|w8_\ /

#
\

AdAdS DIHdVdDO0dOL & AdVANOd

v mnm\/:..z

/|
;:\w

—
—

i

_
.. ...

@ / \\
g/ /X
\ \anmw %9\\w\\\

| y
vauY z_/w._n_om@E
/

A

e
%%
el

|

A

/ *NT
il

[oo]

AN
> | Nyzee —
T e VE SR ¢e8 —3l
/%ﬂ@v A %m_w\/._:o R4
S e
=5

(¥ 133HS 33S) -zssc#
ONIGTING ¥04 LO1 ONIMEVC 40 HIANMOO LSVIHLMON 3IHL LV
LINVYQAH 314 NO . MIr3 NI M, ¥3IANN 1709 IONV14 LSYIHLMON

(88 "A'A'V'N) 9¥°G98 :NOILVAI3 L# MYVWHONIE

(¢ 133HS 33S) 1304Vd N¥3ILSV3

JHL 40 3QAIS 1S3IM IHL NO Q¥VAIINOE HVYNNVH 40 3AIS HLNOS
AHL NO TIVMAV3IH 3HL 40 ¥3ANY0OD 1SIMHLNOS NO .X. Q3N3SIHO
(88 "A'A'V'N) 09°9%8 :NOILVAI3 of MYVWHONIE

(v L33HS

33S) "Q¥VAITIN0G HVNNVH ANV AVMMYVd 3AAT 40 NOILOISHALNI
JHL 40 1SV3 LNVYAOAH 1S¥Id ‘G¥VAIIN08 HVNNVH 40

3AIS HLNOS IHL NO LNVHAOAH 3¥I4 40 11708 3F9NVI4 LSIMHLNOS
(88 "A'A'V'N) ZL'€G8 :NOILVAII3 G# MMVNHON3E

(S 133HS 33S) 1304Vd LSIMHLNOS FHL 40

QIS LSIM FHL NO LOT INIMYVd 3931100 ALINNWNOD ONISNVT
JHL 40 ¥IANYOD LSVIHLMON FHL LV LNVYGAH 3dI4 40 WYV 918
(88 "A'A'V'N) £8°€98 :NOILVAII ¥# MYVNHON3G

(¥ L3FHS 3F3S) ‘QUVAIINOE HYNNVH ANV AVMMINVJ

30A3 40 NOILOISYHILNI JFHL 40 HLNOS LNVHAAH 1S¥I4 ‘AVMMINVI
30A3 40 3AIS LSIM FHL NO LNVHAAH 3¥I4 40 WYV 918

(88 "A'A'V'N) L¥¥98 :NOILVAIII c# MMVNHON3E

(3LIS—440) ay¥vA3IINog

HVNNVH NO ALY¥3dO¥d "O°V'W 40 ¥3IN¥0O 1SVIHLNOS
LV INVYQOAH 3414 NO 3. ¥3ANN L1708 LSVYIHLYON
(88 "A'A'V'N) 60°¥98 :NOILVAII Z# MYVWHON3E

(3LIS—440) "O'V'N OL IONVYLINI 40 ¥INYOO
LSIMHLYON 1V LINVYQAH 3814 NO 3. ¥3IANN L1708 LSIMHLYON
(88 "A'A'V'N) 89498 :NOILVAII l# MYVWNHON3G

-SHYVINHONIH

L¥3ANI HLNOS
¥IMOT HLIM N3IAT HLYON SMO14
l¥'2¢8 —HLNOS dO¥ .b¢

16°2€8 —HLYON do¥ ,¥Z

LL'6E8 —INIY

(3AIH339)

00Ll# NISVE HOLVD

AYOLNIANI ¥IM3S

¥3IANNN NOILVOI4ILNIQl 331 = #,
>K<QZDom QZ(I_._vu\S B i e .
1sod = .
NOIS = —a—
ONI¥Og TI0S = ®
HALIN Y¥ILVYM = |
¥3ILIN SVO = o)
¥3ALIN 01¥LOFN3 = @
HINYOASNVYHL = W
IVLS3d3d ALun = ®
JHM AND = —
370d AND = &
370d LHOIN = X
310d ALNLN = jot
IANTVA = ®
LNVYAAH 3¥Id = RS
LNONVITO AMVLINVS = o
NISVEHOLYD = ®
JIOHNVN 3INOHJITAL = 0]
JIOHNVI D1¥L0313 = Q@
JIOHNVIN JOVNIVEA = @
JIOHNVIN AYVLINYS = ®
JFL SNONI4INOD = 3¢
33¥L SNONAID3Ia = mmw
S3YM QVIHYIA0O = — —03— —
01410373 ANNO¥OYIANN = — —nF— —
NOISIAZT3L ANNO¥O¥IANN = 0
INOHJIEL ANNOYOYIANN = — —Nl— —
ANM SV = — —9o— —
INM ¥ILVWM = — - — - —
¥3IMIS WHOLS = -
¥IMIS AUVLINVS =
NOILVAITI3 ¥NOLNOD ONILSIX3 =
NOILVATT3 10dS 9NILSIX3 =
M03a =
313HONOD =
LIVHdSY =
JON34 =
37vOS OL 1ON 3ONVISId = N
3NN @33a =
Q3LON SV NO¥I ONNO4 = O
dvd HLIM ¥va .2/l 13S = ®

AN3O31

ANVAINOO HAAH :¥os




Wy éli65'8 OZOZ /11 /T "M WhOWZE 22U-X-+5096- INIMANYE 096\ 96\

$$096 9 10 G 133HS
2MIANNN gor 48 A8 Myom g3l
MLY ‘N¥Ll ‘0Z NoILO3S HIS A8 NMvya VLLINEDS 0Z=11-2
0086—-18,—69Z "Ud S®¥ S133HS
a%1J0 |IPYsJIoN a3aav 91/€1/10
NIV1da0014
LY0B—BEE—LIS 'XVd +I01—6£€—LIS "Hd o q3aav si/se/cl
0¥88% IN ‘LLIISYH ‘Qv0OY LLIISVH 9lL1Z
. 5 TYNIOINO SL/zz/l
ONUIAYNS ANV
OGNV ONIYIINIONT oz_ mmux SININWNOD SNOISIATS

aNg/d0L1°98668

(¥ 133HS 33S) ‘zsez#
ONIQTING ¥04 1017 ONIMYVYC 40 ¥INMOO ISVIHLMON IHL LV

INVHAAH 3414 NO . MIFT NI M, d3ANN 1708 JONVI4 LSVIHLHON

(88 "A'A'V'N) 94'G98 :NOILYAI3 L# MYVYWHON3G

(¢ L33HS 33S) 130¥vVd NY3LSV3

JHL 40 3dIS LS3IM IHL NO ddVAITINOE HVNNVH 40 3dIS HLNOS
JHL NO TIVMAV3IH 3JHL 40 ¥3INJOD LSIMHLNOS NO X, A3IT3SIHO

(88 "A’A'V'N) 09'9¥8 :NOILYAI3 9# MYVWHON3g

(v L33HS

33S) 'QYVAIIN0E HYNNVH ANV AVMMYVA 3AA3 40 NOILOISHALNI

JHL 40 LSV3 LNVYQAH 1SYId ‘QYVATTINOG HVNNVH 40

AdIS HLNOS 3JHL NO LNVHAAH 3dI4 40 171708 3IONV14 LSIMHLNOS

(88 "A'A'Y'N) 2168 :NOLVAITI G# MYVWHON3g

(G L33HS 33S) 130¥Vd LSIMHLNOS 3IHL 40

3dIS 1S3IM FHL NO 10T ONIMYVd 3OFTI0OO ALINNWNOOD ONISNVT
JHL 40 ¥3NJ0O LISVIHLYON 3FHL LV INVHCOAH 344 40 WiV Ol19

(88 "A'A'V'N) £8'€98 :NOILYAI3 v# MYVYWHON3E

(¥ L33HS 33S) "GYVAIINOEG HYNNVH ANV AVMMYVd

30A3 40 NOILOISYILNI IHL 40 HLNOS LNVYAAH LS¥I4 ‘AVMMYVC

30A3 40 3dIS 1S3IM FHL NO LINVHAAH 3JdI4 40 WAV OlI9

(88 "A'A'V'N) L¥'+98 :NOILVAITI

(88 "A'A'V'N) 60498 :NOLLVAI3

¢ MYVWHONIE

(3LIS—440) a@¥vA3IINO9g

HVYNNVH NO ALd3d0dd "O°V'W 40 d¥3INJ0D LSVIHLNOS
1V INVYGAH 3di4 NO 3, 430NN 1708 LSVIHLHON

Z# MYVWHON3E

(3LIS—440) "O'V'N 0L JONVYLNI 40 ¥3INM¥OO

08l 0cl

LISIMHLEON LV INVHOAH 3di14 NO 3., d3ANN L1108 LSIMHLHEON

(88 "A’'A'V'N) 89498 :NOILVAI3 l# MYVWHONIE

-SHYVINHONIH

09 0

\\\\ 77777
0077777/

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
DI IT D7 000, o

09 =

«b J1VOS

)
|

1vOS Ol 1ON

dVN ALINIOIA

Qvoy INV1 Mdvd &3 Y

avoy 3oH . IN /
T ALISHIAINN
S
NVHINIMOAML | S ENRARS
1S Tl QMD>MMM NVOIHOIW
= avoy / NI
‘OKTE HVNNVH
>

3 ANV MVHS

133415 \3n008

"

Aav4

ENVA

L6VES 'ON  dOAIAINS TTVNOISSIJ0dd

dLva

WOYLS3TId¥d "d MOId3

7

1 NYOIHOW
SeLv

V. V3YY
ANVILIM

V3dv NIV1dAo014
dV3IA—001L

03AON3Y 38 OL S33dl S3ALON3a Q

V. VIV T — f/ﬁu

A ST — \
S —

ANV ILIM .\\..\\\W - — — v

hERLS
NIV1dd0o0T4
dV3IA-001

V)"

////\

Y\

i
.

)
=
4/

V3yv SIHL NI 17in9 34

Ol S3JNLONYULS d0 SINIATING ON
62¢d 6/¥1 d3dI

LININFIHOV dIHSNMOL NVIAIM3IN

8. V3gY
ANVILIM

\ /k A
anva el
N ,,!d,.,ﬂv A N
- ,//V/ \8! oﬂ@d%m/ﬁ% \ CV/
™ LR e b
RN /,ﬁ%/y W////

AR 3 ARSI \
- / \ /N_%«% g//./././.«y///
Co | ,.&i// B
. / o NG ﬂ@;

£92} 3OVd .omnn\

e
: VIV NIv1da0oT :
/) " avax-ool &%9 )y
AN T fveR—— o
786 N N g — o
R %, N - L — P vig -~ 43917 LINJWN3SVI NOILVAYISNOD #®
Y A // | 99zl 30vd ‘06¢E ¥3AN LNINIIHOV
) A /// | [LNaW3SY3 NOLLONAISNOD

\ N A B iE
/ PR B
L SN / //,d_.g.‘mt///./ Zo\
\ Vo \ W’f //“ ﬁ O\
SRR () 5 A
/ /, J B //m A, \(aIo X0\
Xy R O, R !

LG/ v#

/ \x / / 84s —

—o# MYVWHONIE

~, =
99,
— — — — —iV8=
/ @@/ —
AN / __ ~—5bg.
~

AN

NOILJOd HINOS
AdAd(lS OIHdVdOO0dOL % AdVANNOd

¢ 133HS 33S 3NIT HOLVIA

HLNOS NV '1d IWAOWNdd 4441 & AJAINS ONILSIXS

—LSVHd SINdVAd HVNNVH,,

G 133HS 43S
V3dv SIHL NI OdOl "1VNOILIQAV 04

d3gANN NOILVOI4ILN3Al 3341
AJVANNOE ANVILIM
1S0d

NOIS

ONIJOg TI0S

d3L3IN d3LVM
d313IN SVO

d313N OI1¥LO313
d3INHO4SNVAHL
v1S3d3d ALMLN
JdM AND

370d AND

370d LHIM

370d ALILLN

AANTVA

INVIJAH 3y
LNONVITO AYVLINVS
NISVEHOLVD
JTOHNVIN INOHJ3T3L
JTOHNVIN 014103713
JTOHNVIN 3OVNIVYA
JTOHNVIN AYVLINVS
3341 SNOY34INOD
J341 SNONAI03ad
S3dIM AVIHY3A0

01410313 ANNOYOYIANN = — —n3— —
NOISIAT1AL ANNOY¥O¥IANN = 5
INOHdI1AL ANNOY¥O¥IANN = — —Nl— —

ANM SV9 = — —9— —
NN ¥3IUYM = — - — - —
YIMIS WYOLS = -
YIMIS AYVLINVS =
NOILYATT3 ¥NOLNOD 9NILSIX3I = /Ko%\/
NOILVAIT3 10dS ONILSIX3 = o
Wi = E=
AL3WONOD =[]
LIVHASY = [
I0N34 =
3TvOS OL LON 3ONVISIA = N
ANM @330 =
Q3LON SV NOYI ANNO4 = O
dvO HLIM ¥va .2/1 13S = ®
AN3O31

ANVANOD HddAH

404




7€096 0711 ‘dnoug Aspuy

# aor ‘A8 Q3IZIYOHLNY
MMP I

9 40 9 1dEKS "4OW 103roNd| B!~S¢—¢f ALvd
AMP MM _ ”

A8 03AO¥ddY| wyanoigag| 05 Twb FWVOS

NVd SNOIAY3dNI SNOIAY3d

1Se swae] yeuueH

J33NIONA

0086—18L—-69Z "Ud
3040 IIPYSION SIAN
LY08-BEE—LIS XVd ¥I0L-6EE—LIS Hd o dns 0z-20-£0 M A3dd4430
o¥88% IN ‘LLIISVH ‘GvoN 1LTISVH 9112 ~NIINEAS
dnNS 0¢—L1l—¢
SAIAYNS ANV NVANS ° ¢
ONINIINIONI SIAN OZ_ mmmx SNOISIATS
443rd0L98668#FAIANNS
¥£096—3

\_\ z I " |
_ I_ N\
| N
N\ _ |_
N 1
) .
- T" H p— |_
N |
~ rT1
1=> 1
g _ JARVARY
G

rTA

[

%G2'7G = 4S 1Z9°/9%/4S 2SS'v¥Z 3I0VAUNS SNOIAMIMWI d3S0L0Nd
%GL = F0V4dNS SNOINGIAAT WNINIXYIN

v3S Ol LON
dVIN ALINIOIA

aLis

0G|

avoy

-

AL

NVHONINOAML
‘A

NJOQVIVH

.o>._mM HVNNVH

dIHSNMOL
NVIAI&d3IN

3dOH

NVOIHDIN

N
ISH3IAINN
Jlvls

3 ANV MVHS

g

L34S 3Ind08

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I y ™ T T /| ;;
Z 3 .

0S = I FIVOS

:

- =
|
_/

s =

vwd d3INOZ

1S0d = °
NOIS = —o=

ONIYO8 1IoS =

LN HIALVM =

d31L3IN SVO =

313N D1YL0313 =

JINYOISNVHL =

V1S3d3ad ALMLN =

JHM AND =

J70d AN =

370d LHOM =

370d ALMLN =

NTVA =

INVHAAH 3d14 =

LNONVITO AYVLIINVS =
NISVE HOLVO = ©
JFIOHNV INOHJIMEL =
JFIOHNV D1dL0313 =
JTOHNVA JOVNIVHA =
JTOHNVI AYVLINVS =

‘é’e\qg\o\lxzﬂgaa

Q
o
(o]

HSNg

3341 SNOJ34INOD

3341 sSnoNaido3ad

Saoom 40 3943
AdVANNOE ANVILIM
S3dIM AVIHY3A0
J1LOFT3 ANNOYOHIANN
NOISIAFTIL ANNOHOHIANN
INOHJIT3L ANNOYOHIANN
aNIT SVO

NOILVATTI dNOLNOD ONILSIX3
NOILVATT3 10dS ONILSIX3
13AVYHO

3134ONOD

L1IVHASY

JON34

J1vOS OL 1ON 3ONVLSIA

-%%m_m_._.oz SSFINN LNIANNNOW ANNO4

dvO HLIM ¥va ,z/L L3S

vwd d3INOZ

vz
\%N%ﬁv\§f M
L& .0—.6Z 1HOEH
- AMOLS—Z ~
oni on ONIQTING 218
] I 9 Ir——/u
45 So¥ 35 2.0 _m DMWOn_ON_n_ [
i @ IEZ')
sy 0 s os 5
\ q R A\r28'z
.Moé& \\ n//.._m o 2 A
8 1er \um ey d
4
1S .6—.6¢ 1HOMEH
4 AMOLS—¢
ONIM T

%NW%q

lleoeoe

AN3931 X3

(3344-T1701L)

ooy P
WEHTY) o
9010k 203

(SAVa@ 9NIYMOM £)

A U

«7—.CS 1HOI3H
AJOLS—v
ONIM I

| L2\ 4
\mnﬂl_ﬂ@

Rz

S 9829

S ceL'e

¢ °seyd

N‘_w.

vy
% 3N 3SVYHd
s %
z
-

\/

.

=<
=5

4S GZ9'y

1L

NN

S €259

SR

3S 0L

%

¢ °seyd

AN

IR

7

3S L9F

/
15 281

\
JS 8l

JS ©o¢

3S 268

3S ¥Si

A
IS

OV ¥L°01
4S 12929

S~—_

vWwd d3INOZ

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHINI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIQIM3N

)SeH suue, ] yeruuey
404 NVid dNS

| aseyy

3S 656°01 = V3NV
NOILN313a Z/1

a

4S 8l6'lZ =
y3¥v NOISNALId V10L

IS 16€°LT

4s 656'01—
V10l 4S 0GE'8E

‘AJ13 g4n0 40 d01 d3S0d0odd

X009 1SNdHL
IANTVA d3LVM

INVHAAH 3dI4
ANIT ALY3d0dd

00°008 O/1W

v
®

2,

AVM 40 1HOIY dvOd

(42

dvod 40 3INIT ¥3LN3D
ININISV3I ALMILN

(1]

("Xx3) FTOHNVI
‘80 03S0d0¥d
(M3N) JTOHNVI

d3IM3IS WHOLS d3SOd0odd =

dIMIS AYVLINVS 03SOdO¥d —vs
NIVA d3LVM 3d3S0d0dd T

SNOILVATT3 "LX3

d3IM3IS WHOLS "LX3 s

NIVA d3Lvm "1LX3 =
SYNOLNOD "LX3

dIMIS AYVLINVS 'IX3 ———

ANHOHT

'SYIMIS TV

WOYd NOILVYVJIS TVOILY3A 8L ® NOILVYVJIS
IVINOZIH4OH 01 3AVH TIVHS d3LVM 310N

(88 "TA'V'N) L1'#98 — NOILVAIT3
QYVAITINOE HVNNVH

NO AL¥3dO¥d "O'V'W 4O ¥3INJOD LSVIHLNOS 1V
LNVHQAH 3¥I4 NO 3, ¥3ANN L1708 LSYIHLYON — Z#NWg

(82 "O'A'VY'N) 99498 — NOILVAITI
*O'V'N OL 3ONVYINT 40 H¥3IN¥OO LSIMHLYON LV
LNVYQAH 3¥14 NO 3, ¥3ANN 1708 LSIMHLYON — I#Ng

(3LI1s440)

‘SHYVWNHON3E

L1Y3ANI HLNOS

Y3IMOT HLIM N3AT HLYON SMO4
lr'2eB —HLNOS dOd .¥¢
16°2¢8 —HLYON dOd .+2

ool#

LI'6E8 —NIY
(3AIH339)
NISY8 HOLYO

AYOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3

JYYATIN0G HYNNVH

Od d3INOZ

O0S—HLHJON

OON




Oll

MM Ag paxosyd
dA Ag umelq
0z-L1-2 aled

0L0L-6L JequnN jo8foid

3lva #

SNOISIATA

ALINNINNOD ONIAT'T HOINHS

TVLLINGNS dNS 0¢-k1-¢

Yagdlvd SDIN (LOVINOD
aelb-€95 (L¥3) ‘INOHJ
PLEY-LOTO9 Tl 'NOLSNYAZ

133%1S JAOND LZ9 | AG Nolsaa
ONI ‘SALVIDOSSY ¥SISIL | IAVOSANYT
SIAS J43r (LOVINOD
#LOL-bEE (LIG) ‘INOHL
Oraay IW 'LIITSYH |
STIVLIA ILIS TVANLDOTLIHOXY O'b¥ Avoa L13T73svH 9llT "2FANIONI
SONINTIANTS zev ONI ‘sg=> TIAID
SNOILYAZTI L'ev
SNOILYAZTI oev (12T LIHOHY) WIANITOG dITiHL 1 LOVINOD
TIVAIAO HOOT HLANOL 'TY wOmo..Mo_m m ﬂw@m %M%mm
TIVRIAC HOOT4 ARIHL ey a6 CONINNG 2bb
TIVAIAOC FOOTd ANODIS ccY ~11 SNOISIA WIANTTOg | LOTLIHD=Y
TIVREAC WOOT4 1S 1T
INNLOTLIHO XY (HOLOTHA LOAFOL) [SSMOSZIIZOS NI :LOVINOD
- YLLY-9TH (OTh) “INOHJ
133HS WIAOD oLl LObYS IM 'HSOSHSO
¥ YO ALNNOD SZ3Y IATIng
IVaNINITS ONI ‘FANLDTLIHONY | NOILOMALSNOD WIHINYD Nols3a

Hagadom Rd

- $S3¥AAV ¥4aINMO

- §S3YAAv ills

XddNI L43HS

S1OV1INOD

dVIN NOILVOO1T 103rodd

60£0°60£°026 I8}
SLLYS IM ‘@Jed @
19041 sbuluuad z66

SRR Gous|ades

STSUBISe(Iepua|og 7 ve
w

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY
| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHINVD W04
INISNOO NILLIIM HOIdd FHL LNOHLIM
V1va ¥0 SONIMvYd IHL 40 3Isn3d
ANY NO¥H ¥O ' "ONI ‘TYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLINVO NVHL 43H10
INOANY A8 JIAVIN SNOILVHALTV dO
SIONVHO ANY NOH4 ONISIHY 3SN343d
40 S1SOO ANV S33d SAINYOLLY
ONIANTONI  1SOO {0 ALITIEVIT
‘SIOVAVA ANV WOY4 SSITNHVH
Y3IHINVYO @T0H ANV AdINWNIANI OL
3349V ‘LVWHO4 V1vd JINOHLOF 13 HO
H3dVd NI ¥IHLIHM ‘SONIMVYHA ISTHL
ONISS3ISSOd S3ILdVd dO Aldvd
"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD
HIHLNVO WOHH NOISSINY3d NILLIIM
d3SS3ddXd IHL ONINIVLEO LSHid
1NO HLIM 3NNV 4O WHO4 ANV
NI ALYdVd QdIHL ANV Ol d3aNOISSY
H0 @3I1d0D ‘G3IDNVHO ‘a30NA0Yd3N
3g Ol 1ON Y TI0HM
NI 4O L¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVYA ISTHL
"HIHINVYO 4O ALd3d0dd 3IAISNTOXT
JHL Elc)s SONIMVHA  3S3HL
ANV NOIS3A SIHL 'dIAYISTY SIHOIY
TV "0202 ONI ‘IHNLOFLIHOYY |
NOILONHLSNOD H3HLINVO LHOIHJAJOD

woo layuelb - mmm gg/'9z1° 026
Xe} v/,/.v'9¢v 026 19}
106G UISUOISIAA ‘USONYSO
Vv peoy Ajuno) Gzey

*JU| ‘@4n3jdajlyday

uoL3oNJIIsu0?) Jayjuen

IN ‘dIHSNMOL NVIAIdan

404 NOILONHULSNOOD d3S0d0odd

ALININTININOO IONIAI'T dOINdS

INd ¢l-¢€-L 0¢0c/0L/e

WIGL-LL-| | Buisueq 0L01-61\ubisa@ £0-70\21N08)YDIY #0\g dseyd Buisue BuInT IS 0101-61\s108(01d\:Z



. 1VLLINGNS dNS 0¢-L1-¢
A
MM Ag paxoayd g

dA Ag umeiq

0c-LL-¢ 9jed

0L0L-6L  JoqunN 108foid 46 €+S'LIT 4SS oNId1INg Iv.LOolL coo-sawos (T S
Nv1d 20074 14l L

4 bee'zy I
@ 15 19Q'SH DN/ TV
45 00Z'93 45 |IOL JOO|4 15|

Tor |

1lINn g3g-c

dlva | #
SNOISIAIYH

oot |

1INn @2g-c

| €OLL |

1IN a3g-1

[zoir |

1INn d3g-|

aoll
1INN
N2a + a3g-L

[¥or ]

L1INN

Lol
1INN
N2a + a3g-L

%01 |

1INN

[BoI ]

LINn a3g-|

eoi |

LINn a3g-|

L €Ll |

1INn a3g-1

| 0g0€ |

1INn a3g-1

/ bbb

\ LINA d3g-z

ol |

Emililidiiil

@ x TEE.F
K , €gol

‘ sl

Nd £2:€0-¥ 020¢/./¢

WIGL-1L-| | Buisue 0L0L-61\ubise@ £0-70\21n08)YDIY #0\g dseud Buisue Buln US 0101-61\s108l0id\:Z

ALINNINNOD ONIATI'T HOINHS

d
A
@)
o
@)
wn
m e
W)
Y | 1INn a3g-T
Py _ e f 4 .
5 J / ﬁw 1INA d3g-L 9
o
m
O [€0S]
— 1INN a3g-|
bLOL
mu 1INN a3g-L
= =
(L] !
1INn azg-1 =lo]]
1INn a3g-L 4
T \ — zee) ‘ 46 9vZ| / A3E-T 3T
Lot i / R _x, 46 €8b / NId on1d dag-| be
N asst eililii A _7 e alg / adg-l ey
[@Loy vElE | SElE i o e
r 1INN a3ag-1 | x % % odSGH| NvT _”: L n.W th \ O_DDFm Q
| i LK :,JD 7 SlINN Ll
e = = | SNIAT INSANSSZAN
——— - [obT] ) f F
ey % Na 1IN aZe-1 ] | | w_E N 1/ B o
= = hda
[920] , .__.Mw\, = ONILFIN [LOE | Corie | | ] B i
N oLie ab0oE [gog :
[852] bgoL woul] | [#BOE] SNaW FONMOT ﬂ Ho3 .,w,wm_u 7 %
1 gzl 931 [i&t ] (b2t ] [eb¥] ONINId WOOX "azn AdEAODSIA =N [BOVY] ONS¥IINOD P -pn =
LINA 3L || LINA age-1 LNnaag-t | LING a3l ONIAM B%ol [co1] ONILLIS FE] || Nwav / ONINg ___
mg izolL 9NN ECEN | FLYARH [960¢€ | [1bOE |
ES N1 SNINOM ram |
i —
SreE AN - N PN
cbl nU o II
a mM.(M _ /jk , U] ._._zrvnwwm;
it | f ] F 1 f bOlL E E g 7 L
L/ . HoaN 301340 [eeci ] || o] | [eoty - N
NvT™ oLl 21440 7 E -
ECNTIL sunN || SFTYS YW WDON SRiON Wog EE LINA a3g-
[les] FONnOT ==
_j\\\\\ld | 249D
o EZd [@al] = =4 Ezd [Peol] ey [ace = esLl n
LNA@3g-L | LNngag-l Obl LINn azg-1 LNA@3g-L | UNndZe-L | LNad3g-l [gboy LN (W 3 AFTE AT waZageld IovEOLS
LINN aze- (bl ] NN | [epol] == / ¥F1002 Aua | [eeie] [geoe] )
LINA d3g-z NaNT az Tm .= m n 7 F9VA0LS ONINId
IIQNNF =l 1 I.ﬁﬂ
O\ HoEW _ i 4V1G1IvM :
—e——— e i
“2AOD FDIANIS M NIHD LI NI [ ElLL ] ﬂ 7 [ il ]
1INn a3ag-L . 1INn a3g-L
ez
"INV ' FONNOT
[ oezel |
é EEL S=YRL
60€0°60€°026 19} eIl ool
. . [SeLy] SNaW I e ]
51175 1M 9194 o degLs raagzcc =4vas | - [BuL ] - LN ‘
190AS sEUItitad cbe '4'S gee / oldanLs or C L . raar @t
_| 7
N3a + aag-l
ouwiely Saiopeds [ SINIAISTA ¥ / SLINN F2YD L2AOWIN T | 38VHd | || T 3SVHd
SHINVI o [E=TQIEI*I'EIERL 1 | rgect | ! ,
ONINIA
b4 45 99b / Aaa-T ¥ ST |
4G LLL / N2d snd adg-1L v e = ¢
"ONI ‘FUNLOILIHOYY ST -
| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHLINVO INOM4 45 1e9 / dda-l Oe a FNNG
INISNOO NILLIMM HORd FHL LNOHLIM ‘46 glg / INODIV b =T - ozl |
VIVA ¥O SONIMVYAIHL 40 ISNIH —_— , 0@5 4 € LINA N / 1IN
ANY NO¥4 HO ‘ "ONI ‘FUNLOTLIHOYY | SLlINN L9 J N3a + aFe-L N3a + aag-l
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IHINVD NVHL ¥IHLO -
INOANY A9 IAVW SNOILYHILTY ¥O 14
SIONVHO ANY WO ONISIHY 3SN343a F2vD LA2AONWIN 3 ONIAIT A3 LoIssY [@€iL]
40 S1SOO ANV S334 SAINYOLLY “HOAN
ONIGNTONI  1SOD  ¥O  ALFgvIl il ,
'STOVAVA ANV WOMd  SSTTNHVH \ , ﬂw
H3HINYO QTOH ANV AJINWIANI OL I R4 I
J3YOV '1VWHOL V1Va OINOY1OI T3 HO e | WoOod . CeEn | N CzEn |
¥3dVd NI ¥3HLIHM ‘SONIMYHA 3STHL igos | wa ano fen LINA aFan - LINn Gzt
ONISSISSOd  SIILUVd ¥O  ALYHVd i (= e
"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD — — Jori ] — =
HIHLNVO NOYS NOISSINYId NILLIMM L | | NI aFTips | ]
d3SST™dX3 IHL ONINIVIEO 1Syl
1NO HLIM HINNVAN ¥O WHOd4 ANV reezr ]
NI ALYVd QHIHL ANV OL Q3NOISSY [ols] iFTol
¥0 a31d0D ‘GIONVHO ‘d30oNA0HdIY = noo# ‘a3n [bbl | =
g oL ION  3dV  ‘TIOHM | tzmm _ (s e — % — tzﬁm _ LINN N3 + g3a-| LINA N34 + aze-|
. = - = =0 [ Pezi | - [
L0 s E e | e | o TN ) e R |
JHL  3WV  SONIMVHA  3SIHL =S el ey NS Howail N W
ANV NOISIA SIHL "a3AYISTY SIHOMM bTl] ez ]
TV 020z ONI ‘FUNLOFLIHOWY | ﬁ saivie 1 g I ™ 1 1 = | I ™ M LN aze-T [ ¥eLl ]
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IHLINYS LHOIMADOD ﬂm = # o o PR o o P : LINn a=a-e
Wo9"IaYIUBD MMM 88/ 921" 0Z6 N N / 54 54 N N J\LL [ V1S
Xe} v/,/)v'9¢h 026 19} =
: [ skl ] =
LO6YS Ew:ﬂow_>> ysoiyso oI>ISH IR = M
n =
V peoy Aunoo Gzgy vzl - =3 [izzt ] ozl | 2 o [oi] E Cbaoe ] :
U aW-_—J 2311Ud L1INN @3g-L [zl ] LINT N3G+ agg-l 1INn a3g-L oianis Aavadr [bL¥| [es€] i) 1IN a3g-1 21hr? nevall I
| J09l1Yydly LINN N3G + aae-| / ONIAI LINA a1 UNNNBA+ @28 | |0 nEd Faza - g |
uo132NJISU0Y) Jayjuen ALY
a — E _, = -




. TVLLINGNS dNS 02-k1-¢C
XA/ e s (T
TIVEEAO dooTd aNooasl L

S $8 cco'ge
45 1@B'bE DN/ TV

IS vlb'LL ‘45 |BJOL JOO|d pucT

0L0L-61 J8qunN jo8loid

(1o |

1INn azg-T

dlva | #
SNOISIATYH

LNA aZgz
~ 4
Y,
[Zoiz |

1INn d3g-|

LINn a3g-|

[solZ |
LINn
N3a + azg-1

Nd G€:€0-¥ 020¢Z/./¢

ALINNINNOD ONIATI'T HOINHS

60€0°60€°026 19}
SLLYS IM ‘49d 8@
190.1)g sbBuiuuad z66

SRR aauaadea _

STSUPIEegIepua|0g

@

ﬂ.ﬂ_

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY
| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHLINVO INOM4
INISNOO NILLIIM HOIdd FHL LNOHLIM
Vivad 40 SONIMVHd 3IHL 40 3ISn3d
ANY NO¥H ¥O ' "ONI ‘TYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IHLINVO NVHL d43H1O
INOANY A8 JIAVIN SNOILVHALTV dO
STONVHO ANV NOHH ONISIHY ISN343d
40 S1SOO ANV S3J34 SAINHOLLY
ONIANTONI  1SOO {0 ALITIEVIT
‘SIOVAVA ANV WOY4 SSITNHVH
HIHINVO A0H ANV AdJINW3ANI OL
33YOV 'LVINHOL VLvA JINOHLOI13 HO
H3dVd NI ¥IHLIHM ‘SONIMVYHA ISTHL
ONISSISSOd S3lLdvVd dHO Aldvd
"ONI ‘FYNLOFLIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD
HIHLNVO WOHH NOISSINY3d NILLIIM
d3SS3ddX3 3IHL ONINIVLEO 1Sdid
1NO HLIM H3INNVIN HO WHO4 ANV
NI ALdVd QdIHL ANV Ol d3INOISSY
H0 @3I1d0D ‘G3IDNVHO ‘a30NA0Yd3N
39 Ol 10N Y TI0HM
NI 4O L¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVYA ISTHL
"HIHINVYO 4O ALd3d0dd 3IAISNTOXT
JHL Elc)s SONIMVHA  3S3HL
ANV NOIS3A SIHL "d3AY3S3d S1HOIE
TV "0202 ONI ‘IHNLOFLIHOYY |
NOILONHYLSNOD YIHLNVO 1HOIHAJOD

woo"Iayued MMM 88/1'9Z1'0Z6
Xe} ¥./'921'026 ‘19
L0617 UISUOISIAN ‘USOMYSO
V peoy Auno) Gzgy

*JU| ‘94Nn3233LYyduy

uoL3oNJIISU0) Jayjuen

C JovHd

[ ele |

1INn a3g-1

1INn a3g-1

Loz |

LINN

N3 + az3g-1

ol
LINN azg-1
iz
LINN azg-z
TTTTTTTIT
q T
N /1 8oL LINn d3g-z
[l LINN aze-|
ECid nw
LINA aze-1 i o LINN
Naa + aza-l
LINA aze-1
—
B4 / ECh
e ool 4 LN e
@, =
| /e
4 N3d + age-|
=
[Loz] w 4
LINN azg-1 g9z
LINA aze-1 L€ orie
- IoNNCT : | HOaW
bELE
ggol IoveoLs
LINA azg-L L f _ f
_ | 1 LNA e \J T/ N
el Pill / il
ONIANIS YdS [ Z9le | gLIE \rlg| ObO bLIE
LIl H O20%
o S EE) (] Siavep  |FoRH AT Aavagn
oge = [geT] [evel | iLL ¥ SAuVD ECNENE] ¥ Slav ===
LINN azg-L ONIAM oG dan [ ALAOY C=
LNAG3g-L | lLNnd3g-L | LNn a3 [ZL1] = @ 'ad (0% | f ]
SNINIA = g T
\ AT
% g . bETL
FoNNoT SNING
_ . ILYARG |
ST N w ez N I |
N é /j dSISH / NV HOEW oLl [Zboe ] h U [ FLIZ ]
3 FovaoLs 1INN d3g-1 f T 1INn d3g-|
e | [oeE) J ]
IbE I
Olil k:id kaid LNA aZa-L | LNn aag-t B3 X413 [¥2zi ] [ezel |
1NN azg-1 1NN @a3ag-L| lINnazag-L [zez] LINA aZe-1 AN Aa [FAgE
LINA azg-L bill =
[tez] NN, o2 2 — J
LINN age-z 3NA azige
dn [Tl
[ SSaANTTH
7”ﬂ—”J uul |-
Ez} -a - ) [9liz |
Pl h [Tl
olanis 1d
zvel
=01
s bz LN e
(5911 | | 1IN LINA
LINN azg-| N /) N3a + aza-l N3a + aza-l
[L2E] m_
LINN age-z
¥oll I
LINn a3g-L - [lziz | = Loziz |
LINA LINA
N3d + age-| I I N3d + age-|
Lizl
LINN azg-z
! - [eziz ]
. loee] ﬁ N LINA aze-1 - .
LINA a3 a ™ [ eeiT |
I I LINN azg-L
\ | |ﬂ| p—
| L )
[ g0zt | “~J137oL ==
HOO "d3n - LINA -1 [aic] [toz]
Los LINN LINN
_ =23 Imﬁ._._z: LINA [eis] h [ZL¥] Nda + azg- NI + azg-l oz
NZa + azg-1 4NN aza-L SlivaD
= LINN aze-| Nad + aze-l ¥ SLav LINN azg-L
= z [tegl | || rpzzr [orTl | [ Lell ] | |
2 "HOIW e ONILLIS Hovel ﬂ w
ize ¥ZiT
saivis i =L A M L 1 /1 <L IR M, Eia e amee
LINA azg-z
gbll
=iz} oz [soet | 3 @0z, |
[TIZ] [is€] [os€] LINa azg-L SANYD [cer] [eOT] [eoz] g [€g0z |
LING a3g-1 1NN 1INA olanis ¥ auYD olanls LINA a3g-L LINn 1INA LINn azg-l Saly1s
Nag + a3g-L N3d + age- Naa + a3g-l Naa + aze-| 11
1 [ 1
L e e

Yol
LINN
Naa + a3dg-L

WIGL-1L-| | Buisue 0L0L-61\ubise@ £0-70\21n08)YDIY #0\g dseud Buisue Buln US 0101-61\s108l0id\:Z



WA

MM Ag paxosy)
dA Ag umeiq
0Z-11-2 ajeq

0L0L-61 J8qunN jo8loid

alva | #

SNOISIATYH

ALINNINNOD ONIATI'T HOINHS

60€£0°60€'0¢6 19}
SLLYS IM ‘@Jed @
19041S sbuluuad 266

SRR aauaadea _

SUNVISI=TeIEFEICERL 1 |

d

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY
| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHLINVO INOM4
INISNOO NILLIIM HOIdd FHL LNOHLIM
Vivad 40 SONIMVHd 3IHL 40 3ISn3d
ANY NO¥H ¥O ' "ONI ‘TYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IHLINVO NVHL d43H1O
INOANY A8 JIAVIN SNOILVHALTV dO
STONVHO ANV NOHH ONISIHY ISN343d
40 S1SOO ANV S3J34 SAINHOLLY
ONIANTONI  1SOO {0 ALITIEVIT
‘SIOVAVA ANV WOY4 SSITNHVH
HIHINVO A0H ANV AdJINW3ANI OL
33YOV 'LVINHOL VLvA JINOHLOI13 HO
H3dVd NI ¥IHLIHM ‘SONIMVYHA ISTHL
ONISSISSOd S3lLdvVd dHO Aldvd
"ONI ‘FYNLOFLIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD
HIHLNVO WOHH NOISSINY3d NILLIIM
d3SS3ddX3 3IHL ONINIVLEO 1Sdid
1NO HLIM H3INNVIN HO WHO4 ANV
NI ALdVd QdIHL ANV Ol d3INOISSY
H0 @3I1d0D ‘G3IDNVHO ‘a30NA0Yd3N
39 Ol 10N Y TI0HM
NI 4O L¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVYA ISTHL
"HIHINVYO 4O ALd3d0dd 3IAISNTOXT
JHL Elc)s SONIMVHA  3S3HL
ANV NOIS3A SIHL "d3AY3S3d S1HOIE
TV "0202 ONI ‘IHNLOFLIHOYY |
NOILONHYLSNOD YIHLNVO 1HOIHAJOD

woo"Iayued MMM 88/1'9Z1'0Z6
Xe} ¥./'921'026 ‘19
L0617 UISUOISIAN ‘USOMYSO
V peoy Auno) Gzgy

*JU| ‘@4n3jdajlyday

uoL3oNJIISU0) Jayjuen

TVLLINGNS dNS 0¢2-}1-¢

«©O-0C = ,l ‘FINDS _ m.N<

16 €€0'aC
45 c9¢c'aC
45 9bc'c9

A
T

146 2301 JOO|d pJE

C JovHd

lie
1lINn d3g-T

[ ElE |

LINn a3ag-|

Loie
LINN
N3 + az3g-1

1lINn azg-T

1INn a32g-1

sole
LINN
N3a + a3dg-L

1INn a32g-1

| gl |

—T]

[Osl€ ]
LINN aag-c
[brie]
1INN
N3d + azg-1
[zale ]
[ cLiE | WO
FONNOT _
HOVNO1S
(i [991€ ]
Ceoie ] [osie] LIt _m ovod] I olanis
Telvanl  foapN2os
(¥LOE | oianis AT N
olanis I
[1bOE |
Ag1E 4
K
_H_ h M 1INn a3g-L
1INA a3g-| - .
Y L | =
n [¥eel ] | ecel |
=== AFE || AFTE
=€ = ! ] e
SN= vds
r—2| L—1
[olie ]
[ LilE ] ! ! LINN azg-L
| LINA azg-1 NI 7
(vt ] N
oianis . [o¥2i ]
olanis
i | Ceiie ] LN feney
LINN azg-1 ﬂ u LINN LINN
) ) N3a + azg-l N3a + aza-l
[¥bE]
LINN aag-c
llpzoe
Adlar=do
[eze]
LINN azg-1 I
- L [iEiE ] i, roere ]
: 1INA ] ) LINA
N3a + a3g-L N3a + aza-l
[eizl ]
1NN gz
oL |
1INn a3g-1 ﬂ U | I
o . [ezie ] - [zie ]
h 1INN a3g-| A 1INN a3g-
L— —
[SLLL] U IIQP:
WOO "aan \IzoL
re] rore] (] [Pee] ] zoe] eze] [90¢]
LINN gzg-L LINN m FalvaHl LINA a3g-1 LINn NN LINN aze-|
N3a + aze-1 . .
Naa + aFa-L tzl:mmmm; ‘ —_— N3a + aze-1 N3a + aza-l ooz | . |
(Lo ] || [z Eezia HevalL N
‘HOIA ‘AFTEY | I
1 ™ [eeie ] [ peie ]
SHlvis j j ; g ﬂ\ﬁ_ ? LINA azg-z LiNn a3a-z
1/ 1/ Vi Vs L/ PN % \J AN 17 [ ooe
Savis
[EBLL | [9igl ] Lozt = |
== e oze, (sie) 1N a3 oz i) eoer ] =) =3 o) <ox - i
LINN aZg- N TINf L oianis LINA agg-L LINA LINA LINA azie- :
N3a + a3g-L N3d + azg-1 N3a + a3g-L N3d + azg-1 N

TINEIAO OO aAiHLL L

[To1E |

1INn d3g-T

role
LINN
N3a + adg-L

1INN

INd 0¥:€0-¥ 020¢/./¢

WIGL-1L-| | Buisue 0L0L-61\ubise@ £0-70\21n08)YDIY #0\g dseud Buisue Buln US 0101-61\s108l0id\:Z



b7\ TVLLINENS dNS 02-} -2 e (5O
46 €cO'@e 45 |ejol JoOo|4 Uiv JoOo1d HIPl L

MM Ag paxoayD ‘E

dA Ag umelq m
0c-11-¢ aleq
0L0L-6L JequnN jo8foid R

\ o |
\ 1INN azag-c
/
/ V,
alva | # \/
SNOISIATY Vil - W,
\ [€or | %
1INN a3g-L

coly
1INn azg-1

aoly
LINN
N3 + az3g-1

/ EEa
1INN
/ [Low |
\ 1INA
S NZa + a3ag-L
(9017 ]
1INN
[EOLY |
I 1INN a3g-1
H \ en ]
N mmydx_l_& 1INN a3ag-L
= &
T 1
[Zliy ]
= | JevHA 1IN a3g-| 14
o
T T i ]
et X LINA azg-z
> O
3
Z, o)
wn
b m
O O = — ol ]
M M ~ — 1INn a3g-T
O = —
N _.F_._ / — — — 9
w»n o — -
o — — ———
ﬂ — S— — —
- I — E— =
= —  —— — Ilrmr.v \
= — - - (E— — - [ esie ] LINA azg-z :ﬁ
— = — LINN - i
e —  — — NZa + a3g-| E
= —— — —] — —— TTING eEE ] _
— — — — — | _/_fl_ B i
- — = = — \ ) e N |
= — = = N — — = r1e1e J
5 — = - — — —— = — ——goveiols o i .
= ———— e — — —— e —— — - N L/
= = — = — — —— — = 2 = — = le=iajoeon) [zae ]
| "y = — — — £ — — — — — = E [¥aIE | 8
— == —= — = —F—— = — —= — e e (e [PATH oIans
= — = = ; — —| = — = — ONILTIN —
4 —— — / 13dvHD : )
~ — — \ &= = = .
= — = == E . Ea
— —— — — E— —— E h M 1INN a3g-1
l—— — | — [ 1INN a3g-1 =
= ——— M \|‘ i — — r—r| By
= = — = — LI o |
— — \‘ — 1INN a3ag-L ﬂ w 1INN a3g-1
ﬂ o I — 1 —
60€0°60€°0¢6 '[9} N — —
SLLYS IM ‘aed @Q u = = — ———+ — . . _ l é
j99.)S sbuluuad 266 = — — = — [bilv | - D [eliv ]
LINN LINN
-..._._..u..__.._u.._l_u. pouaiada _ ! = ‘\‘ ——| N3a + a3ag-| N3a + a3dg-L
..,_._mca._mmm_hm?._m_oﬁﬂ@ | . — — ———
"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY —— ——— — — — — = —_— = W
| NOILONYLSNOD MIHLINVD  INO¥S — — —
LNISNOO NILLIMM HOI¥d FHL LNOHLIM — — — = — [z | roTF ]
V1Va ¥O SONIMYYA3IHL 40 3sn3y — — — S _— — ‘ LINA ﬁ W % —
ANY NO¥H HO ‘"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY | = = — — — — N3a + aag-i m N3a + a3g-L
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IHLNYSO NVYHL ¥IHLO 3 — — — E
INOANY A8 3AVIN SNOILYYILTY ¥O = — ——— — = —
SIONVHO ANY WOHL ONISIYY 3ISN343d = —— — = =
40 S1SOD ANV S334 SAINYOLLY — e — —
ONIANTONI LSOO  ¥O  ALITIGvIl
‘SIOVAVA ANV WOY4  SSITNHVH = =
HIHLNVO QTOH ANV A4INWIANI OL — -
33YOV ‘LVYINHOL V.LVA DINOYLOITI HO = — — — I
Y3dvd NI ¥IHLIHM ‘SONIMYHA 3STHL Es— —— — Sm=== — — — > — [ezir | - I L zeiy |
ONISSISSOd SIILUVd ¥O  ALNvd ———— —— — ——— — — —— =1 L HNn a=et AN a=e-d |
"ONI ‘IYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD ———————— = = =| E————— F =
YIHLNYO NOYS NOISSINYId NILLIMM e —— = — — .
d3SS3¥dX3 IHL ONINIVLEO 1S¥ld b = — — —
1NO HLIM H3INNVA HO WHO4 ANV = - = —
NI AL¥Vd QHIHL ANY OL Q3NOISSY —
¥0 @31d0D ‘AIONVHO ‘0IONA0YCIY = — —= — —
33 OL ION  3dV ‘TIOHM E —— — — =
NI O I¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVYA 3ISIHL — = 5
"YIHINVD 40 ALY¥IHO¥d IAISN1OX3 ——— —
3JHL  3¥V  SONIMVMA  3S3IHL ﬁ w
ANV NOIS3A SIHL "a3AY3ISTY wt._o_m__ i — — —— .
TV ©020Z ONI - ‘FHNLOFLIHONY == == S — S — [eaie ] [ ¥Tl¥ ]
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLNYS LHOIMALOD E - — : LN a3g-z LN agg-e
Woo"Jayjueb mmm 88/ "9z 026 — — —
Xel $//.v'9¢¥'0c6 I8} = Zs —
LOBYS UISUOOSIA ‘YSONYSO — —
V peoy Aluno) Gzgy = E— = —— T
. an -
*JU] "924N3}0a}lYyday — — —
= == — —— | |
uolldonJisuo) Jsayjuen £ — z ——
&= —— = — N = B —

Nd ¥¥:€0-¥ 020¢Z/./¢

WIGL-LL-| | Buisueq 0L01-61\ubisa@ £0-70\21N08)YDIY #0\g dseyd Buisue BuInT IS 0101-61\s108(01d\:Z




- AVLLINGNS dNS 02-}}-2

MM Ag paxoay) ]
dA fAgumeig | | e - e e ) o an T O m{ ..... )
 HLIdON dordgix3l @

Nd 1 1:G0-¥ 020¢/./¢

0c-L1L-¢ 9jed

0L0L-6L JequnN jo8foid

.0 - 00l _
T4 — ‘ R e o o e, W =] ESE W e S W s e Wl e e : =
AOOT4 AFHSINIA SR e e e e S < @ e o S i @ ==
- . e e "L slE = & (a2 ﬂw i >
e B e el L L S e T L = ey el a wria =T A A
o-zil = =t - e e = L e 5 Y
WO - e e I .pur_ﬂumtmﬁ... s e T e i Ke)
_____ AOOT4 ANODIS o L IR TS P RD ST e = = w.
: - [ |- I 7
E L | &
.0 - ETL B N P
2OOT4 aAIHL =)
- —
o
3lva | # @ SEEREN| |(ENAWEN B | @
SNOISIANIYH WO - YEL _ _ il
FOOT4 HLANOS <z
=
.......... «Q
—
.0 - Gl N N L
400 @,
=]
«Q
-
0
Q
(72}
o
N
—
o
Y
_ >
Z
e e e @
. ¢ L . o ’ L : . . c
o1 =.on 705 [(O'EN O- = ,9L/L FT¥OS _0 EN S
. — f— S
1INOD 163M doAgIxa il v 1SaM doaglxa Il L |2
* * o
w
&
mw .0 = 00| Ay .0 - .00l . B . ) 2
AOOT4 AaHSINIZ e e A L e e T T T T ey e AOOT4 A3HSINIA . T T e e e g e [T e e =}
= > T =T 1 22 = T o e : ST O
— = ¥ : | —_ = i T, B _w- = e, e [ 5 - ©
— ﬁ o + 1 i ; = i o .lm- _ o et ll“ll ..—. = " et —L
= = b T ] == e e AR SR IR e M e e e o
:0 - _N‘_\_\ ] e s E __0 - _N_\_\ o m...»w,.ll.l. o - | \n..ﬂﬂnﬂ“ﬂ.\“ﬂm -_
b S0 anosms e b Sooa anosss R e S
| I _ ﬁ ] ._ | &
1] | I | I L | 1L =
Av .0 - £CL o mw 0 - g2l =
FOOT4 aAIHL FWOOTH aAIHL .
xmw...:g _ _.V‘mP ] ] xmw :0 - _va o - hr
FOOT4 HLFNOS FOOT4 HLNNOS ©
m il il (i {i i m 2
. C — - - 4o srl _ = = A
400 4003 T

:103rodd d3sododd

0L = ,91/L ‘TT¥OS _ OX= 4 WO-) =.91/L FATVOS _ oecY
. Hlnos doraxa il € 1ova wormaixa il ¢

.0 - .00l
HOOT4 AZHSINIA

.0 - 00l
HOOTd daHGINIA

ALINNINNOD ONIATI'T HOINHS

O-Zll
HOOT4 ANoD3S

0 - Tl
HOOT4 ANODIS

.0 - €Tl
2OOT4 ARIHL

.0 - £ZI
2OOT4 AAIHL

O - FEL
HOOT4 HLxNOL

.0 - FEL
Nolog PN oN

0 - GFl
400

.0 - Sl
400

@ Q¢ ¢ ¢ @
@ Q@ ¢ ¢ @

60£0°60£°026 I8}
SLLYS IM ‘@Jed @
19041 sbuluuad z66

BB Rouaiadya

STSUBDSelepua|og 7 ve
w

"ONI ‘FHNLOILIHOYY

| NOILONYLSNOD ¥3IHINVO WOHH
INISNOOD NILLIIM HOldd FHL LNOHLIM
VYivad "0 SONIMVYEd IHL 40 ISN3d
ANV NOYH HO ‘ "ONI ‘TYNLOTLIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD H3IHINVO NVHL ¥3H1O0
INOANY A9 IAVA SNOILvd3lly dO0 | f ... e L
SIONVYHI ANV NO¥4 ONISIHY ISN343d . .

40 S1SOO dNV S334 SAINYOLLY
ONIANTONI  1SOD do ALITIGVIT .
SIOVNVA ANV NO¥4  SSITNEVH R ONIIS HOLYN OL SaOTO BIANOT D¥Ld WOLSD
H3IHINVO AT0H ANV  AdINW3IANI OL o .
J3HOV ‘LVINHOL V1va JINOY1D313 HO A JLIvT 'ILOS ANOWYIA WAL .Z/L G % JvT .3 T ONIAIS aavod INIWID
H3dVd NI Y3HLIHM ‘SONIMYHA ISTHL
ONISSISSOd  STLLMVd MO ALuvd o - 0oL OSCTRAGT HOM ‘ARVOTIIAAYH ‘dvT .8 'L ONIAIS deivod INIWID
"ONI ‘FHNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD i . — - -

YIHLNVO WO¥HH NOISSINYId NILLIHM OO dIHSINIA e e e B _ B, )

| EE
— lhll
O-3ZTll

MQQJ&DZQOMM I

L1V 'SLOS ANOWYIA ‘WIalL .Z/L & aavod LNIFWID NYL INOILNY ‘AvIH ANV 17115 .9 m_ZO...._...m .Q.NMD.._.O(LDZ(X

. AONZL - INOLSIDATT LSvIHLINOS SFIFAD AIATINOG :INOLS AFANLOVINNYIN NY.L INOILNY ‘ANYE .9 INOLS ATHALOVINNYIN

JIGNN 'JLOS ANOWVIA ‘dvT1 .3 YE ONIAIS davod LNIWID o
NYL INOILNY "SEFTAD d3ainog

AUIANN 'TLOS ANOWYIA v .S ‘IE ONIAIS aalvod INIWID TS SNOLS dFANLOVANNY

d3SS3I™dX3T FHL ONINIVIEO 1SHId BN N N
1NO HLIM H3INNVA ¥O WHO4 ANV

NI AL¥Vd Q¥IHL ANV OL Q3NoISSV
4O a31dOD ‘A3IONVHO ‘d3dNA0Yd3y
g ol ION  Jd¥V  ‘TIOHM
NI 4O 1d¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVEA ISTHL
"YIHLINYD 40 ALMIJOMd FAISNTOXT
JHL  J¥VY  SONIMYYA  3SIHL
ANV NOISIA SIHL "@3AYISIY SIHOIN
TV ©020Z CONI ‘IHNLOFLIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLINYD LHOIHALOD

=

= Il II\k

0 - g2l
HOOT4 AuliHL

0 —6C AJOLS-¢ LHOIFH ONIdTINgG v
WO - pel = — =

TdOON DN/ - cl _
. L1V 'ILOS ANOWYIA T TaNVd davoga INIWID

woo leyuelb - mmm gg/'9Z1° 026
Xe} v/1.v'9¢v' 026 19}
106G UISUOISIAN ‘USONYSO
Vv peoy Ajuno) Gzey

*JU| ‘@4n3jdajlyday

6 - 6C AMOLG-€ LHOIEH 9NIaTIng

O~ &Pl
Joox I

STISNAOD XITTOA VIDSVYE WNNIWATY

|

uoL3oNJIISU0) Jayjuen

NMOaE NOISSIN "STavIWANYT 33 LNV L2430
'SFTONIHG LTIVHASY TvaNLOI LIHOAY

v P eeh S <& @

W~ 2G AdOLS- LHOIFH ONIaTINg




. - TVL1LINGNS dNS 02-}1-2 ] — ubisag
—\ m< o FUNLYNODIS 31va FUNLYNDIS _mEE SeWaYDS
IVAOUdY ANV MIIATY ¥IDVNVIN LOIroNd IVAOUddY ANV MIIATYH ¥INMO
MM Ag paxoay)
dA Agumeig | o o o L o
0Z-11-2 sjeq ol = B/l TS ﬁ | EN 4

00161 Jequinosloid | INIT ALNTDOEL 1SvT 1Y Wvaiovid 1d43oNoD L

7
G
&
=
=R

dlva | #
SNOISIAIY

m o-oz-wmvos( |'EN ouanawos| |TEY
O 163M HolRTLxT Wl 9 | (SAAYALANOD) HLNOS HolTLX3! S |
7 _ . .0 -.00l -
M Py _ __..___%Oo_mu_omm_._m_z_u_ - s et Heaee St ewe ) WOO12 AFHEINIZ : ,,,.
0 A o =4
O- Tl B } _
m P, _ % 20074 ANODIS % % <Lt % E ._W_OOO_MUF aNooas -
% 0 - £TL B =
Z N o) P w004 asinL o- ezl
— m o §WOO12 AIHL -
ﬁMu D M A _.___WOMW_WT_E:OU_ -
W D m . ._umumu_w_m\wz\\._,« -
m - .0 - &l
= L gm0 e
: X
N_ . or-anaos(|'EY | - (QAVALANOD) LSV soEIXa Il | m<
l (SAAYALANOD) HLAON oI IXT vl ¥ - ~le=-
__0-_m0N\m_ s S . __ - - - — S __O-MQDM i | = | .
o014 HSINIZ - ... 1.._.......7... R.y.w.. i 3 P 2 ..v.”., mu.l.. ..L_H ....Iu _ || | R uas, B i I g i, S W, R s R O b e e ) o074 HSINIZ vuﬂmn.wm. s Hh_-utﬂ . -rH,r e H wunﬂ o I ) m.
e Il s = - el %
%O.O_NM ANOD3S e X | %oom_u__ aNooas
i
0- g2l .0 - €2l -
y wooda=shr (I 2000 9292 e = O EEs. 00 900t 'y = s 0 s 4 WOOT4 asiHL _.
|
O - PEL .0 - ¥EL —
¥ 20074 HLwMOS WoOoTd Hisnos
| |
60£0°60€°026 1o} O- Grl o- &l - Ll LR
SLLYS IM ‘eJed o 400 | 400 T

19041 sbuluuad z66

BB Rouaiadya

STSUBDSelepua|og 7 ve
w

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY

| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHINVD W04
INISNOO NILLIIM HOIdd FHL LNOHLIM
V1va ¥0 SONIMvYd IHL 40 3Isn3d
ANY NO¥H ¥O ' "ONI ‘TYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLINVO NVHL 43H10
INOANY A9 3AVIN SNOILVH3LTY €O | § ... L L L L L
SIONVHO ANY NOH4 ONISIHY 3SN343d : ]

WM_M@M%MQ_ MWMOHMMO wmwmmmmm __m_.__._r_u”_ 9L/L “m._<om_ —.m{ O-l = .9l/L “m._<om_ _‘m{
HIHINYO ATOH ANV AdINWIANI OL I T Ry T T  p—
ey ames o onewoTae | o (A ALANOD) 1STIM AT LXT vl T o o 1ova AoxTLXT DN / vl |

ONISS3ISSOd S3ILdVd dO Aldvd

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD
HIHLNVO WOHH NOISSINY3d NILLIIM
d3SS3ddXd IHL ONINIVLEO LSHid
1NO HLIM 3NNV 4O WHO4 ANV

NI ALMVd QYIHL ANV OL ganoissv | | ... .0 - .00l
¥0 031dOD 'GIONVHO 'a30NdOo¥dId : =OO 14 dIHSINIZ bt fmRaitaT R oliess o T o T T T T T T e T [T T T s i o o ST .0 - .00l
_m,___m_ m_oo ..__..m_<n_ .r_m_u_z <o m__w_%xm q m_m_._%m__.__.\_,.\_., Z |%mew = WM@WMW e = .. e I ; . et — SOO14 AIHSINIZ Wumsiuwunr!iﬂm!i#,. ....1 7 .Emifim#..slﬂ e el Fie v IR f..rwhﬂu!ww#ﬁmmmmﬁ.wﬂ. T T quﬂ.wwmﬂrdﬂuﬂ.ﬂwwﬁrﬁm_ﬁﬂmdmﬁm!m
"IHINVD 40 AL¥3dOMd 3AISN10X3 ST | HTEE = - RSt | R e chatoas) BT e S
B | (]| AN BN B Al AN NN L | e J#Fshﬂ. i NN AR | | L | N BN BN N NN EN - R Jlln..u - l.l.r.W. ..,.||. o g ry p g x Al = |wl."I- 3 = o . I B e gt s ¥ = = E
m_l_._- mm< WOZ_\/\/(W_D WWWIF .- . . e R ] — _ e e e e e R . _u.llﬂ..a.nl. r =S —— I+I — EEE = e = o s ‘ulnbl.nw.l. ot . ﬁlIMm.l ..-I-.. 5 rr._u e .“.pﬂu. ...‘-u?ud.ﬁ k. ; ..1< e .Ju Tl ....|.|N‘. s =" ...-.-_.uu & ...Iu-.ulﬂuu ...u..ﬂ.ul..._uﬂ.-». .m..pmﬂ-m g = - ..HF-.
ANV NOIS3IA SIHL "a3aAy3sIy m._._n_o_w__ L : O -l _ _ — _ T T = i. . ; _%ﬂw\\ e e }.%M‘WMW -.HIHL..!H iﬁnhﬂhmr%&“‘ﬁrhﬁl i rM-ﬂ...#um‘.r R ﬂiﬂ!}&g h e
TV "0202 ONI  ‘IYNLOILIHOYY = B SR - —_— e S _ S T e e e e e e e b TE e e :
2AOOT4 ANODIS e e ey e e = O - Zll - e
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLNVO LHOIMALOD ﬁnwn.mllﬁ_h_ﬂr NooailaNor= SeET
]
woo leyuelb - mmm gg/'9Z1° 026 O - el —
xe} v/ivoevoee ey | . AOOTH aAIHL .0 - €Tl -
L06#G UISUODSIAA ‘YSONYSO . 2OOTd AAIHL
V peoy Auno) gzgy T 1N BN NN NN Ll m i
*OU| ‘9.1Nn32931Yydly & O FEL “, - L
NP 100E DWW/ = O - PEL B
uolLlonJlisuo) dayjuen = AOOT4 HLANOL

O - &l
400% 1

INd G€:90-¥ 020¢/./¢

WIGL-LL-| | Buisueq 0L01-61\ubisa@ £0-70\21N08)YDIY #0\g dseyd Buisue BuInT IS 0101-61\s108(01d\:Z




- o
TVLLINGNS dNS 02"t S mawes awe mawes o iE

TVAOUddVY ANV MIIATY H3OVNVIN LO3rodd TVAOUddVY ANV MIIATY 4INMO

Ag paxoay)
Ag umelq

INd 9€:90-¥ 020¢/./¢

0L0L-6L JequnN jo8foid

\\\\\\\

SNOISIATA

WIGL-LL-| | Buisueq 0L01-61\ubisa@ £0-70\21N08)YDIY #0\g dseyd Buisue BuInT IS 0101-61\s108(01d\:Z

<
(1]
-
=
>
Z
-
S
=
Z
»
=
,..d
=S

e
[T
=
S
=
=
S
A
=
=
S
TA

60£0°60£°026 I8}
SLLYS IM ‘@Jed @
19041 sbuluuad z66

BB Rouaiadya

SHNVISIN=TQIESI'EICERL 1 |

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY
| NOILONYLSNOO ¥IHINVD W04
INISNOO NILLIIM HOIdd FHL LNOHLIM
V1va ¥0 SONIMvYd IHL 40 3Isn3d
ANY NO¥H ¥O ' "ONI ‘TYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLINVO NVHL 43H10
INOANY A8 JIAVIN SNOILVHALTV dO
SIONVHO ANY NOH4 ONISIHY 3SN343d
40 S1SOO ANV S33d SAINYOLLY
ONIANTONI  1SOO {0 ALITIEVIT
‘SIOVAVA ANV WOY4 SSITNHVH
Y3IHINVYO @T0H ANV AdINWNIANI OL
3349V ‘LVWHO4 V1vd JINOHLOF 13 HO
H3dVd NI ¥IHLIHM ‘SONIMVYHA ISTHL
ONISS3ISSOd S3ILdVd dO Aldvd
"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD
HIHLNVO WOHH NOISSINY3d NILLIIM
d3SS3ddXd IHL ONINIVLEO LSHid
1NO HLIM 3NNV 4O WHO4 ANV
NI ALYdVd QdIHL ANV Ol d3aNOISSY
H0 @3I1d0D ‘G3IDNVHO ‘a30NA0Yd3N
3g Ol 1ON Y TI0HM
NI 4O L¥Vd NI ‘SONIMVYA ISTHL
"HIHINVYO 4O ALd3d0dd 3IAISNTOXT
JHL Elc)s SONIMVHA  3S3HL
ANV NOIS3A SIHL 'dIAYISTY SIHOIY
TV "0202 ONI ‘IHNLOFLIHOYY |
NOILONHLSNOD H3HLINVO LHOIHJAJOD

woo leyuelb - mmm gg/'9Z1° 026
Xe} v/1.v'9¢v' 026 19}
106G UISUOISIAN ‘USONYSO
Vv peoy Ajuno) Gzey

*JU| ‘@4n3jdajlyday
uol132NJ13Isuo0) Jayjuen




TVLLINGNS dNS 0¢-}1-¢ uBisaq

[ |
FJUNLVNOIS a1lvd FJUNLVNOIS alvda
o ®< s1jewayog

TVAOUddVY ANV MIIATY H3OVNVIN LO3rodd TVAOUddVY ANV MIIATY 4INMO

MM Ag paxosy)

M_N> L1z © EMHM Ol = .Z/L ‘FINDOS _ OW{ Ol = .,2/L ‘FTIVOS _ OW< I = _ OW<
NOILD3IS Noigl O | ANI Nolsl b 1INOAd NOIS INTFWNNOWI 8 |

0L0L-6L Joquny jo8foid

. ° . ° ‘ ‘ - ‘J ‘V‘J DO.R® N ~ - -
WO- L =.,2/1 FIVOS _ O W ﬂ WO-L =2/ FTVOS _ O W ﬂ ; R lﬁ SNONNILNOD ONIDHOANT Gt (€) B N — - 1 L
. e - . T | 1
NOILVANNOL F704d ov1d4l L IONId aav e Lanoo!l L e e e . s © | |
! ‘D0 .9l ® Saiva ONIDHONITN G I T T
7 7 7 7
. NOILYANNO4 ——
AIHANG TTOLOVTL /M AIIA « | | — |
1.0 01 1.0 01 ﬁ ﬁ 7
WOLLOE # dOL ONIDHONIT St (€) 7 _ 71 | |
aiva | # R SNILOOZ OLNI ANZG .ZL ANY IND WO =l .._y. .my
pre L T OINI ,9€ ANTLXT D0 .9l @ STvolLxIA 7 7 S S 7 7
SNOISIATY i T e G o anos Aisuones | | > >
ENTES Hl i N A R .0 -0l
ANNO=S ONILHOIM — 7\‘ | |
aLvd | — " 7 7 W@ - L JF-Z
ldoddns Tagis —— | [—— g ul | |
N ] -
s39aaM LR S h@m_m,; Iavao
ONIMEINZD 13FIS — | = 7 7
— E—o—F_F
(ATZINYATYS FOND || T - M\hjw R R
91) IATTIS NOLLVANAOL ——— S w SNOILOMALSN! HTANLOVANNYIN 2T Sy : :
— A [ AITTIVLSNI INOLS AFANLDOVANNYIN = = ! ! N
ANYS Aad dgavl —— T |—F - C|® - — o ONITING HOLYIW OL S S
e 9 (OST¥ TTWM 4O SANZ LY TTONY) ‘ INOLS AIFANLDVAINTIN. — )
FLIFADNOD Isd 000e — | -y IVMOT AIAONLLY "ININaIgNG . = = A
— e R wosovia-aonay || || [ Y 100 918 aH NALIL SR R ONATING HOLVIA R S S | R
T e S LA (TIvE-E DILSarYW) L] NOSHWIS vIa .8/5 /M TTONY — OL ANvg INOLS — - - : S — - : N o B e——
Qowmwmwﬂ A LT R ST IOVINOW v lerany —— \ TI3LS ATINIVA B/E X ¥ X ¥ 7 m m mm D D< -
ANACHNOD | ¢ dAL 'S3AIS HLOG - SA40ANYLS = —T
OO LM 2 ANNOS OLNI NIARNA 38 OL 51504 : U | A Ty MO S LT LN 2N Saiva - - T )
® T ) >
: At - @ | e ALINNININOD INIAI'T HOINAS O
s ‘aFAINOT2 SV SHOHONY TITLS vz = | = s
— SSFINIVLS /M SNV INOLSTWI W€ IR SRS = = N
| IR P D0 .9l © ONIDHOANIT P
a TaAL HIAAYT TV INOZINOH I
1 ) SN (5 ‘STIMOA NOILYANNO= OL adiL INOLSTNI
R 00,9l LY Saiva TvOILIA G
/M dINOS AZLN0aD MWD .ZL
SNOILOMALSNI AIANLOVANNYIA 2T R o o o
AZFTIVLENI INOLS AFANLOVINYIN S = Mm_wﬂ__mmm MNMMM L= ]
MW =N D0 bTO - o) S - - - - - -
B w \\A/ »//_ //J\\\\\\\“% Sdo THELS SSATNIVLS = = = : ) oNIa1INg HOLVYW OL g = = o= — = = = = g — = g — = + - — = - _O
N 7//////%%/////////////%7//////// 7 o 4 W INOLS AFANLOVIANNYIA ] [WV) L B — ] u,‘ PN ,‘u ; “, = - = A — =, uw ™ — = ‘u - = _ - ‘u - =
%D INOLSTNIT S . E = N —— S — - : R —
en i asn Mz o ¥ INOLETNI e

a2 INOLSINIT \

WO-L = /)L FFIVOS _ OW<

Ok = P NS _ OW{ Ob = /L FNDS % WOl = /LTINS % Z<I_& MOQI_“_ Dm _l_m .V
STTVM AN Jovalvol L 'AFTZ LNOAL FJovavol 9 NOILD3IS TIvM daHs! & oo

9
‘S1ITLNO AWOIAZLNI (T) ANV LH2IT aolrad NI "sood .0 - .0
1 LHOIT aoadiXa ZAdNT2ONI Ol AOLOVALNOD Tv2lall2o3a 13 | | ¥ v
0O - & O -9l WW/€ Ol - vem \4 «Z/L T-g.p/€ 0l
Aood IvLIW ALV INSNl H.Oo-L X .0-€ 1 , , ._ 3| ﬂ
T q ]
(AZLVINSNI) WOOA AvIHHIAO .O-L X .O0-9L
. "ONINZJO LSTaivaN SIS :
\‘ AL ENOLS CFANLDVANYIA anis Nl ANY STTYM 40 ANg Howa 0'6Y
1¥ INO "D'0O .ZE ® SHOHONY
\ \ MI=DOS aH NZLIL .9X.Z/L /M
\ F— Jsva AILOVaWOD .9 ‘NIW HIAO / AaNZLsv4 =ITvaES TS NO ILv1d
N N = ' IMXF' LM 9X9 /M av1S "DNOD .9 TS AOOM Az Lyl FaANSSTld AWOOA AVIHAIAO H .O-LX.0-b
T N N T D0 .9l ® SANLS AOOM 9XT
_ — N (HSINIZ % Tvl) TTvMAAA WX, IdAL .8/G (A3 ¥YaY) ONIHLYIHS 9SO (ZE/SL
N - FINVG WOIVA ATOd SATAYT (T) dvaM oNIadTIing HO0d V1IN
& I axvog INIWID v .8 NOILVYTINSNI LLvd bl-a 1VOD HOLVADS 2V LaONW MOTIOH "H .O-L X .O-€
s \ " ‘D0 .9l ® SANLS AOOM 9XT HLYT V1IN QIZINVATYD
/ (A3 YY) ONIHLYIHS G50 Ze/Sl a3ad ONILLIS 2V 1H0ONW
, ; dvaM oNiaTing FIAO INOLS ATANLOVINNYIN
ONIdIS aavoga / / ONIAIS axvod INIWID *KN1GWISSY TTYM INOLS AFANLDOVINNYIN
INIWID 9XL s I XIaWassy T1vM
s | \ WINL axavog LNIWID 9xl T
/
114405 WANIWTY
/ ] e
y 20 &#T ® SISSAAL 1 ATHOINI A
| AOOM AF=NLDOVANNYIN U \ FHGINIA-TRc A2UINT
, AN (HSINIZ # IVL) JAD X, AL .3/S ]
- 0000000000000} AIINAVE BOMNA ATOL
-  — ————=— = ONIXVIG SNl NOILYINSNI L1vd bl-a

=  — @ - = — F7d4va NOILYINSNI
= AL STTONIHS LIvhdow VIDSYAENG @XT NO WIDSYA
= WANINATTY AFHSINIIZ i

~
W0 - ¥C

_— ———— — — dAL 'STTONIHS LIVHASY

ALINNINNOD ONIATI'T HOINHS

0 - .0€

smoseiz ot O bY
JANSOTONT 2FLsdmnal ||

SRR aauaadea

STRUBISaJlopua|og 7 =)
w

0 - T

“ONI ‘HNLOILIHOYY @ - 3l TTIYM ONIM MOTag avis O- 7 W7ol
| NOILONYLSNOOD HIHINVO WOMHA FLIADONOD AINISDIHL
INISNOO NILLIMM HOIdd IHL LNOHLIM —= - —— - —
Viva ¥0 SONIMVHAd 3IHL 40 Isn3ad
ANY INOY4 HO ‘ "ONI ‘TUNLOILIHONY |
NOILONYLSNOD J3HLINVO NVYHL 43HLO

JINOANY Ag 3AVIN SNOILYYILTY HO -
SIONVHO ANY WOHL ONISIYY 3ISN343d ) ;
40 SISOO ANV S334 SAINMOLLY WO-L = p/L FTIVOS _ 0 W{ PN oo e e |
ONIANTONI  1SOD do ALITIGVIT 1noao ‘Wwollog @ aNag & /M :
‘STIOVIAVA ANV INO¥d4  SSTTWHVH “ _Im & —\LD D m . . v TYOILNIA S (1) )
YIHLNVO QTOH ONV  AJINW3ANI  OL MMDmQI-—OZM M gl WOl = /L FFATINDS W{ /
3349V ' LYINYO4 Y1Vd DINOYLOT13 ¥O \
¥3dVd NI ¥3FHLIHM ‘SONIMVYYA ISTHL u _ N
ONISSISSOd S3ILYVd O AlYvd ]

"ONI ‘FYNLOILIHOYY / NOILONYLSNOD )
YIHLNVYD WO NOISSINYTd NILLIMM S1TANOD OLNI
@3SS3™dX3 3IHL ONINIVLEO 1SHId N azlageNl sliog 3Lvo s
1NO HLIM H3INNVIA HO INMO4 ANV h - : F

NI ALYVd QMIHL ANV OL QINOISSY LNIO™ G115 OL NWOD L T \ .
¥0 d31d0D ‘dIONVHD 'd30NA0HdIY 1V INIOF NOISNYx2 __m\_/ || P s S 5| NG OIN S __fo _f_

¥ - €

8/€8-C

v
T o-€ 0 -7 O - € 0 -7 O - € O-r P/EeEQ-,

8/ Ll - €

|
|
|

7

i

dg Ol 1ON ¥V FTOHM 336 '@v1s ZLTAONOD .9 % W9E 51604 azani
NI ¥O 1¥vd NI ‘SONIMVHA ISIHL A .

"UIHINVYD 4O ALd3dOdd IAISNTOX3
JHL Eie\v SONIMYYA 34S3HL .
ANV NOIS3A SIHL "'d3aAd3s3d S1IHOI™E -

TV C0202 CONI - ‘IYNLOILIHOYY |
NOILONYLSNOD HIHLINVD LHOIJAdOD —

O -3

SNONNILNOD 2ava o

0 -9

i

-

T TT= B

Jova AILOVANOD .9 'NIW AIAO
' IMXE LM 9X9 /M av1S “ONOD .9 — |

SNOILDONALSN| 2AF2ANLDOVLAINYIA
234 AITTVISNI
INOLS AFANLOVIANNYN

i i

0 - T

T =

LHOIZH TN STROD AF T4 LNowo TS SNOLS AFANLOVAINYI W9

HLIM TVDILAIA DO OF LV avd ax (1) —

| 8 T Y

N

-
ANIOr NOISNYdXa .Z/L N ~—— TVANLOMALS 335 Wooda oL
1oo4 234 /L GvIS HOLId

L N

~—

woo"Iayued MMM 88/1'9Z1'0Z6 1
Xe} ¥./'921'026 ‘19
L0617 UISUOISIAN ‘USOMYSO
V peoy Auno) Gzgy

*JU| ‘@4n3jdajlyday SEERECE R eI
uol3dNJIISUO) JaYyjuen S A N R

FLVD NO dadvds ATIvnoa ONIDYAE TYNODVIA TXT
S1INDNd AVAID AANIVLS 9XI ONIJOD IVLINW daHSINIZZ 2

HLM 23T7I¥N AOOM dzLvIal @XxT

™ 9NIHSV I WINIWTY

i D0 .9l @ diAls
[T ONIxNd a3l XT

| [

u# IVOILAIA D0 9l @ ONIDAOINITA
TVINOZIFOH IdAL SSMAL HLIM NND @ —

FJ/€0-T

AOLIVALNOD Tveodela
FLSYM TWOOT HLIM SINIWZAINOZA

3715 FANSOTONT ARIA
le———— ONIHLVYIHS ZLON

dOOMATd aalvaall (Z/L

Tt

arios 1no=s 'sNONNILNOD
Salvd G (T) HLIM Wvag dNog .8 —

—
7
4
|
M
]
/
/

1

_.I/ € AOTOD 'ONdIS
AAVOga LNIWZD JvT1.@8

0 -8
0 -9

gL ON>IDOTE AOOM TXT addlval
HLIM vald J1vo 13315 3anl TXT ONIATING HOLYW OL STIVIRELYN HSINIZ

SAONIH FLVD
51504 13315 daLNIVd 9X9

[

N

WO - |Z/‘

Favao MOT13g FLFADNOD
W3l NIL9E /M VL .O-9 daivT10d
azaTid FLFADONOD 13315 9

o'6v

INd 8€:90-¥ 020¢/./¢

WIGL-LL-| | Buisueq 0L01-61\ubisa@ £0-70\21N08)YDIY #0\g dseyd Buisue BuInT IS 0101-61\s108(01d\:Z




| _
laquinu laays

0T0Z/LL/T

dN

el

NOISIATY 3dYISANYT 0¢0c-8¢-¢

| <<

uonduosap

LV09'6EE° /1S FLOL'6EE LG d
0¥88+ IW N3|seH
peoy najseH LT

"DNI ‘S

190uidua

98/+'97+0T6 ) ¥//+'9T+0T6 d
LO6FS [M “YSOINYSO
V peoy AJuno)) czgt

DONITINIDILIHDYY | NOILIDNYISNOD
DNIUIHINYD
12p[ing udisep

6507698 /+8 ) 5107698 /F8 d
LOZ09 7] ‘uojsueny
1920S 3A0IT) /79

"DNI ‘SALVIDOSSY WXSAL
Aq paredaid uBisap adeospue)

6vFF /g6 TIE d

11909 11 ‘03edy)

*1(] aioys ae] "N 089
7717 ‘dnouny Aspuy

1adojanap / 1oumo

1VLLINGNS dNS

NV1d 3dVOSANY'1
1VNLd3IONOD

aWweu leays

uebiyoiyy ‘Ayuno) weybuj ‘diysumo] ueipuapy

ssalppe 1aloid

1seJ swie yeuueH

aweu palod

‘377 ‘dnolo Aspuy

J2UMO /Ul

sioul||| ‘uoisueny
199.)S SA0ID) /79
SIjeIosse

]

A9 d34Vd34d SNV'1d 3dVYOSANY

NMVT d33s/dos

M3A UOINE] / |uojune] elpaw X shxe]
MIA SHOIH / ISYJIH, Eelpaw X snxe |
oewng juelbel{ MoT-019) /| MOT-019) edljewole snyy
alidsieamg AluaH a1 / INL AJusH ST, eduIbaia ea)
eabuelpAH ybipwi / ybijswi. elenoiued eabuelpAy
e|libiayjo4 Ay Junojy / Ay junoly  Jofew ejjiBiayjo4
poombBoQ ojeH AloA| / AL .oleyjieg. eq|e snuio)

W .PZ 92IS wWnwiulw ‘DD / 999

SENYHS NOILVANNOA

wnuIngiA YMeYO / IMBYO . lIPOOMYING X wnuINgIA
ysnghizaqueld BUIp payY / NL J93]9S "N'T. WNgoju} wnuingiA
oewng juelbel4 MoT-01) / MOT-0I5) Edljewole snyy
NegaulN [IAea a1 / WL Aen euuoq. snijosndo sndiesosAyd
A11agheg a1udg JoA|IS 7 _uoUo . edlueAjAsuad eouA
Jadiunp usaio Bag / U3l Bag . sIsuauIyd sniadiunpe

W .PZ 92IS wnwiuiw ‘D0 / g%g

d304049 9NYHS d3.13INId3d

a|ddeqeln Jawwng Uelpu| / JawWWng Uelpu|. X sn|gp|

[9ZeH YoUAA PUOAH SsiWold plouly / asiwold pjouly. elpaulIsiul X sljsweweH
uloymeH ssajuioy] / siwiaul, jjeb-snio snbagjeln

poombBoq ALayD uelj2uio) / Sew snuio)

UnJ-iNAl phgpay uisised / sisuspeued siola)

NUNIL-NINA YouIg JaALY / elBiu ejnjog

AliagaolAlag @auel||lg uwniny / 2auel||lig uwniny . elojipuelb X Jaiyoueawy

14,9 JO '[ed ,G¢ 9<Is Wwnwiiuiw ') / g84d
S3341 TVININVNHO

Jadiunp moly an|g ; moly an|g. eueluibiia sniadiunp
Suld SHYAM / snqodis snuld
Suld Jaquurn / sljixal} shuid
20nIdg UBIQISS / BYLIOWO B3I
2onidg Aemiop / salge eadld
4 ,9 92ZIs wnwiuiw ‘9D / 999
S33HL NIFHOHIAT

921 Jleyuapley / INL .PI0S uwniny . eqojiq oByulo
uspuI JaAis Bullisls / Bulels . esojuswo) eljiL
W3 / peasawoH . X snwin

89,67 92zIs wnwiulw ‘99 / 939
S334l 3AvHS

w|3 joljed / JoLjed X snuwin

Yeo alyp dwems / 10joalg shatonpd

AuagyoeH puejobeolyn / puejobesiy), si|eluapIiofo sija)
1sh207 AsUoH aullAyS / BulA)S . soyiuedel eisiips|D

B2 ,G°¢ 9ZIs wnwiuiw 99 / 984
S3341 101 ONIMEVd

W3 UOZLIOH MaN / .UOZILIOH M3aN. X snwijn
92l1] aue|d UOPUOT UoleWEe[DXT / NL .2[2JID UOLOJ . BI|OJLUS2E X shuele|d
221193400 AYonuay| / ossaldsg . edlolp snpe[RouUWAD
a|dey aze|g uwniny / AL _Paisyar. lluewaal) X J1aoy

‘82 ,G°Z 9zZIs wnwiuiw ‘99 / g%g

S3441 13341S

3T1NA3HOS LNV'1d 1d30NOD

(Q3AINO¥d STIHL AdONVYO €) '4'S€€LT
V™Y ANNOYD "4'S 000°L/33HL AdONVO INO WNWINIA
‘SININTHINOIYH ANVISI OVYS-3A-1ND NI ONIdVOSANYT

(@3aINO¥d S3THL 133HLS 21) IOVLNONL "471 059

"4'1 0G TVYNOILIAAV AY3IAT L+ 'STIHL ¥ ='471062< IOV.INOYL 13341S

'SINIWIHINOIY 33HL 133HLS

(Q3AINO¥d "4'S F00€'8) '4'S 0¥S'¥ = 00Z X 0b/.2C
d3dINd3Yd S30VdS 0L/'4'S 002

(Q3aIno¥d 9v) S33HUL 'Sy =T X L'¢C =0L/.2C
S30VdS 0l/33d1 ¢

‘SININIHINDIY IdVIOSANVYT LOT ONIMEVd

'SINIWIHINDFY IdVOSANY1 LIS
‘SININIFHINOTY IdVOSANYT ALIS

ey

dA79 HYNNVH




Traffic Engineering
Associates, Inc.

Michael D. Samuels 917/627-6028 FAX: 517/627-6040
Attorney at Law . PO Box 100
414 W. Burr Oak Drive Saranac, Michigan 48881

Arlington Heights, IL 60004

February 3, 2020
Dear Mr. Samuels:

Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. (TEA) conducted a trip generation analysis for the
proposed senior housing development which will be located on Hannah Boulevard in
Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed development will consist of 121 units of independent senior apartments,
67 units of assisted living and 42 memory care units, for a total of 230 units. The
project site is located at the east end of Hannah Boulevard. There are two (2) proposed
driveways on Hannah Boulevard.

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

For this analysis, trip generation rates were derived from the ITE TRIP GENERATION
MANUAL (10th edition). The ITE trip generation rates for Continuing Care Retirement
Community (Land Use Code 255) were selected as representing the 230 units for the
site. The ITE description of Continuing Care Retirement Community is as follows:

A continuing care retirement community (CCRC) is a land use that provides multiple
elements of senior adult living. CCRCs combine aspects of independent living with
increased care, as lifestyle needs change with time. Housing options may include
various combinations of senior adult (detached), senior adult (attached), congregate
care, assisted living, and skilled nursing care—aimed at allowing the residents to live
in one community as their medical needs change. The communities may also contain
special services such as medical, dining, recreational, and some limited, supporting
retail facilities. CCRCs are usually self-contained villages.

It is projected that the proposed development will generate 45 vehicle trips during the
AM peak hour, 47 vehicle trips during the PM peak hour, and a weekday (24-hour) total
of 552 vehicle trips.




. AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Land Use Size In | Out | Total | In | Out | Total Weekday

Continuing Care 230
Retirement Community, Units 29 | 16 45 18 | 29 a7 552
Land Use Code 255

FINDINGS

In accordance with the guidelines set forth in “Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies, A
Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,” sponsored by the Tri-County
Regional Planning Commission and the Michigan Department of Transportation, if a
proposed site is expected to generate at least 100 directional trips during the peak hour
or at least 750 trips during an average day, a traffic impact statement is required. If
the traffic generated by the site is expected to be between 50 and 99 directional trips
during a peak hour, a traffic impact assessment shall be required.

Using the guidelines, neither a traffic impact assessment nor a traffic impact statement
would be required for this development based on projected volumes.

If you have any questions, please write or call.

Sincerely,

Heather L. Zull, P




MARX
WETLANDS
LLC

2990 Lake Lansing Rd.
Suite 201
East Lansing, Ml 48823
Tel: 517.333.8833
Mobile: 517.898.4187
e-mail

gmarx@marxwetlands.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section

1.0 INTRODUCTION

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

3.0 METHODS

4.0 RESULTS, FINDINGS, AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Existing Structures, Materials, and Adjacent Land Use
4.2 Topography

4.3 Vegetation

4.4 Significant Tree Inventory

4.5 Wetlands

4.6 Special Flood Hazard Area

4.7 Floodways

4.8 Water Bodies

4.9 Soils

4.10 Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability
4.11 Slopes Greater than 20 Percent

412 Wildlife

5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDICES

[.  Figure 1: Site Location Map
Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map

Figure 3: Pre-settlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 map

Figure 4: Township Wetland Map
Figure 5: National Wetland Inventory Map
Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map

Figure 7: Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability

Figure 8: County Soils Survey Map
[I. Tree Survey Results

P OOV 0VOAONTIOTDNWWNNDNN R =T

o

QO
aQ
(¢}



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Marx Wetlands, LLC (Marx) was contracted by Capstone Companies
and the Eyde Company to perform a natural features assessment for an
approximately 60-acre parcel in Meridian Township, Ingham County,
Michigan.

As part of a Special Use Permit Application, the Charter Township of
Meridian Department of Community Planning and Development
requires a “Natural Features Assessment,” which is to include “a
written description of the anticipated impacts on the natural features
at each phase and at project completion that contains the following:

a. Aninventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed,
or modified. Natural features shall include, but are not limited to,
wetlands, significant stands of trees or individual trees greater than 12
inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, water bodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines,
and vegetative cover types with potential to sustain significant or
endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.

C. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative
impacts.”

After obtaining site location information, Marx conducted desktop
information reviews, site assessments, a tree survey, and information
analysis in order to help address the Township’s natural features
assessment requirements. This report provides results of Marx’s
natural features assessment.

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The approximately 60-acre subject site (hereafter referred to as the
Site) is located along the east side of the Lodges of East Lansing
housing complex, on the south bank of the Red Cedar River, and west
of a residential subdivision in the east half of Section 20, Meridian
Charter Township, Ingham County, Michigan. Capstone
Companies/Eyde Company (Developer) is proposing to construct a
senior residential complex on the Site. The proposed structures and
parking facilities on this parcel will be completed in one phase. Prior
to site clearing and grading, soil erosion and sediment control
measures will be installed and will be inspected and maintained



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

during the construction project. All soil erosion and sedimentation
control measures will be removed upon completion of construction
and stabilization. Please refer to Figure 1: Site Location Map in
Appendix I.

The Site is +/- 60 acres in size and is currently vacant. It is bordered
by The Lodges of East Lansing, the Red Cedar River, a residential
subdivision, and a privately owned residential compound. The
topography of the Site is rolling, higher in the middle of the site and
lower on the south end and in the northeast corner. The Site contains
areas of planted pines, a large wetland at its south end, and areas of
open field and floodplain forest. Refer to the Figure 2: Aerial Imagery
Map in Appendix I.

3.0 METHODS

Marx Wetlands conducted a desktop review for the Site using existing
information and imagery, including the United States Geological
Service (USGS) topographic map, aerial photographs, Meridian
Township’s Wetland Inventory Map, National Wetland Inventory
(NWI) map, USDA county soil survey map, Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), and
the Township’s groundwater vulnerability map.

From November 19 to 30, 2015, Marx conducted an on-Site
assessment and a tree survey. The on-Site assessment consisted of a
site walkthrough to conduct a current and prior land use evaluation,
habitat type determination, habitat quality evaluation, preliminary
wetland assessment, wildlife observations, and floodplain or other
special concern observations.

The tree survey consisted of identifying the species, general health
status, and dbh (diameter-breast-height) of each tree on the subject
site with a dbh of 12 inches or larger, and to these affixing a uniquely
numbered metal tag and collecting a GPS location point.

The findings from the desktop review, site assessment, and tree survey
were combined to help interpret the subject Site’s natural features and
evaluate potential project impacts upon those natural features.

4.0 RESULTS, FINDINGS, AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Existing Structures, Materials, and Adjacent Land use
Other than the road end of Hannah Blvd, there are no existing
structures on the site.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Much of the land immediately surrounding the Site is already
developed. The nearest structures are Lodges of East Lansing
residential buildings just to the west. To the east is the Indian Lakes
Estates residential subdivision. South of the site is a large private
residential compound, and the Red Cedar River borders the site on the
north. Refer to Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map in Appendix I.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Photo 2. Flodplainfores at northeast art of site.




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Photo 3. Wh1te plnes in the planted tree area

DA L

Photo 4. Southern wetland and the ad]acent forest onthe slope.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

4.2 Topography

The lowest elevations on the Site are about 830 feet MSL, found in both
the large wetland to the south and the edge of the Red Cedar River to
the north. The highest elevation is about 856 found near the center
west part of the site. The Site is rolling, with relatively steep slopes
dropping down to the river and the wetlands at the north and south
ends of the site (refer to Figure 1: Site Location Map in Appendix I).

4.3 Vegetation

A vegetation assessment was conducted during the Site survey. Marx
found three distinct community types present on the Site. The north
central high part of the Site contains Field/Tree Plantings, which is
characterized by herbs, grasses, shrubs, with several stands of planted
pine. In its northeast corner is a Floodplain Forest in the floodplain of
the Red Cedar River. A similar but brushier floodplain forest lies along
the west boundary of the site along the County Drain. The southern
third or so of the site is characterized by a large Forested Wetland with
an adjacent mature forest on a slope. The number of identifiable
species was limited by the winter season, although the lack of deep
snow cover allowed identification of numerous species and did not
prevent an evaluation of the ecological stage and value of the two
areas. The species identified in these three areas during the field
investigation are provided in tables (refer to Appendix II).

The Field/Tree Plantings area is dominated by species which are
associated with disturbed lands in the Great Lakes region. These
include non-native species, invasive species, native species that are
tolerant of human land uses, and native pioneer species that normally
colonize land after activities are abandoned. Examples of these species
present on the Site include blackberry (Rubus alleghaniensis),
Tartarian honeysuckle (Lonicera tartarica), tall goldenrod (Solidago
altissima), black raspberry (Rubus occidentalis), wild carrot (Daucus
carota), switch grass (Panicum virgatum), panicled aster (Aster
lanceolatus), ground ivy (Glechoma hederacea), common plantain
(Plantago major), common buckthorn (Rhamnus cathartica), multi-
flora rose (Rosa multiflora), and common mint (Mentha arvense). The
trees in this area include the many planted white pines (Pinus strobus),
as well as box elder (Acer negundo), cottonwood (Populus deltoides),
and green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica) which were largely in poor
condition due to the emerald ash bore infestation.

The Vegetation circa 1800 map produced by the Michigan Natural
Features Inventory shows the Site to be part of an extensive beech-
maple forest that extended many miles southward from the Red Cedar



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

River (refer to Figure 3: Presettlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 map
in Appendix I). Prior to extensive land clearing these shady forests
were common on the flatter till plains of mid-Michigan. They often
contained a wide variety of tree species, such as sugar maple, red
maple, red oak, white oak, American beech, white ash, basswood, tulip
tree, walnut, and hop hornbeam. These forests were commonly cleared
to enable agricultural production, and it is likely that most higher
elevation part of the Site was cleared many decades ago for this
purpose; notice the lighter color indicating open land in the 1970 USGS
Topographic map (refer to Figure 1 in Appendix I). As twentieth
century commercial development began to fill in lands between East
Lansing and Okemos, the Site was probably eventually left idle due to
commercial property expectations and to the infeasibility of
continuing agriculture on a small scale. Whether the Site had been
used for hay or crops, the cessation of this use would have spurred
numerous plant species to colonize (or recolonize) from field edges
and the surrounding landscape. Along the way, numerous white pine
were planted. The resulting native and non-native plants currently
present are adept at this type of recolonization.

The Floodplain Forest areas are dominated by native hardwood forest
trees, and relatively weedy shrubs and groundcover plants. This
assemblage includes almost exclusively native species, with only the
occasional Siberian Elm (Ulmus pumila) being the exceptions.
Examples of the species present on the Site include red oak (Quercus
rubra), swamp white oak (Quercus bicolor), silver maple (Acer
saccharinum), cottonwood (Populus deltoides), hackberry (Celtis
occidentalis), basswood (Tilia americana), and black walnut (Juglans
nigra). Again, the Site was apparently once part of an extensive beech-
maple forest that extended many miles southward from the Red Cedar
River. Parts of the floodplain areas where the floodplain forests are
now may have been cleared for agriculture, but the many large trees
indicates that the frequent flooding of these areas made them
infeasible for agriculture, and the forests were largely left standing.
These areas were likely selectively logged and the wood used for many
purposes including building, fencing, and firewood. The changes on
this Site over the last two-hundred years have left a significant
remnant forest, with many of the maple, walnut, oak, hackberry,
sycamore, basswood and hop hornbeam trees in the floodplain forest
are probably directly descendent and/or residual from the original
floodplain forest in this location.

The Forested Wetland area of the site are dominated by native
hardwood forest trees typically found in such forests in southern
Michigan. The area is characterized by muck soils and these soils are



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

saturated to the surface much of the time. The dominant species in
this area include silver maple (A. saccharinum), red maple (Acer
rubrum), green ash (F. pennsylvanica), cottonwood (P. deltoides),
American elm (Ulmus americana), sycamore (Platanus occidentalis),
swamp white oak (), and hackberry (C. occidentalis). This area has
likely been relatively undisturbed for many years due to the high
water table and unstable soils that make in unsuitable for agriculture
or any type of construction. The relatively small number of large trees
in this wetland area is likely due to the unstable soils which provides
poor support to larger trees which often blow down in storms. This
area will remain undisturbed by the proposed activity on the site.
Adjacent to the forested wetland is an area of mature forest on the
slope that connects the wetland with the Field/Tree Planting area in
the middle of the site. This forested area contains many large trees of
several species, including sugar maple (A. saccharum), red oak
(Quercus rubra), black cherry (Prunus serotina), white oak (Quercus
alba), hackberry (Celtis occidentalis), and American beech (Fagus
grandifolia). This sloped area will not likely be disturbed by the
proposed development.

There are two small wetland areas the center of the site that lie in low
areas extending south and west from the Red Cedar floodplain, and
another small wetland in the southwest corner of the site. These areas
are more disturbed than the southern wetland area, and are
dominated by a less diverse assemblage of trees which are
considerably smaller than the trees dominating the large wetland.
These areas are dominated by cottonwood (P. deltoides), green ash (F.
pennsylvanica) and silver maple (A. saccharinum), and have sandbar
and pussy willow (Salix exigua and discolor), and silky and gray
dogwood (Cornus amomum and foemina) shrubs around the margins.
These areas have standing water in the middle of the depressions in
the spring and after large precipitation events, and dry out in the late
summer and fall. These areas will be likely be removed by the
proposed development which will require a wetland permit from the
Township.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

i1 . 4 y
<2 NIA { It ~K

Photo 5. Southern forested wetland viewing south.




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Photo 6. Small forested wetland in southwest corner of site.




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Photo 7. Area of mixed vegeation in Field/ Planted Tree portion of site.




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Development of the Site will require clearing most vegetation that is
present in the Field/Tree Planting area and in the two small central
wetlands. While no formal mitigation for vegetation removal has been
planned, traditional landscape grass, shrub, and tree plantings are
expected. The existing vegetation in the Floodplain Forest and in the
Forested Wetland will remain intact. Existing vegetation in the upland
areas, particularly some of the larger trees, may be incorporated into
the traditional landscaping to the extent possible.

4.4 Significant Tree Inventory

As part of the vegetation assessment, a tree survey was also conducted
in the non-wetland areas of the site. The survey included trees
considered “significant” or deserving special protection because of
their size, relative rarity, or historical importance. During the
inventory, trees with a diameter at breast height (DBH) (the standard
measure for tree size) of 12 inches or greater were located on the Site
and mapped. The trees were identified to species and their size
recorded (Appendix III). Results of the inventory identified 648
significant trees of 22 different species on the parcel. Of the 648 trees,
17 were larger than 30 inches in diameter, the largest being a
cottonwood with a diameter of 55 inches, and second a red oak
(Quercus rubra) with a diameter of 47 inches. Thirty six of the trees
had multiple trunks of varying sizes. One hundred seven of the trees
were between 20 and 30 inches and 428 were between 12 and 20
inches DBH.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Photo 8. Forested area near southern forested wetland.

4.5 Wetlands

Marx conducted a preliminary review for wetlands while on the Site. In
accordance with the Midwestern Interim Regional Supplement to the
1987 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual,
wetland are defined by the presence of three basic parameters: 1) the
presence of hydrophytic vegetation (plants adapted to living in
saturated soils), 2) hydric soils (distinctive soil types that develop
under saturated conditions), and 3) wetland hydrology (the presence
of water at or near the surface for a specific period of time). The above
parameters are virtually always inter-related and normally present in
wetland systems. Marx’s site visit occurred during relatively dry late
fall conditions. These conditions resulted in relatively dry conditions in
the small central wetlands, in the forested floodplain wetland at the
north end of the site, and the forested wetland along the drain on the
west boundary of the site. The large forested wetland at the south end
of the site exhibited saturated soils throughout most of its area.

Marx’s inspection of these wetland areas found a predominance of
hydrophytic vegetation in all of the areas. Delineations are not
typically conducted in late fall due to the onset plant dormancy in the
herbaceous vegetation, making many species difficult to identify, while
some senesce and are no longer visible. Some remain identifiable in
dormant form. Based upon this inspection, Marx believes the Site
contains six areas of wetland, as indicated above. This finding is
supported by the National Wetland Inventory Map, which show the
large wetland areas at the north and south ends of the site, but not the
small wetlands near the center or the narrow strip of wetland along
the site’s west boundary and by the Township’s Wetland Inventory
Map which shows all six areas. These include the floodplain forest
wetland in the northeast corner of the site, the forested wetland that
makes up approximately the southern third of the site, the linear
wetland along the drain on the site’s west boundary, and the two small
isolated wetlands near the the center of the site, and the forested
depression near the site’s southwest corner (refer to Figure 4:
Township Wetland Map and Figure 5: National Wetland Inventory Map
in Appendix I).

4.6 Special Flood Hazard Area

Flood Hazard Areas are those which are most likely to be inundated
during flood events. Flood Hazard Areas are regulated by local, state,
and federal regulations designed to reduce the damage to structures



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

during floods. The regulations apply to areas within 100-year
floodplains, which are defined by a one percent (1%) annual
probability of flood occurrence. These areas are mapped by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency on Flood Insurance Rate
Maps, or FIRMs. These maps were developed using flow modeling and
the existing USGS topographic maps. The modeling produces an
elevation associated with 100-year flood events, and areas below these
elevations are designated as the 100-year floodplains.

The FIRM for the subject area shows that a significant portion of the
Site is included within the 100-year floodplain, which means that it is
regulated pursuant to the floodplain regulatory statutes (refer to
Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map in Appendix I). Portions of the
floodplains of the Red Cedar River and Herron Creek occur on the site.
The Floodplain Forest at the north end of the site is within the Red
Cedar floodplain, and the Forested Wetland in the south part of the site
is within the Herron Creek floodplain. The FIRM shows the floodplain
elevation in the north part of the site to be 842 feet above sea level,
which the elevation associated with Herron Creek on the south part of
the property is 843. There is also a narrow corridor of floodplain
along the drain that runs along the site’s west boundary. When an
area is within the floodplain, a permit must be obtained to allow
construction within the floodplain, and the project designed to the
flood proofing standards that would minimize the risk of flood
damage.

Sometimes FIRM maps can incorrectly show areas of 100-year
floodplain. In such cases, a site’s topography can be surveyed using
modern techniques. When such studies show that the mapped
floodplain is above the determined flood elevation or that the FIRM is
otherwise inaccurate, this information can be sent to the National
Flood Insurance Program to obtain a Letter of Map Amendment
(LOMA) which officially changes the area included within the
floodplain. It does not appear that this site will require such additional
work.

4.7 Floodways

A floodway is the portion of the floodplain that is required to carry and
discharge flood waters during a flood event. They have more rapidly
moving water during flood events. They include river channels, upper
banks, and adjacent areas that effectively become part of the water
transit process during a flood. The FIRM for Meridian Township
shows that there are two floodway areas on the subject property, one
along the Red Cedar River and the other along Herron Creek. Both
occupy much of the wetland area adjacent to these watercourses. No



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

activities at the Site will have any impact upon these floodway areas,
nor will these floodway areas have any impact on development at the
Site.

4.8 Water Bodies

Streams, rivers, lakes, and many ponds are afforded legal protection
under a combination of Township, county, state, and federal
regulations pertaining to wetlands, flood prone areas, and water
bodies. Any filling or alteration of these areas would typically require
one or more permits from state agencies, county agencies, federal
agencies, or Meridian Township.

There are three open water bodies on or directly adjacent to the Site.
These include the Herron Creek, the Red Cedar River, and the drain
along the site’s west boundary that functions as a stream. Activities on
the Site are not expected to directly impact these water bodies or any
others.

4.9 Soils

The NRCS digital county soils map identifies the soils on the Site. The
map identifies six soil types: Houghton muck, 0 to 1 percent slopes
(11.7% of the site), Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6 percent slopes
(34% of the site), Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands 6 to 12 % slopes
43.3% of the site, Sebewa loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes (3.4 % of the
site), Urban land-Boyer-Spinks complex, 0 to 10 % slopes (1% of the
site) and Urban land-Fluvaquents complex (6.4% of the site).

(refer to Figure 8: County Soils Survey Map in Appendix I).

The Oshtemo Spinks loamy sands found in the higher upland parts of
the site, consist of well drained, moderately rapidly permeable soils on
outwash plans, and are formed in moderately coarse and coarse
textured deposits. Houghton muck, which is found in the large
southern wetland on the site, form in deep organic deposits formed in
stable wetland areas, and have organic material greater than 51 inches
deep. They are very poorly drained soils as are typically found in these
wetlands. Sebewa loam, also found in the southern wetland and in the
small wetland in the southwest corner of the site, is also a poorly
drained soil found in outwash plains. Itis a hydric soil, as is the
Houghton muck, and is typically found in wetland areas. Urban land-
Fluvaquents complex soils are found in urban area floodplains, and
typically include 55 percent urban land.

Site balancing, filling, and subsurface excavation activities will take
place within the limits of disturbance which are contained within the



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

areas of the well drained soil types. The wetland and floodplain areas
will remain undisturbed by the project. The most suitable soils will be
utilized on the Site during parking lot, driveway, and building
construction. Unsuitable and excess soil will be trucked to authorized
off-site areas.

Soil erosion and sedimentation control (SESC) measures will be
installed and maintained by the developer throughout the construction
period, as required by the State of Michigan, Meridian Township, and
the Ingham County Drain Commissioner, and will be removed once the
entire Site has been stabilized. These measures will significantly
reduce the possibility of soil erosion and the water transport of these
soil materials, which could cause the degradation of areas receiving
the Site’s stormwater.

4.10 Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability

Areas of groundwater vulnerability are those areas where the
hydrologic and geologic surface and subsurface setting makes the
groundwater more vulnerable to contamination than in other areas.
The 2005 Meridian Township Master Plan groundwater vulnerability
map shows areas identified as being vulnerable (refer to Figure 7:
Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability in Appendix I). This
map is based upon the aggregation of four different vulnerability
assessments or estimates. A small part of the subject Site falls within
one of the designated areas. This area is located in the southeast
corner of the site, within the large forested wetland that makes up the
southern third of the site. This area will not be disturbed in any way
by the proposed project. Therefore all construction activity on the Site
will be outside the bounds of Identified Areas of Groundwater
Vulnerability. Stormwater on the site will be collected and treated in
accordance with local regulations designed to protect water quality
and runoff volumes.

4.11 Slopes Greater than 20 Percent

Slopes of greater than 20% are highly susceptible to soil erosion which
can lead to sedimentation in other on and off-site areas such as ponds,
streams and lakes. On the Site, slopes steeper than 20% do not exist.
While slopes do exist adjacent to the southern Forested Wetland and
the northern Floodplain Forest, the slopes are less than 20%. Even
though the slopes are less than 20%, they will not be disturbed by the
proposed project.

The development project will observe the structure and grading
setbacks provided in Meridian Township ordinances. During
construction, the spoils piles will be removed. Any slopes created by



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

the project that are over 20% will be intentionally designed and
stabilized with appropriate landscaping materials. Soil erosion and
sedimentation measures will be placed and maintained in the areas
necessary to control any erosion that may occur during construction.

4.12 Wildlife

Evidence of wildlife presence has been observed throughout the Site in
the form of tracks, droppings, and holes, the amount of animal usage
being greater than in the surrounding areas as this is a large
undeveloped area with forest, field, and swamp areas surrounded by
urbanized development. Evidence of white tailed deer (Odocoileus
virginiana), eastern cottontail rabbit (Sylvilagus floridanus), gray
squirrels (Sciurus carolinensis), raccoon (Procyon lotor), opossum
(Didelphis virginiana), and paper wasps (species undetermined) were
observed. Squirrel evidence was mainly in the forested areas. Deer
usage seemed to be throughout the site. One freshly dug animal den
which was found may be used by raccoon or woodchuck (Marmota
monax), though this was not certain. It is highly likely that the Site also
serves as foraging or resting ground for numerous other insects and
birds, such as Monarch butterflies (Danaus plexippus), honeybees (Apis
mellifera), robins (Turdus migratorius), mourning doves (Zenaida
macroura), and black capped chickadees (Poecile atricapillus).

Overall, the fauna at the Site can be viewed as urban and suburban
wildlife. Urban and suburban wildlife species are common across the
Midwest. Urban and suburban wildlife are mainly generalists species
that have wide tolerance in diet and behavioral flexibility. They are
very unlike threatened and endangered species, which are almost all
specialized and intolerant of numerous human disturbances. Some
urban and suburban wildlife species have become so common that
they are actually reducing the populations of less common native
species (e.g. raccoons that feed on human food waste and garbage are
believed to be a factor behind a widespread decline in turtle numbers).
Therefore the decline in certain very abundant wildlife species should
not be assumed to bear negative consequences. Wildlife will be
displaced to a degree by the proposed development, but even after the
development is completed, some of these common urban and
suburban wildlife species will continue to use the Site.

Photograph 11. Animal usage of Site. Here a possible raccoon den in
the east Tree Line. Photograph 12. Animal usage of Site. Here is
an old paper wasp nest on a fallen branch.

5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

The proposed Site was reviewed for remnant and existing natural
resources and features. The Site contains three major habitats and 4
small wetland areas. The Field/Tree Plantings habitat occupies most
of the high upland area in the middle of the site, the Floodplain Forest
occupies the northeast corner of the site adjacent to the Red Cedar
River, and the Forested Wetland habitat is in the southern third of the
site. The Site is vacant, but contains the road end of Hannah Boulevard.
The Site apparently contains six wetland areas, two water bodies, and
contains areas of floodplain and floodway. The Site is rolling, a result of
its glacial moraine past and location adjacent to the Red Cedar River.
The soils are likely original to the Site, and are upland loamy sands and
muck soils that formed under what was once a beech maple forest, and
under the large wetland area. The upland portion of the Site was once
a small portion of that upland forest which covered thousands of acres,
but was cut down to make way for agriculture. Within the last few
decades this particular Site has been surrounded by residential and
growing commercial development.

Wildlife that use the site are common in the urban and suburban
landscape and their populations won'’t be significantly affected by the
development of this site. Vegetation on the Site includes planted pines,
native trees, and relatively common native and non-native
groundcover species. The loss of vegetation due to development on the
Site will occur, though the species lost are very unlikely to include any
that are locally rare (i.e. rare county-wide) or state threatened and
endangered. There are numerous trees on the Site which are in good
condition, including both planted pines and unplanted hardwoods. The
only significant remaining natural heritage on this Site appears to be
the original topography, soils, and the relatively undisturbed areas of
the floodplain forest and the southern forested wetland. The
commercialized land use context, vehicle access, and economic
valuation might limit some design options, but for this Site the primary
likelihood of preserving natural resource values within the developed
would be associated with incorporating some of the larger or native
trees into the landscape design, and thereby preserving them on the
post development landscape. The proposed development will not
impact the larger wetlands on the site, nor will it encroach into the
floodway of the adjacent waterways.



Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

Should you have any questions regarding this or any other matter,
please feel free to contact our office at (517) 898-4187.

Sincerely,

Marx Wetlands, LLC
T
/i/<</ ’
Z /7\ um?(

Gary F. Marx, Ph.D.




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

APPENDIX

Figure 1: Site Location Map

Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map

Figure 3: Presettlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 map
Figure 4: Township Wetland Map

Figure 5: National Wetland Inventory Map

Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map

Figure 7: Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability
Figure 8: County Soils Survey Map

APPENDIX II
Vegetation Lists and FQA

APPENDIX III
Tree Survey Results




Eyde Company January 25, 2016
Hannah Farms East

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.




ik =
[Fe arentwood it ﬁ_
= a
S e
: =8 3
2 & =
o = = i
= £ irhal Dr Slesncitne
p = g
= ] Reckwood Dr
{ i1
=
o = Mansfield Dr
= g
=
a Z |HOP
e §
=N
e Campus-Hill Apartments
]
(43)
Foods For Living =
Redte, . ’
“dar River N
e aa’ pve®
H.“I'Er Terrace ~ g
M Red ©
Sparrow Michigan The Lodges of <
Athletic Club = East Lansing " E 2
& = g
=] g =]
o = =)
= 1]
S Hanhah Blvd I =
o = &
5 o b
= [
(i) é@ &-ﬂ{
Eyde Phwry -
< A%
» Glenwood Apartments 2 &5?&_
=
] ==
wl =1
g
N-lg.cllﬂ D o 4
= =
e i
E o
E Mt Hope Rd E Mt anc Rd E I‘-.-Hane Rd E Mt Hope F
I =
w - : E
&, " Bemytree Apariments Flgu re 1. Locm‘in ON MAP %
rah ”E'I?-'.i‘.l' Wood g LE
= "oy = L =] o
S ’ #
= 5


Gary
Polygonal Line

Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 1.  LOCATION MAP

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text


=gy I
sk .
=
5 |

i
&

Red Cedar River

r.o
s

5

- 33-02-02-20-401-005 &

. EYDE CONSTRUCTION CO
0 HAMMAH EAST LANSING 485623

: T i .'; ..".:
aky 45 A L1
s L B ! ] - P
1l.l 7 Lt | % - 7 .'-:4" - .
. A Il & g F
b R ] ¥, i - sk
e i T ] r - -
o % ";1 L 1 oy £ -.-.q '&' - A
5 g Ny £ AT s oy o L L Pk
o e = _:‘_"'.'.,I -I\._"_'.'I"}. A P
¢ . p \1.-\.' LR
| [ P
¢ 4 . N | “:.. & 1
g - i L '
s : i
o i
i it :
- e Yo {F A
1 _1-:1*.; hr-' '1' "] "’
9 '
. A o :
L T o : %
@ | T B3
= - =
';iT Ih- 4 ] %
. = I e ; i
- ’ -""'I L_ - r 2 -:1& §
T ~ g |
i A ” “TR] -5
= i e
e : "m, 1 :’t! iy & 1‘?
g - i . 'y 1 s g
x . - ‘,-‘ ol e L I'{j&
y - -] =
£ v g I?r" 1 ‘F = "‘" Ly L
4 S A Iy v “1 Fle=



Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 2.  Aerial Imagery Map

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text


UoISIAIQ SHIPI!M
Aiojuanuj ZO —mZ MI—l xu $921n0S9Y |eunjeN jo Juawiedaq
sainjeaq

|eanjeN 4 ALITSYIAINDN mza
uebiyaIy ueBIlyosIN

A1VIS NVOIHOIN

By

‘dey jeubig A ‘Buisue ‘Alolusaul sainjes |eineN uebiyoip

'9G81-9181 sAaaing @010 pueT

[eiBUaS) 8y} wol) pajaidisiu| se ‘uonelabay Juswsasald s,uebiyolp
'G661 ‘(uononpold depy [eybiq) ‘Jebwiuos ' ‘ule1eq MO

‘Rojzyds ‘o' ‘“Aiobain-abueld 7 ‘Yoouoy “|N'Y ‘PlesgIeT "y’ L ‘ulsny ‘g’
‘(uonelaidiayu] depy) usnyos "AA'Q 48UI0D WY ‘uelysey IN'd ‘@dud T1'd
‘qeey gl ‘WeH "1'g ‘SlIdSM 'V'H ‘Heqly 'v'd “r'd Jswo) :304N0S

21U0D |eWOjUO) Waquie] :uonoslold dep

— ——— —— ——— ——
siejowoy g L 9 g v € z ! 0 !
[ |
SoIN ¥ € z ! 0 !

dVIN SIHL NO LN3S3Hd IdAL ¥IAOD ANV =N

1S3H04 MVO JLIHM-3ANId ILIHM |

1S3404 INId d349-INId ILIHM |

1S3404 AOOMAYVH Q3IXIN-INId ILIHM [
AMIVed 1aam .| A

1S3404 ¥va3o-di4-3oNnyds [
HSYVIN LNIOHINI/JNVMS GNYHS | A
ANNA ANVS
NERMVEEINEN

NIYYv9 ANId-MVO .
1STHOH AHOMOIHMVO L | A
90g/OTIISNN . | A

1S3H04 MVO-INId AaxXIN I
VNNVAVYS MVO d3axIn N
1s3dodMvo aaxin gk | A
dINVMS AOOMA¥VH aaxin Bl A
dINVMS d34INOD aaxin ] A

HIA/VILE A
1S3404 ANId AIY-ANId MOvr |

1S3H04 HOHIg MOTIIA-MOOTNIH 777
1S3404 INId ILIHM-MOOTNIH |
ANVISSVYHO
dAVMS ¥va3o I
NIHHva Mvo MovIa .| A
dANVMS HSY MOov1a | »

1S3HO4 MOOTNIH-ITdVIN ¥VONS-HO3IIg |
1S3404 I1dVIN ¥vONS-HO3ag . | A

1S3404 HOYIg-N3dsvy Il

puabar

1661
Aiojuaau| sainjea [einjeN uebiyoip

Weqly v "@ pue Jswo) 1 'd Ag

sAaAINg 92110 pue [esauan) ay) jo uoiljejaidiaju] uy
uebiyoi ‘A3unon weybuj
JO 008 L ©2412 uoljelabap

llzdn

2
)
%

Y
) -e!N
—ll._r

328 NEL ‘ A5
og z¢e 45 '. G¢ Ve 32 GE
Sz
9z 62 0e el q s % 6¢
1 U i
7 AL - 1 Ll g1 £y <UD 9l :
)
d
il |
il 0l / €l b 0l
l\.‘
....-‘!'.-
M JZY'NPL ] AL L . Le
__ w ve c ze o ve 2e
| |
[ : |
M 9z 12 8¢ 63 g:i C e, /2 |
_ . 1 _ , z
'h" ON “.. “.. | _ _7
E’ w_\ | __“_ “.“ ,,, , :
Y

0

¢

de|Al 008T "SI [ANIA/UOI1e1939A JUBW|1I8SaId "€ 24n3I

(@)
AN

(q2)
N

=
o
~

.
.
-

MZH'NEL
23

7]
N I~ b &
N N (92
(e8]
N
(®) A
&\l (48]

(99)
N
SN
N
o
-

—
B
©
~
.
-—

—
—
: -.

™

©
ON‘)
AN N~
(Q\] N
=
N

o
.



Gary
Rectangle

Gary
Typewritten Text
SITE

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Line

Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 3.  Presettlement Vegetation/MNFI cs. 1800 Map

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text




Gary
Polygonal Line

Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 5.  National Wetland Inventory/DEQ Wetland Map

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text

Gary
Typewritten Text


(IY14) den @1ey 2aueansu| pooj4 "9 aJn3i4

OB BLUSLOSW MMM Je 2103S dely Poold VINTL a4} 393y sdew pooy weiboid X NZON
souBInsSU| Poo|d [euolieN Jnoge uojjewlo| Jonpold 3saje| au} 104 3oolq S}
3y} uo 9)ep sy} 0} Jushbasgns spew Usag dABY ABW YOIYM SjusWwpuswe 1o < C|md INVHONDIOAML
sebueyo 303}l Jou saop dew S|yl dUI-uo 1IIN-d4 Buisn pajoeiixa sem & avaHMoudY
| ‘dew pooj paoualisjel arode sy} Jo uoipod e Jo Adoo [elowo ue si syl | % X

B
- INOZ 3 (v)_f78

7 m
Loud8y 1uourdSeury AouaSoury [e1opay va\O VM
m o
o <
=] Q
- 14 R—
0002 6 1SNINY A e X ANOZ g
03SIAZY dYW HSNOMIL 2
Q
<
4 5100 £6009 -
YIGWNN TINYd - ALINDNIWOD
ud FovuEad Wane
&
%)
N
any1 30 z
£v8 5 2 s
Z ; 7 b
3 g2el X s = s AINIMRTEoN
(Q3INIHd LON STaNVd HOd XIANI dVIN 338) V% W = NZON &) o] z o
E d Ny < > - &
S1 40 §1 TINVd z ) e\ 2 T =
Nu WY
ALNNOD WVHDNI NMOHS LON S Wrgs
aNv, 3dim 1334 001
“Z<meUHE NVHL $S37 SI VA e
NVIADIIW SIHL NI AVMJOOT
’ w I [Ty @
J0 JIHSNAOL YHLYVHD L < m,>>\§
d 3 0 1 V 3INOZ = < wa |
& . 40 WHYIS
W 31¥Y 30NV wz__z wﬂ ...“ : ooy
o]
w o
& 3 \ 5 2lg |2
P .| X INOZ z R
HQ JHMONIID L i |
Q Wd |5
WY4304d JINVUASNI Q0014 TVNOILYN _E%% A m m ooozpzs o
| 3V _aNv13Sod 2|2 (S
Noz % 2 - |z
7 Z«wao
_ s I s LY N
1334 oo0L 0 000L e e
3TvIS ALVAIXOHddY “a REERTA)
NV 4d
% dyag | ITIATEAN
o
a 1s
MR INYIHIGNIL



Gary
Polygonal Line

Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 6.  Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)


FIGURE 7: Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability

SRV A
N ﬂ’xm Jlﬁ 5@
RN T 1 W B VR

Chapter 7: NATURAL FEATURES

12
e
E

5
H

/

PH EITY UEA L,

il

W

Map 7-3

GROUNDWATER VULNERABILITY

ai

e Road
h
T
oo
e]
o
Jolly Road

Somce: Ingham County Health Department (1987

| ' |[SUBJECT SITE | o
o : ; w0y
s e, o 8 S

PEGYH Boyuy pecy BE&|cD

+

Figure 7. ldentified Areas of

Source of Groundwater
Vulnerability Information
survey and Monitoning Program

Wlichigan State University
L= Soil Conservation Service, TTSD A

Groundwater Vulnerability

B scuthwest Michigan Groundwater

4 Eeclk Consultants on Site Studies
B Monoghan and Larson,

0 025 0.5 075 1 Miles

Mlay 2003

Page 98 Charter Township of Meridian MASTER PLAN


lpowell
Callout
SUBJECT SITE

Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 7.  Identified Areas of
Groundwater Vulnerability


Soil Map—Ingham County, Michigan
(Hannah Farms East)

708570 708930
42° 43'21"N

42° 43'21"N

Red-Cedar-River:

4733070

usjiuedIyoin
[ &

4732800

42° 42'57"N e : 42° 42'57"N
708660 708750 708840 708930 709020 709110

Map Scale: 1:3,600 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Figure 8. County

Map projection: Web Mercator Comer coordinates: WGS84 Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84 S O I I S u rvey M a p

Natural Resources Web Soil Survey

1/19/2016
Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey

Page 1 of 3



Gary
Typewritten Text
Figure 8.  County
Soil Survey Map


AaAIng |l0S aAjeladoo) [euoneN
Aamng |10S oM

¢ Jo g abed
9102/6L/1

8DIAISG UOHEAISSUOD e
——

S92IN0SdY [ednjeN  VAS|

‘JuapiAe aq Aew salepunog jiun dew Jjo
Bunyiys Jouiw swos ‘) nsal e sy ‘sdew asay) uo pake|dsip Aiabew

deuw Joj 19ays dew yoesa uo 9|eoas Jeq ay} uo Ajal ases|d

sainjea I9jep\p

Jods o1pos

diis o spis

sjoyyuls L

jodg papoi3 Ajaianasg

"
&

jods Apueg o"a
punoubyoeq ay) wouy siayip Ajgeqoid paznibip pue pajidwod
aJ9Mm sau| 10S 8y} ydiym uo dew aseq Jayjo 1o ojoydoypo ay | j0dg aulles +
‘a|ge|ieAe jou ejeq  :paydeibojoyd aiem sebew [euse (s)ajeq dosoinQ o0y #
-1961e| 10 JIsjeN\ [eluudied O
000°0G: | sojeas dew Jo} (smoje aoeds se) pajage| aJe sjun dew 10S JS1E\ SNOBUESOSIN e
G1L0zZ ‘gl dog ‘gl uoisiap  :ejeq ealy Aaang Auenp 10 suiy e
uebiyoiy ‘Aiuno) weybu|  :easy ABAING [10S ’
Aydelbojoyd |eusy . dwems Jo ysiep .__umk
*MOJaq palsi| (S)a1ep UoISIaA ay} punoJByoeg "
O se ejep payied SOYN-YASN Y} wolj pajesausb sijonpoud siy MO|4 eAe] ¥
‘palinbal a1e eale 10 92UB)SIP JO suone|nd|ed SPEOY 18001 lypuen &
a]eindoe aIow JI pasn aq pjnoys ‘uoiyoafoid o1uoo eale-jenba siaq|y speoy Jolepy Jods Ajoreso .
ay)] se yons ‘eale sanuasald jey) uonosfoid v “eale pue aouelsip somno
suolsIp 1ng adeys pue uonoalip santasald yoiym ‘uonosfosd oY SN 1d [oAeID oy
J0]edla|\ gaAA BY) Uo paseq ale >m>._3w |I0S g8 8yl woldy QO_\,_ sAemybiH ajesiou| s uoissaide pasoD mu
(268€:9Sd3) 10)e2IB|N GO (WSYSAS BjeulpIoo) siey L 10ds Aein w
Aob-epsn-solu-Aaainsjiosgam//:dny TN ABAINg |10S gapn uonepodsuel)
90IAI9S UOIJBAISSUO)) S92IN0SaY [enjeN  :depy Jo 82in0S ud mouog [l
S|eue) pue sweans
‘sjuswainsesw mnomolg ]

sainjead juiod |e1oadsg

salnjea aul |eoadg -
'9|e0S pa|le}op dJ0W B Je UMOYS Uaag aABY P|N0d Jey} S|I0S Yo o switod un dew 11os a
Bunseluoo Jo seale |jews ay} Moys jou op sdew ay] -juswaoe|d ) saurm yun dep 1o o
aul| J10s Jo Aoeindoe pue Buiddew Jo |ielop 8y} jo Buipueisiapunsiw j0ds JoM hgh
asned ueo Buiddew Jo ajeos ay) puokaq sdew Jo Juswabiejusg A suobAjod yun de s
jodg Auo)g Auap W siog
"9|eas siy} je pijea aq jou Aew dej |10S :Bujutepp o )
lods fuois - ¥ (10V) 188301U] J0 BOIY
‘008'GL:} Je paddew aiam |QY JnoA asudwod jey} skaains [10s ay | ealy |lodg = (10V) 3sau23u] jo AIY
NOILVINHO4NI dVIN aN3O31 dVIN

(yse3 swue4 yeuuey)
uebiyoiy ‘Ayuno) weybuj—deyy 10S




Soil Map—Ingham County, Michigan

Hannah Farms East

Map Unit Legend

Ingham County, Michigan (MI065)
Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI
Hn Houghton muck, 0 to 1 percent 10.5 22.7%
slopes
otB Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 124 26.6%
0 to 6 percent slopes
otC Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 15.7 33.9%
6 to 12 percent slopes
Sb Sebewa loam, 0 to 2 percent 5.9 12.7%
slopes
UeB Urban land-Boyer-Spinks 0.4 0.9%
complex, 0 to 10 percent
slopes
Uu Urban land-Fluvaquents 1.5 3.2%
complex
Totals for Area of Interest 46.4 100.0%
USDA  Natural Resources Web Soil Survey 1/19/2016
==l Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey Page 3 of 3



Tree Survey Data - Hannah Farms East Site

Scientific Name
Juglans nigra
Juglans nigra
Juglans nigra

Tilia americana

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana
Juglans nigra
Juglans nigra

Acer saccharum

Prunus serotina
Quercus alba
Quercus rubra

Quercus macrocarpa

Quercus rubra

Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra

Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra

Tilia americana

Acer saccharinum
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Ulmus pumila
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharinum
Fraxinus pennsylvanica

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Prunus serotina

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra

Acer saccharum

Prunus serotina

Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra

Prunus serotina

Prunus serotina

Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra

Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Acer saccharum

Prunus serotina

Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra

Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana

Prunus serotina

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Tilia americana

Acer saccharum

Prunus serotina

Acer saccharum
Juglans nigra

Prunus serotina

Common Name DBH
Black Walnut 16
Black Walnut 21
Black Walnut 16.5

Basswood 14
Black Cherry 14,14,14
Basswood 18,13.5,13
Basswood 17
Basswood 13,15,15
Basswood 125
Basswood 16
Basswood 17,13,12
Basswood 20,18
Basswood 175
Black Cherry 12,145
Basswood 16.5
Basswood 13,12
Black Cherry 12
Basswood 12,18,18,12
Black Cherry 15.5,15.5
13,22,22,12,21,20
Black Walnut 205
Black Walnut 22
Sugar Maple 135
Black Cherry 14
White Oak 20
Red Oak 215
Bur Oak 22
Red Oak 14
Sugar Maple 15.5
Red Oak 235
Black Cherry 15,16
Red Oak 20,16.5
Basswood 145
Silver Maple 42
Cottonwood 15
Cottonwood 14
Cottonwood 145
Cottonwood 17.5
Cottonwood 12
Cottonwood 14
Cottonwood 13
Cottonwood 18
Siberian Elm 205
Cottonwood 12
Cottonwood 19
Cottonwood 12
Sugar Maple 22
Sugar Maple 16
Sugar Maple 255
Sugar Maple 15.5
Sugar Maple 17.5
Sugar Maple 21
Sugar Maple 25
Sugar Maple 19.5
Sugar Maple 18
Silver Maple 20.5
Silver Maple 27
Silver Maple 29
Silver Maple 22
Green Ash 20
Sugar Maple 16.5
Sugar Maple 28
Sugar Maple 145
Sugar Maple 18
Sugar Maple 225
Sugar Maple 20.5
Sugar Maple 19
Sugar Maple 18
Sugar Maple 135
Black Cherry 135
Sugar Maple 16
Sugar Maple 24
Red Oak 26
Sugar Maple 16
Black Cherry 125
Sugar Maple 13
Red Oak 26
Red Oak 14
Black Cherry 14
Black Cherry 14
Black Cherry 135
Red Oak 18
Black Cherry 15.5
Red Oak 14
Red Oak 13
Sugar Maple 26
Sugar Maple 16
Sugar Maple 20,16,20
Black Cherry 18
Black Cherry 16
Red Oak 25
Red Oak 15
Sugar Maple 125
Red Oak 15.5
Red Oak 16
Red Oak 19
Red Oak 16.5
Black Cherry 30.5
Basswood 18
Black Cherry 30
Basswood 13
Basswood 16.5
Basswood 20
Sugar Maple 12
Black Cherry 19
Sugar Maple 15
Black Walnut 15.5,16.5
Black Cherry 12,5

Condition
G

T TN TOOOOTOOOTOOONOOTONOOOOOOOOOOOONOOOTOOOTOIONOOOTOOOOOOOOOONOOOONOTOOOOOOOTONTOOOO O

Multiple

2L

TOTALS
Sci fic Name Common Name
Acer negundo Box Elder
Acer rubrum Red Maple
Acer saccharinum Silver Maple
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Celtis occidentalis Hackberry
Fagus grandifolia American Beech
Fraxinus pennsylvanica Green Ash
Juglans nigra Black Walnut
Ostrya virginiana Ironwood
Pinus strobus White Pine
Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine
Platanus occidentalis Sycamore
Populus deltoides Cottonwood
Populus tremuloides Quaking Aspen
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus alba White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa Bur Oak
Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Tilia americana Basswood
Ulmus americana American Elm
Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm

LARGEST TREES
Scientific Name
Populus deltoides
Quercus rubra
Populus deltoides
Quercus rubra
Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina

MULTIPLES
Multiples
Total Multiple Stems
Total Stems 12"dbh or Greater

Common Name
Cottonwood
Red Oak
Cottonwood
Red Oak
Silver Maple
Sugar Maple
Red Oak
Red Oak
Green Ash
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Red Oak
Red Oak
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Black Cherry
Black Cherry

95
648

Count

OO TOEOTOTNOOOOO M



110

Acer saccharinum Silver Maple
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Acer negundo Box Elder

Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Juglans nigra Black Walnut
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus alba White Oak
Acer saccharinum Silver Maple
Celtis occidentalis Hackberry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Tilia americana Basswood
Tilia americana Basswood
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Fagus grandifolia American Beech
Tilia americana Basswood
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Ulmus americana American Elm
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Fraxinus pennsylvanica Green Ash
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Ulmus americana American Elm
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Acer saccharinum Silver Maple
Acer saccharinum Silver Maple
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Fraxinus pennsylvanica Green Ash
Tilia americana Basswood
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus alba White Oak
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Acer negundo Box Elder
Acer negundo Box Elder
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Tilia americana Basswood
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Ostrya virginiana Ironwood
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Tilia americana Basswood
Acer saccharum Sugar Maple
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Tilia americana Basswood
Tilia americana Basswood
Tilia americana Basswood
Fraxinus pennsylvanica Green Ash
Tilia americana Basswood
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Tilia americana Basswood
Fraxinus pennsylvanica Green Ash
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Prunus serotina Black Cherry
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak
Quercus rubra Red Oak

Quercus rubra Red Oak

18,15
17
15.5

20.5

18.5

225

16.5

27.5

17.5

PO OOTNOOTOOOOOTOOTONONONONONOOONOONOTIOTOONONOONOOOTOTOONOONOOOONOOOOOTIONONONONONOOOOOOONOONITONONONONOOOTOOONOONONOGIONOONOOOOOOONOOONOOOOO"TDTO O G



221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243

245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274

276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294

Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Prunus serotina
Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharinum
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Prunus serotina
Tilia americana
Celtis occidentalis
Prunus serotina
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Quercus macrocarpa
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Juglans nigra
Juglans nigra
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Prunus serotina
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Tilia americana
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Tilia americana
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Quercus bicolor
Quercus bicolor
Quercus bicolor
Quercus bicolor
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Fraxinus pennsylvanica

Red Oak 16.5
Red Oak 13
Black Cherry 19
Silver Maple 12
Silver Maple 17
Red Oak 14
Red Oak 15
Red Oak 18
Red Oak 17
Box Elder 12
Box Elder 12
Box Elder 13
Black Cherry 18
Box Elder 145
Black Cherry 12
Black Cherry 12
Black Cherry 13
Black Cherry 14
Red Oak 235
Red Oak 19
Black Cherry 125
Black Cherry 15
White Pine 12,5
Box Elder 16
White Pine 12
White Pine 13
White Pine 15
Box Elder 13
Box Elder 15
White Pine 16
White Pine 13
White Pine 13
Box Elder 12,13,12
White Pine 185
Box Elder 26
Box Elder 12
Box Elder 15
White Pine 15
White Pine 17
White Pine 13
Box Elder 14
White Pine 14
White Pine 13
White Pine 14
White Pine 14
Red Oak 185
Red Oak 28,20.5,21
Black Cherry 18,16
Basswood 15.5
Hackberry 15
Black Cherry 23
Basswood 15
Basswood 14
Bur Oak 22513
Green Ash 12,14
Basswood 14.5,12,13,13
Basswood 12
Black Walnut 155
Black Walnut 17
Green Ash 15
Box Elder 20
Black Cherry 14
Black Cherry 26
Cottonwood 13
Cottonwood 20
Cottonwood 25
Cottonwood 23
Cottonwood 19
Cottonwood 13,18
Cottonwood 25
Cottonwood 12
Black Cherry 25
Black Cherry 25
Green Ash 12
White Pine 13,12
White Pine 14
White Pine 12
White Pine 145
White Pine 14
White Pine 16
Black Cherry 20,12
White Pine 15
Box Elder 15
White Pine 145
White Pine 16.5
White Pine 14
White Pine 15.5
White Pine 18
White Pine 12
White Pine 16
Black Cherry 12
Box Elder 17
Basswood 13
Box Elder 13
Black Cherry 13
Box Elder 20
Green Ash 14
Black Cherry 12
Black Cherry 13
Box Elder 15
12,12,13,13,1
Green Ash 22
Cottonwood 14
Cottonwood 46
Swamp White Oak 17
Swamp White Oak 26
Swamp White Oak 25
Swamp White Oak 15
Box Elder 12
Box Elder 15.5
Green Ash 27

TTOOO0OOOOTOOOOTONONNTOONONONONOONONOONONOONONOOOOTOTOOONONOOOOOTTITITOOIONONONONONOONOOONOONONOONOOOOTNOOOOOOOOONOIONOOTOOOOOOOOONOOOOOOOOOO G

2=



351

411

Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Quercus bicolor
Populus deltoides
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Quercus rubra
Populus deltoides
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Celtis occidentalis
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Populus tremuloides
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Prunus serotina
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus sylvestris
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Prunus serotina
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Quercus rubra
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Tilia americana
Quercus rubra
Celtis occidentalis
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Quercus bicolor
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus bicolor
Quercus rubra
Quercus bicolor
Quercus rubra
Populus deltoides
Quercus alba
Prunus serotina
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Acer saccharum
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Acer saccharinum
Quercus rubra
Acer negundo
Acer saccharum
Tilia americana
Celtis occidentalis

Box Elder
Box Elder
Black Cherry
Box Elder
Box Elder
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Swamp White Oak
Cottonwood
Green Ash
Green Ash
Red Oak
Cottonwood
Green Ash
Hackberry
Green Ash
White Pine
White Pine
Quaking Aspen
White Pine
Box Elder
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Box Elder
Black Cherry
Box Elder
White Pine
Box Elder
White Pine
Black Cherry
White Pine
White Pine
Scotch Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Box Elder
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Black Cherry
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Red Oak
White Pine
White Pine
Red Oak
Red Oak
White Pine
White Pine
Basswood
Red Oak
Hackberry
Basswood
Basswood
Green Ash
Green Ash
Basswood
Basswood
Basswood
Swamp White Oak
Basswood
Basswood
Basswood
Red Oak
Red Oak
Red Oak
Swamp White Oak
Red Oak
Swamp White Oak
Red Oak
Cottonwood
White Oak
Black Cherry
Red Oak
Red Oak
Red Oak
Sugar Maple
Red Oak
Red Oak
Red Oak
Red Oak
Silver Maple
Red Oak
Box Elder
Sugar Maple
Basswood
Hackberry

135

135

135
135
12
13
14
135
125
12
12
14
13
15
13
28,27
12
12,5125
14
13
295
135
19,17,17,13
12,12
15
18,15
18
13.5,12,13,13
13
12
25
27
16
20
47
19
19
16
21
35
215
38
315

OO0 TOOOOTOOOOOTONOOOOONOOOOITIONONONOOOOOOOOOONOONOOOOOOOOOONOOOONOOOOOOONONOONOOOOOOOOOOONONOONOOONTOOOOTOTIAONATIITONONOOOO O O



Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Platanus occidentalis
Acer saccharum
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Quercus alba
Acer saccharinum
Tilia americana
Celtis occidentalis
Celtis occidentalis
Acer saccharum
Tilia americana
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Celtis occidentalis
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Platanus occidentalis
Quercus rubra
Acer saccharinum
Acer saccharinum
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Ulmus americana
Ulmus americana
Ulmus americana
Populus deltoides
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Acer negundo
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Acer rubrum
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Ulmus americana
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Ulmus americana
Fraxinus pennsylvanica
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Acer negundo
Populus deltoides
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Prunus serotina
Tilia americana
Tilia americana
Juglans nigra
Populus deltoides
Quercus rubra
Populus deltoides
Prunus serotina
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Acer negundo
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Populus deltoides
Acer saccharinum
Prunus serotina
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus

Red Oak
Red Oak
Sycamore
Sugar Maple
Basswood
Basswood
White Oak
Silver Maple
Basswood
Hackberry
Hackberry
Sugar Maple
Basswood
Red Oak
Red Oak
Hackberry
Red Oak
Red Oak
Sycamore
Red Oak
Silver Maple
Silver Maple
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
American Elm
American Elm
American Elm
Cottonwood
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Box Elder
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Red Maple
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
American Elm
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
American Elm
Green Ash
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Black Cherry
Black Cherry
Black Cherry
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Box Elder
Cottonwood
Box Elder
Black Cherry
Box Elder
Box Elder
Red Oak
Red Oak
Black Cherry
Basswood
Basswood
Black Walnut
Cottonwood
Red Oak
Cottonwood
Black Cherry
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Box Elder
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Cottonwood
Silver Maple
Black Cherry
Box Elder
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Box Elder
Box Elder
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine

215
16

15
13
24

49,14
19
155

18
15
2
13

28,12
15

195

13,12

14.5
12
15,15
125

16
15.5

135

20,17

135
125

14.5
15

24
145
16

14
14
235

OO0 TOOONONOONOONOOOOOOOOOONONONOOOOOOONOONONOIONOOOOOOOOOOOONOOOOTOOOOOONOOONOOOOOOOTTOOOOONOIOOONOOOOONOOONOONOGTTOHOOTOOO G



554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589

Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Populus deltoides
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Quercus rubra
Quercus rubra
Acer saccharum
Populus deltoides
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Acer negundo
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Pinus strobus
Acer negundo
Prunus serotina

White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Cottonwood
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Red Oak
Red Oak
Sugar Maple
Cottonwood
White Pine
White Pine
Box Elder
Box Elder
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
White Pine
Box Elder
Black Cherry

15
13
14
12
14
13
12
15
14
12
12
135
12
15
12
15
12
13
16
14.5

24
13
12

15
12
14
12
12
13
13
12
12

12

TTOO OO0 O



MARX
WETLANDS
LLC

3309 Platt Road
Ann Arbor, Michigan
Mobile: 734-478-8277

e-mail

bg.marxwetlands@gmail.com

August 28, 2018

Erick Friestrom
Kebs, Inc.

2116 Haslett Road
Haslett, M1 48840

Re: Wetland Determination & Delineation Report: Hannah Boulevard
Section 20, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Dear Mr. Erick Friestrom:

Pursuant to your request, Marx Wetlands LLC conducted a wetland determination
and delineation for an approximately 30-acre property for the above-referenced
(“Project Site”). The Site is located directly east of the dead-end of Hannah Blvd,
approximately 0.10 miles east of its intersection with Eyde Parkway in Section 20
of Meridian Township (T4N, R1W), Ingham County, Michigan. The intent of this
determination is to provide a report of the character of any wetland areas within
the subject parcel and an opinion as to the possible jurisdiction of the Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and/or local governments over
wetland areas identified on-site.

The wetland determination was performed in accordance with the Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality Wetland Identification Manual (2001), the
Northcentral-Northeast Manual to the 1987 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland
Delineation Manual. The delineation of any wetland depends on three basic
parameters. These parameters are: 1) the presence of hydrophytic vegetation
(plants adapted to living in saturated soils), 2) hydric soils (distinctive soil types
that develop under saturated conditions), and 3) wetland hydrology (the presence
of water at or near the surface for a specific period of time). The above
parameters are virtually always inter-related and present in wetland systems. The
wetland determination consisted of desktop review of available background
documentation and mapping followed by a site visit performed on August 8, 2018.
A review of the findings is provided below.

Site Characteristics

Based on review of aerial photographs and the on-site visits, the Site contains
primarily undeveloped land, consisting of areas of upland open fields, scrub-shrub,
forested, and wetland. Mowed paths were observed scattered throughout the
Site. Upland scrub-shrub and forested areas were identified in the central portions
of the Site. The Red Cedar is located along the northern boundary of the Site. The
Site is within a largely commercial and residential region of Meridian Township,
Michigan. The Site is bounded by undeveloped land to the north and south, and
off-campus student housing to the west, and single-family residences to the east.

Cover Type Descriptions

Upland herbaceous species found in the open fields include orchard grass
(Dactylus glomerata), common milkweed (Asclepias syriaca), smooth brome
(Bromus inermis), Japanese hedge-parsley (Torilis japonica), common primrose



August 28, 2018
Hannah Blvd (EYDE Property)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
Page 2 of 6

(Oenothera biennis), bluegrasses (Poa pratensis & P. compressa), Queen Anne’s
lace (Daucus carota), big bluestem (Andropogon gerardii), wild-bergamot
(Monarda fistulosa), purple coneflower (Echinacea purpurea), sunflowers
(Helianthus spp.), and goldenrods (Solidago altissima and S. canadensis).

The upland, scrub-shrub and mixed deciduous forested areas contain the
following species: white avens (Geum canadense), ebony spleenwort (Asplenium
platyneuron), white vervain (Verbena urticifolia), bluestem goldenrod (Solidago
caesia), beggar’s lice (Hackelia virginiana), penn sedge (Carex pennsylvanica),
orchard grass, Virginia creeper (Parthenocissus quinquefolia), oaks (Quercus alba,
Q. macrocarpa, and Q. rubra), black walnut (Juglans nigra), white pine (Pinus
strobus), box-elder (Acer negundo), sugar maple (Acer saccharum), black cherry
(Prunus serotina), cottonwood (Populus deltoides), scattered with basswood (Tilia
americana), American elm (Ulmus americana), bitternut hickory (Carya
cordiformis), trembling aspen (Populus tremuloides), Siberian elm (Ulmus pumila),
and ash (Fraxinus spp.) trees. Common native and non-native shrub species
include common buckthorn (Rhamnus cathartica), Eurasian honeysuckle (Lonicera
spp.), staghorn sumac (Rhus typhina), blackberry (Rubus allegheniensis), and black
raspberry (Rubus occidentalis). Refer to the enclosed Photographic Log.

Wetland Determination & Delineation

Eight (8) wetlands (Wetlands A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H) and the Red Cedar River
were identified within the Site and/or along the site’s perimeters. No ponds
appear within the Site. Refer to the enclosed Wetland Sketch.

Feature Name | Wetland/Watercourse Type Regulatory Status
Open water " . e
Likely MDEQ & Township Regulated; within
Wetland A (ponded)/Emergent/Scrub- 500 Feet of Red Cedar River
shrub
Wetland B Emergent/Scrub- Likely MDEQ Regulated & Township Regulated;
shrub/Forested connected to Red Cedar River
Emergent/Scrub- Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; > 5 acres
Wetland C L -
shrub/Forested in size & connected to off-site watercourse
Wetland D Forested Likely MDEQ and Township N9n-3egu|ated;
isolated and < 0.25 ac in size
Likely MDEQ Non-Regulated; isolated and < 5
Wetland E Forested ac in size; Likely Township Regulated: > 0.25
acre in size
Wetland F Forested Likely MDEQ and Township N9n-3egu|ated;
isolated and < 0.25 ac in size
Open water Likely MDEQ & Township Regulated; likely
Wetland G (ponded)/Emergent/Scrub- connects to Wetland C off-site and would be > 5
shrub acin size
Likely MDEQ & Township Regulated; within
Wetland H Forested 500 Feet of Red Cedar River
Watercourse Likely MDEQ & Township Regulated; defined
1/Red Cedar Perennial bed, banks, and evidence of continuance of
River water/flow




August 28, 2018
Hannah Blvd (EYDE Property)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
Page 3 of 6

Wetlands

Wetland A and G are linear multi-classified wetland containing open water,
emergent, and scrub-shrub components observed along the western boundary of
the Site, which extend off-site to the west and south respectively. Herbaceous
vegetation within these wetlands include: reed canary grass (Phalaris
arundinacea), rice-cut grass (Leersia oryzoides), cattails (Typha angustifolia and T.
latifolia), grass-leaved goldenrod (Euthamia graminifolia), dark green bushrush
(Scirpus atrovirens), and sedges (Carex grayii, C. scoparia, and C. vulpinoidea,).
Woody vines include riverbank grape (Vitis riparia) and poison-ivy (Toxicodendron
radicans); and shrub species include: common buckthorn, and dogwoods (Cornus
amomum and C. racemosa). Overhanging trees observed within Wetlands A & G
include silver maple (Acer saccharinum), white swamp oak (Quercus bicolor), elm,
and cottonwood. The species range in wetland indicator status from obligate
(OBL) to facultative (FAC), indicating species that typically occur in wetlands.
Wetland hydrology indicators observed include: standing water (~18 inches),
saturation, water-stained leaves, water marks, geomorphic position, and FAC
Neutral Test. These wetlands appear to receive hydrology from precipitation,
runoff from adjacent developed areas, and roadways, resulting in seasonally
saturated to seasonally inundated water regimes. Refer to the enclosed Wetland
Sketch.

Wetlands D, E, F, and H are primarily forested wetlands. Herbaceous vegetation
within these wetlands include: false nettle (Boehmeria cylindrica), reed canary
grass, white grass (Leersia virginica), fowl manna grass (Glyceria striata), water-
pepper (Persicaria hydropiper), and sedges (Carex grayii, C. scoparia, and C.
vulpinoidea,). Woody vines include riverbank grape and poison-ivy; and a few
shrub species include: common buckthorn, and dogwoods. Eurasian honeysuckles
were observed along the margins of most of these wetlands. Trees observed
within Wetlands D, E, F, and H include silver maple, box-elder, white swamp oak,
elm, and cottonwood. The species range in wetland indicator status from obligate
(OBL) to facultative (FAC), indicating species that typically occur in wetlands.
Wetland hydrology indicators observed include: saturation, water-stained leaves,
water marks, geomorphic position, and FAC Neutral Test. These wetlands appear
to receive hydrology from precipitation, runoff from adjacent developed areas,
and roadways, resulting in seasonally saturated to seasonally inundated water
regimes. Refer to the enclosed Wetland Sketch

Wetlands B and C are multi-classified wetlands containing, emergent, forested,
and scrub-shrub components. Wetland B is a floodplain wetland associated with
the Red Cedar River, extending off-site to the north and east. Wetland Cis a large
wetland system associated with Herron’s Creek, extending south and west off-site.
Herbaceous vegetation within these wetlands include: rice-cut grass, white grass,
reed canary grass, moneywort (Lysimachia nummularia), bulrush (Bolboschoenus
fluviatilis), sensitive fern (Onoclea sensibilis), and sedges (Carex grayii, C.
intumescens, C. scoparia, C. stipata, and C. vulpinoidea). Shrub vegetation include
dogwoods, elderberry (Sambucus canadensis), and common buckthorn. Trees



August 28, 2018
Hannah Blvd (EYDE Property)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
Page 4 of 6

observe include silver maple, white swamp oak, elm, and cottonwood. Wetland C
also contains the following species: leafy satin grass (Muhlenbergia mexicana),
lady fern (Athyrium filix-femina), tamarack (Larix laricina), Louisiana iris (Iris
xvinicolor), and sedges (C. lacustris and C. stricta).

The species range in wetland indicator status from obligate (OBL) to facultative
(FAC), indicating species that typically occur in wetlands. Wetland hydrology
indicators observed include saturation, water-stained leaves, water marks,
geomorphic position, and FAC Neutral Test. These wetlands appear to receive
hydrology from precipitation, runoff from adjacent developed areas, roadways,
and overflow from adjacent watercourses/wetland areas, resulting in seasonally
saturated to seasonally inundated water regimes. Refer to the enclosed Wetland
Sketch for the approximate location.

Regulations
Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams, states that a feature is considered a regulated

watercourse by the MDEQ if it possesses a defined bed, bank, and evidence of
continued flow or a continued occurrence of water. Additionally, Part 301 states
that if a pond with a surface area larger than five (5) acres should be considered
regulated. Based on the site visit, one (1) regulated watercourse (Red Cedar River)
is located along the northern periphery of the Site. No ponds were observed on-
site.

Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the NREPA states that if a wetland is five acres
in size or larger and/or connected to or located within 500 feet of a river, stream,
lake, or pond, it is considered regulated by the MDEQ. Marx Wetlands, LLC has
the professional opinion that five (5) wetlands (Wetlands A, B, C, G, and H) are
likely regulated by the MDEQ, because they appear to be within 500 feet and/or
connected to a regulating feature (i.e., Red Cedar River or Herron’s Creek).
Wetlands D, E, and F are not likely regulated by the MDEQ because they appear
less than 5 acres in size and isolated (i.e., not connected to or located within 500
feet of a regulating feature). Therefore, Marx Wetlands LLC has the professional
opinion that Wetlands A, B, C, G, and H do appear to meet the requirements of
Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the NREPA.

In addition, Meridian Township (Township) has its own wetland protection
ordinance. The township’s Wetland Protection ordinance (Chapter 22, Article 1V)
states that wetlands are protected if they are:

» contiguous to any inland lake stream, river, or pond.

> Partially or entirely within 500 feet of the ordinary high-water mark of any
inland lake, stream, river or pond.



August 28, 2018
Hannah Blvd (EYDE Property)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
Page 5 of 6

» Two or more areas of wetland separated only by barriers, such as dikes, roads,
berms or other similar features, if any of those wetlands are contiguous to an
inland lake, stream, river or pond.

> larger than two acres, even if not contiguous to an inland lake, stream, river
or pond.

» not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or pond, if the state
department of environmental quality determines the protection of the wetland is
essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the state from pollution,
impairment or destruction.

> wetlands, equal to or greater than one-quarter acre and equal to or less than
two acres in size, which are not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or
pond and are determined to be essential to the preservation of the natural
resources of the Township as provided in township code § 22-156. Code § 22-156
provides that a wetland is essential to the preservation of the township’s natural
resources if it fulfills any of ten criteria.

The Red Cedar River is located along the northern boundary of the Site. Based
upon proximity to this stream, Wetlands A, B, and H are likely MDEQ and Township
regulated. In addition, Wetlands C and G extend south off-site and presumably
connect and appear to be part of a wetland system larger than 5 acres in size, thus
Wetlands C and G are also likely MDEQ and Township regulated.

Wetland E is at least one-quarter acre in size. By meeting at least one of ten
Township criteria, this wetland may be found essential to the preservation of the
natural resources of the Township as provided in township code § 22-156.
Therefore, this feature is likely regulated by the Township.

Wetlands D and F are both non-contiguous to, and evidently not directly
connected to a lake, stream, river, or pond. Furthermore, these wetlands each
appear less than one-quarter acre in total size. It is Marx Wetlands’ professional
opinion that Wetlands D and F do not fall under MDEQ or Township jurisdiction.

Therefore, it is the professional opinion of Marx Wetlands LLC that six (6) wetlands
(Wetlands A, B, C, E, G, and H) may be protected under the Meridian Township’s
Chapter 22 Environment, Article IV Wetland Protection, if it is determined that the
protection of these wetland areas is important for the preservation of the local
natural resources (Meridian Township- Code 1974, § 105-3; Ord. No. 2002-02, 3-
19-2002; Ord. No. 2003-11, 7-6-2003; Ord. No. 2011-04, 3-15-2011).

A permit or approval is likely required by the Meridian Township for any proposed
work (e.g., filling, dredging, construction, and draining and/or other development)
that takes place within the boundaries of a regulated wetland. Most construction
activities that take place outside of these boundaries do not require a wetland



August 28, 2018
Hannah Blvd (EYDE Property)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
Page 6 of 6

permit from the MDEQ or Meridian Township. Please note that the MDEQ and
Township have the final authority on the extent of regulated wetlands, lakes, and
streams in the State of Michigan and Meridian Township, respectively.

Please be advised the information provided in this report is a professional opinion.
The ultimate decision on wetland boundary locations and jurisdiction thereof rests
with the MDEQ or Township and, in some cases, the Federal government.
Therefore, there may be adjustments to boundaries based upon review of a
regulatory agency. An agency determination can vary, depending on various
factors including, but not limited to, experience of the agency representative
making the determination and the season of the year. In addition, the physical
characteristics of the site can change with time, depending on the weather,
vegetation patterns, drainage, activities on adjacent parcels, or other events. Any
of these factors can change the nature / extent of wetlands on the site.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this wetland determination. If you have
any questions, please contact me at your convenience.

Sincerely,

|
PV

Marx Wetlands LLC

Bryana J. Guevara, PWS 2949
ISA Certified Arborist MI-4204A
Environmental Consultant

Enclosures: 1) Photographic Log 2) Wetland Sketch



'911S 3Y3 IN0YSN0JY] PaAISSCO Seale PaIsaJo) SNoNpIdap paxiw pueldn Jo MaIA (¢ "91IS 9Y3 Inoy8noJy3 pansasqo syjed pamow Suilsixe Jo MaIA (€

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplIain
AaA1g yeuueH
uolleaul|ag ¥g uolleuIwIaIRQg pueI9M



*311S 91 4O puUNOISHIeQ BYI Ul PAAISSGO JIAIY Jepa) pay -Adepunog uayrou 9US 3y
9y3 Suo|e PaAIaSGO PUB|IDM PIISAI04 B ‘g PUBJIDM JO MIIA Sulde)-yuouy (8 40 Asepunog u1a1sam ay3 Suoje PaAISSCO ‘PUB|IDM JUSSISW UE ‘Y PUBIDM JO MIA (£

*311S Y1 40 uoI1od [BJIUSI BY3 Ul PAAISSUO Seale pjaly pjo puejdn Jo M3IA (9 *91S Y3 JO uoILIod [BJIUSD BYY JO MIIA JaYIoUY (S

501 JIHdVYD010Hd

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplIain
AaA1g yeuueH
uolleaul|ag ¥g uolleuIwIaIRQg pueI9M



"9MS 9Y3 Jo uoiod [esuad
9Y3 Ul PAAISSCO PUB|IdM qNIYS-gnIdS € ‘4 PUB|IDAN JO M3IIA Sudej-yuou y (2T

. : ey

*31IS 9Y3 40 uoipiod |esjuad ayy Ul _umimm.go
pue|1am gnuys-gnuos pue pajsaloy} e ‘g PUejIdM JO MIIA Suidey-yuou y (0T

"uoijod UJ3ISE3YIIOU B} Ul PAAISSUO ‘PUB|IDM POISDJ04 B ‘ PUB[IDM JO MAIA  (TT

‘

& £

*31IS Ay} .96 Atepunoq
pue|1aM JUSIW pue PaISaI04 B

‘.

J PUBIDM JO MIIA

501 JIHdVYD010Hd

(

6

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplIain
AaA1g yeuueH
uolleaul|ag ¥g uolleuIwIaIRQg pueI9M



*311S Y1 Jo BN
Adepunog uJayiou ay) Suoje paAIaSgo JaAY JBPaD) PaY JO MIIA Sudes-1samy (9T 3y3 Jo Alepunogq uiayiiou ay3 SUoje PaAIISAO JAAIY Jepa) PaY JO MIIA Supdeyises uy (ST

o

oo TSR gl ks T

n T3 t ; e ] 2 : 2 :
"91IS 9Y3 JO uoJod UJI3ISaIM BY} Ul PaAISSqo EXN

pUBJIaM P31S3.04 PUE gNIYS-GNnJds Jeaul| e ‘H PUe|Id JO MIIA Sudej-yuou y (4T 3Y1 JO Alepunog UJSISIM dY3 Ul PIAISSCO ‘PUB|IIM JUSSISWS UE ‘D PUB[IDM JO MIIA  (ET

501 JIHdVYD010Hd

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplIain
AaA1g yeuueH
uolleaul|ag ¥g uolleuIwIaIRQg pueI9M



=
=
=
(3]
it

BB S E A B -

J...L o

|

o




December 10, 2018
Project No. 1817787

Mr. Peter Menser

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864-1198

Re: Wetland Boundary Verification — WDV 18-15
Hannah Boulevard Property, Okemos, Ingham County, Michigan

Dear Peter:

On December 5, 2018, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH) staff conducted a field investigation and
verified wetland boundaries on approximately 30 acres of Parcel Number 33-02-02-20-401-005 (the Site). The
Site contains vacant property in Section 20 of Meridian Township (Township) (Town 4 North, Range 1 West). The
Red Cedar River is located along the Site’s northern boundary and a county drain (the Hannah Farm Drain) is
located along its western boundary. The Hannah Farm Drain is under the jurisdiction of the Ingham County Drain
Commissioner.

Wetlands were delineated with pink survey ribbon by Marx Wetlands LLC (Marx), as described in its August 28,
2018, report entitled Wetland Determination & Delineation Report: Hannah Boulevard, Section 20, Meridian
Township, Ingham County, Michigan (Report). Wetland boundary flags were surveyed and placed on base maps
by the EYDE Company (EYDE). These maps were submitted to the Township and did not contain a scale.

Site Investigation

FTCH staff met Ms. Bryana Guevara of Marx at the site on December 5th and inspected the flagged wetland
boundaries for eight wetlands. FTCH made minor changes to the wetland boundaries by eliminating and moving
flags as follows:

Wetland A: Moved Flags A18, A19, and A20 west, closer to the Hannah Farm Drain.
Wetland F: Deleted Flag F6; Flag F5 connects to F7. Deleted Flag F9; Flag 1 connects to F8.
Wetlands B, C, D, E, G, and H: No changes.

We recommend EYDE update its base maps to reflect these changes.

Regulatory Review

The regulatory review was based upon the Report, Google Earth aerial photographs, and site observations.
Section 22-116 of the Township’s Wetland Protection Ordinance defines “protected wetlands” as any of the
following:

(1) Wetlands, regardless of size, which are contiguous (i.e. within 500 feet of) to any inland lake, stream, river, or
pond, whether partially or entirely within the project site.

(2) Wetlands which are larger than two acres, whether partially or entirely contained within a lot, and which are
not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river, or pond.

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | constructors


http://www.ecode360.com/28776385#28776385
http://www.ecode360.com/28776387#28776387

Mr. Peter Menser — Wetland Verification — WDV 18-15
Page 2
December 10, 2018

frceh

(3) Wetlands, equal to or greater than one-quarter acre and equal to or less than two acres in size, which are not
contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river, or pond and are determined to be essential to the preservation of
the natural resources of the Township as provided in Section 22-156 of the Township’s Wetland Ordinance.

Table 1 summarizes the regulatory status of the Site’s delineated wetlands.

Table 1 - Summary of Wetland Regulatory Status
Wetland Verification WDV 18-15
Hannah Boulevard Property, Meridian Township

Size (on Subject | Corresponding Regulated by
Property) Meridian the State of |Regulated by
Wetland Wetland Type (acres) Wetland Michigan? Meridian?
A Emergent/Scrub-shrub, contiguous to the 20-9 Yes Yes
Hannah Farm Drain and Red Cedar River
B Emergent/Scrub-shrub/Forested, contiguous 2.21 20-4 Yes Yes
to the Red Cedar River
C Emergent/Scrub-shrub/Forested >5 20-18 Yes Yes
D Forested, contiguous to the Hannah Farm 0.21 20-10 Yes Yes
Drain
E Forested 0.30 20-12 No Yes, if
determined
to be
essential
F Forested 0.04 20-11 No No
G Emergent/Scrub-shrub, contiguous to the 20-9 Yes Yes
Hannah Farm Drain
H Forested, contiguous to the Hannah Farm 0.38 None Yes Yes
Drain

Because EYDE base maps containing the surveyed wetland boundaries did not contain a scale, FTCH estimated

the distance from the Wetland E and F boundaries to the Red Cedar River and Hannah Farm Drain using Google
Earth aerial photographs. These distances appear to exceed 600 feet. An essentiality determination is required

to determine if Wetland E is regulated by the Township, because Wetland E is greater than 0.25 acre in size.

A Wetland Use Permit is required from the Township for any of the following activities within wetlands
regulated by the Township:

e Placing fill or permitting the placement of fill.

e Dredging, removing, or permitting the removal of soil or minerals.
e Constructing, operating, or maintaining any use or development.
e Draining surface water.

In addition, the Township requires that all structures and grading activities during site development shall be set
back 40 feet from delineated wetland boundaries and a natural vegetation strip shall be maintained within 20 feet
of the wetland boundaries. Wetland mitigation will be required for wetland impacts, creating new wetland at a
ratio of 1:1.5.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181778\WORK\CORR\WETLAND VERIFICATION LETTER.DOCX



Mr. Peter Menser — Wetland Verification — WDV 18-15
Page 3
December 10, 2018

If you have any questions regarding this letter or any other wetland-related issues, please contact me at
616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

pmb

By email
cc: Mr. Mark Kieselbach — Charter Township of Meridian

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181778\WORK\CORR\WETLAND VERIFICATION LETTER.DOCX


mailto:ehtripp@ftch.com

To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Date: March 12,2020
Re: Special Use Permit #20021 (Andev Group, LLC), construct building greater

than 25,000 square feet in size on 10.73 acres of a 58 acre undeveloped
parcel identified as Parcel I.D. #20-401-005 located at the east end of Hannah
Boulevard.

Andev Group, LLC has submitted a special use permit (SUP #20011) proposal to construct a 230
unit senior living community at the east end of Hannah Boulevard. The proposal includes the
construction of a new 267,543 square foot senior living community building with 230 dwelling
units. Overall, 268,263 total square feet of building area is proposed, consisting of the senior living
community building and a 720 square foot garage. The project is proposed to be constructed in
two phases, with 111,105 square feet consisting of 109 assisted living and memory care units in
Phase 1 and 156,438 square feet consisting of 121 independent living units in Phase 2.

The construction of any building or group of buildings with a combined gross floor area greater than
25,000 square feet requires a special use permit due to the significant impact such development may
have upon adjacent property owners, neighborhoods, and public infrastructure. The Code of
Ordinances requires the special use permit to ensure that public utilities, roads, and other
infrastructure systems are or will be adequate to support the proposed development.

The SUP for building size is being processed concurrently with the SUP for the senior living
community development. The staff report for SUP #20011 should be referenced for a more
complete overview of the project.

Staff Analysis

The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances should be
used when evaluating the proposed special use permit. The Planning Commission makes a
recommendation on the special use permit request and the Township Board has final approval.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
proposed special use permit. A resolution will be provided at a future meeting.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2020\SUP 20021 (Andev_blgs. greater than 25,000 sq.
ft)\SUP 20021.pc1.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



OWNS )

T H | PaYa
@

To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner

Date: March 13,2020

Re: Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho), rezone approximately 4.67 acres located at 5654
Okemos Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family-Low
Density).

Young Ho Cho has requested the rezoning of approximately 4.67 acres located at 5654 Okemos
Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family-Low Density). The site is located on the
east side of Okemos Road, south of Haslett Road, and north of Raby Road. The property has 280
feet of frontage on Okemos Road.

LOCATION MAP
TYVP- smgle] famllil
Fire KEBS remdentnal’
Station
Haslett Rd
Mobil | ‘
Service multi-tenant
Station comm?raal bldg.
office single-family
bldg. | Red Cedar residential
Surgery Center
=
(==
72]
£
;inglle-fal‘nily —%
idential ;
residentia =
— LRaby_'Rd
singleTfamily
residential
N /

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject property in the R2
Residential 0.5 - 3.5 dwelling units per acre (du/a) category.



Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 2
2017 FUTURE LAND USE MAP
— | HE B 5 §§ oo "
\' SI
|
EL
19|
0
ol o]
Haslett Rd |
TIITTIT
' o B o
: Q§
= = &
v o M
: Vg
K
;ANINE
Raby Rd T
]
e
Commercial ||
N Institutional
MR-Residential 5.0-14.0 du/a
R2-Residential 0.5-3.5 du/a >
Zoning

The subject site is zoned RR (Rural Residential). With 280 feet of lot width on Okemos Road and
4.67 acres (203,425.2 square feet) in lot area, the site meets the minimum standards for both lot area
and lot width for both the current RR and proposed RAA zoning districts. The following table
illustrates the minimum lot width and lot area requirements for the existing RR and proposed RAA
zoning districts:

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

MINIMUM MINIMUM

ZONING DISTRICT LOT AREA LOT WIDTH
RR 40,000 sq. ft. 200 ft.
RAA 13,500 sq. ft. 90 ft.

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 3

ZONING MAP
RAAA/PRD _RAAA| HE B §{ Em%
Rei w”H;
1_,=£‘
i L
Haslett Rd
L
RXI | C:1
PO '
) il |
RR RAA]Z RR
=
2
|o
Raby Rd T

}N\ RAA RR

Physical Features

The site contains a 2,513 square foot, two-story single family house built in 1875. The topography
of the site slopes from 854 feet above mean sea level where the existing house is located to a high
point of 861 feet above mean sea level near the eastern edge of the site. The Flood Insurance Rate
Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates the property is not located in a floodplain. The site
has no special designation on the Township Greenspace Plan.

Wetlands
The Township Wetland Map shows a potential wetland on the site. If development is proposed a
wetland delineation report will be required to determine the boundary, size, and regulatory status of

any wetlands. Future development of the site will be required to comply with the wetland
protection ordinance and water features setbacks as applicable.

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 4

WETLANDS MAP

58 84 Egmﬁgm\z%b

o 921 /

lle D
.e_ _r,——l"

Bois
—20Is.

L .

Haslett Rd

(
1

Okemos Rd

i

Raby Rd

<
|::] Wetlands ;>
L~

Streets & Traffic

The site fronts on Okemos Road, which in the segment adjacent to the subject site, is a two-lane
road classified as a Minor Arterial on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning
ordinance. A seven foot wide pedestrian and bicycle pathway is located along the Okemos Road
property frontage. The most recent (2017) traffic count information from the Ingham County
Road Department (ICRD) for Okemos Road, between Haslett Road and Raby Road, showed a total
0f 10,679 vehicles in a 24 hour period.

The following table compares estimated traffic generation for the existing RR zoning district and
proposed RAA zoning district. It estimates future traffic using data from the highest potential traffic
generator allowed in each zoning district, which in this case is one single family house. Traffic
generation was calculated using the estimated maximum number of dwelling units that could be
developed on the property under the existing RR and proposed RAA zoning districts.

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. idi i

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 5
Existing RR zoning Proposed RAA zoning Chanee
1 single family dwelling 3 single family dwellings &
Peak Hour trips 0.74 (am.) 2.22 (am.) +1.48
0.99 (p.m.) 297 (p.m.) +1.98
Weekday trips 9.44 28.32 +18.88

A rezoning traffic study is required when the trips from the highest potential traffic generator in
the requested zoning district would generate more than 100 additional directional trips during a
peak hour than the highest potential traffic generator permitted under the current zoning. In this
case, the rezoning does not generate greater than 100 peak hour trips so a traffic study was not
required.

Utilities

Municipal water and sanitary sewer serve the subject site. The location and capacity of utilities for
any proposed development will be reviewed in detail by the Department of Public Works and
Engineering at the time of a development submittal.

Staff Analysis

The applicant has requested the rezoning of an approximate 4.67 acre parcel from RR to RAA.
When evaluating a rezoning request, the Planning Commission should consider all uses permitted by
right and by special use permit in the current and proposed zoning districts, as well as the reasons
for rezoning listed on page two of the rezoning application (attached).

One option for development of the site would be through the land division process. The RR zoning
district requires parcels to have at least 200 feet of lot frontage; therefore the property, with 280
feet of frontage on Okemos Road, could not be divided into additional parcels without receiving a
variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). If rezoned to RAA the property could likely be
divided into three parcels with 90 feet of lot frontage each.

The subject property is Lot 61 of the Pleasant Acres subdivision, which when platted in 1946
contained 79 lots. There is potential to re-plat the subject property to facilitate the division of land
to create lots in a different configuration than metes and bounds parcels with frontage on Okemos
Road. Approval from the Township and the Ingham County Road Department would be required
to construct a public road (cul-de-sac) to serve additional parcels.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20010 (Ho Cho)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 6

The following chart outlines the differences in lot area, lot width, and building setbacks between the
RR and RAA zoning districts.

RR RAA
Side/Rear Setback: 20 feet/35 feet 10 feet/30-40 feet
Lot Area: 40,000 square feet 13,500 square feet
Lot Width: 200 feet 90 feet
Maximum Lot Coverage: 20 percent 30 percent
Building Height: 35 feet 35 feet

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request to rezone from RR to
RAA. Aresolution will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Rezoning application and attachments dated February 7, 2020 and received by the Township on
February 7, 2020.
2. Rezoning criteria.

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864
PHONE: (517)853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

REZONING APPLICATION

Part I, Il and III of this application must be completed. Failure to complete any portion of this form may result
in the denial of your request.

Partl

A. Owner/Applicant B/ﬁ 47 // /740 C / =
Address of applicant T L5056 ﬁ 2 oKemos L
Telephone: &,WWﬁrk X b, 9’[/} vl///l%Home

Fax Email _ )ﬁWAZ/? oYW gl n{ /{ - 0477"7
If there are multiple owners, list names and addresses of each and indicate ownershlp interest. AttAch additional sheets if
necessary. If the applicant is not the current owner of the subject property, the applicant must provide a copy of a
purchase agreement or instrument indicating the owner is aware of and in agreement with the requested action.

B. Applicant’s Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request:
Name / Contact Person
Address
Telephone: Work Home

Fax Email

£ Site address/location 5 & 54" D){/\Q/””W E//

Legal description (Attach additional sheets if necessary)
Parcel number Site acreage Al S

D. Current zoning g IQ Requested zoning ( /ﬁ/i

E. The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

1. Nonrefundable fee.
2: Evidence of fee or other ownership of the subject property.

3. A rezoning traffic study prepared by a qualified traffic engineer based on the most current edition of
the handbook entitled Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan
Communities, published by the State Department of Transportation, is required for the following
requests:

a. Rezonings when the proposed district would permit uses that could generate more than 100
additional directional trips during the peak hour than the principal uses permitted under the
current zoning,

b. Rezonings having direct access to a principal or minor arterial street, unless the uses in the
proposed zoning district would generate fewer peak hour trips than uses in the existing

zoning district.
(Information pertaining to the contents of the rezoning traffic study will be available in the Department
of Community Planning and Development.)

4, Other information deemed necessary to evaluate the application as specified by the Director of
Community Planning and Development.

|

Page 1

| B2



PartIl

REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST

Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof. Explain your position on the lines
below, and attach supporting information to this form.

A. Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1) There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically: ,/(/@

2) The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects: Aﬁ_

3) The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

4) The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting
the Zoning Ordinance, specifically: N

5) The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at the
time it was adopted; and the zoning has exem}ted the following legitimate uses from the area:

6) The current zoning restrictions on the use o/f(?;xe property do not further the health safety or
general welfare of the public, explain: o

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate:
1) Requested rezoning is >S(an éstent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:
2) Requested rezoning is compatlblﬂefwnh other/‘ilstmg and, oposed uses surrounding the site,
. . <~ ‘
specifically: ot lend ﬂ”l‘/r cel d ,19/4)&7 /ZW()

3) Requested rezoning would not re /\/t (51 51gn1f1cant adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain:

4) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water and
sewer systems, education, , recreation or other public services,
explain: Ao

5) Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically: .

Kez0in £~ /{),« /7“ A<y 'ﬁ ”’Gﬁm/fagfe FZM’?’/@
O Fﬁ/]
6) Requested rezomng results in logical and orderly development,in the TOWI]Shlp, explain:
e «»f ;f’/ L0, h shme  yedyht 2A ULl

7) Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and

therefore more eff1c1entKe pendiure of Townshlp funds for public improvements and services,
Part Il xplains G #2T 7 = (r@kﬂ?}%@a}

/‘/vuée)

Page 2



I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of
gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

[E/Yes [] No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to tife best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

22/ fo 2/ 7/27>©

Signature oLt/Applicant Date

Noung fPo CfF©

Type/Print Name/

Fee: $7£{0 p QQ Received by/Date: M_Q\%I;?\-?
[V

Page 3




Part I

REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST

Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof. Explain your position on the lines
below, and attach supporting information to this form.

A Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1)

There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically:

2) The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects:

3) The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

4) The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting
the Zoning Ordinance, specifically:

5) The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at
the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the
area:

6) The current zoning restrictions on the use of the property do not further the health safety or
general welfare of the public, explain:

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate:

1) Requested rezoning is consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

2) Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site,
specifically:

3) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain:

4) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water
and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services,
explain:

5) Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically:

6) Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain:

7) Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and

therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services,
explain:

Page 2



OWNS )

T H | PaYa
@

To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner

Date: March 13,2020

Re: Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission), rezone approximately 0.10 acre
located at 5937 Potter Street from C-1 (Commercial) to RN (Mixed
Residential).

At its meeting on February 10, 2020 the Planning Commission initiated the rezoning of
approximately 0.10 acre located at 5937 Potter Street from C-1 (Commercial) to RN (Mixed
Residential). The site is located on the west side of Potter Street and south of Lake Lansing Road.
The property is one-half of Lot 5 of the Village of Nemoka subdivision, which was platted in 1883.
The site has 33 feet of frontage on Potter Street.

LOCATION MAP

Lake Lansing Park South

Lake Lansing Rd

Lakeside

developed

Blue Gill Mayfair
Grill Bar

Mixed Residential

1S Jonod

Mixed Residential

Edson St

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject property in the R3
Residential 1.25 - 3.5 dwelling units per acre (du/a) category.



Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)

Page 2
2017 FUTURE LAND USE MAP
Lake Lansing Rd
a | \ﬁ’
g - =
7] ®
o ) .
Sl )
-t
Commercial
N MR-Residential 5.0-14.0 du/a
I parks
R3-Residential 1.25-3.5du/a |
—
Zoning

The subject site is zoned C-1 (Commercial). With 33 feet of lot width on Potter Street and 0.10 acre
(4,356 square feet) in lot area, the site does not meet the lot area and lot width minimum standards
for either the current C-1 or proposed RN zoning districts. The following table illustrates the
minimum lot width and lot area requirements for the existing C-1 and proposed RN zoning districts:

MINIMUM MINIMUM
ZONING DISTRICT LOT AREA LOT WIDTH
C-1 4,000 sq. ft. 50 ft.
RN 8,000 sq. ft. 65 ft.

The RN zoning district permits a mixture of single family and multiple family residential dwellings
within the area commonly known as the Village of Nemoka, which is generally described as the
area bounded on the north by Lake Lansing Road, on the west by Marsh Road, on the east by Lake
Lansing, and on the south by Haslett Road. The RN district allows single family and duplex
development by right and multiple family buildings at a maximum density of 14 units per acre by
special use permit. Single family detached structures in the RN district must comply with the

dimensional requirements for RB district (Single Family-High Density) construction contained in
Section 86-374(d).

S— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 3

ZONING MAP
CR
Lake Lansing Rd
C-1
r o]
& g
=
2 B
= (2
23]
RN
N

Physical Features

The site contains an 816 square foot, two-story single family house built in 1921. The house on the
site is in disrepair and will likely be demolished by the new owner. The Township Wetland Map
and the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicate neither wetlands nor
floodplain are present on the site. The site has no special designation on the Township Greenspace
Plan.

Streets & Traffic

The site fronts on Potter Street, which is a two-lane road classified as a Local Street on the Street
Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. A four foot wide sidewalk is located
along the property’s Potter Street frontage, however sidewalks are not consistently present
throughout the Village of Nemoka subdivision. The Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) does
not have traffic count information for Potter Street.

\/ A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 4

A rezoning traffic study is required when the trips from the highest potential traffic generator in
the requested zoning district would generate more than 100 additional directional trips during a
peak hour than the highest potential traffic generator permitted under the current zoning. In this
case, the proposed rezoning does not generate greater than 100 peak hour trips so a traffic study
was not required.

Utilities
Municipal water and sanitary sewer serve the subject site.
Staff Analysis

The Planning Commission has initiated the rezoning of an approximate 0.10 acre parcel from C-1 to
RN. When evaluating a rezoning, the Planning Commission should consider all uses permitted by
right and by special use permit in the current and proposed zoning districts.

In 2007 the Planning Commission initiated the rezoning of five parcels (REZ #07100) in the area
around the subject site from C-1 to RN. At the time the owner of the subject site objected to the
rezoning. When the Township Board approved the rezoning the subject site was excluded while the
other properties were rezoned to RN.

Single family detached structures in the RN district must comply with the dimensional
requirements for RB district construction. RB zoning standards include a minimum lot area
requirement of 8,000 square feet and a minimum lot width requirement of 65 feet. With 4,356
square feet of lot area and 33 feet of lot width the subject site does not meet the minimum lot area
and lot width standards for RN/RB single family residential parcels. Variances from the minimum
dimensional standards would be required from the Zoning Board of Appeals to construct a new
single family house if the existing house is demolished.

The subject site was split in the past and therefore has lost lot of record status. A lot of record is a
parcel created prior to 1960 which has retained its current configuration since creation. The
zoning ordinance provides measures of relief for variance requirements for lots of record. As the
subject site has been split, those measures of relief are not applicable. Additionally, Section 86-
368(b)(1)(e) of the zoning ordinance requires single family dwellings to be a minimum of 20 feet
in width. The required seven foot side yard setback in the RN/RB zoning district could not be met
from both side lot lines if the property owner constructed a 20 foot wide house, therefore a
variance from the side yard setback would be required from the Zoning Board of Appeals if a new
house is proposed.

The current zoning of C-1 poses nonconforming status on the residential use of the property,
making variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals necessary to make improvements to the
existing single family house. However, because the lot is dimensionally nonconforming variances
from the Zoning Board of Appeals would still be required to make improvements to the property if
rezoned to RN.

\/ A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Rezoning #20030 (Planning Commission)
Planning Commission (March 16, 2020)
Page 5

Uses permitted in the RB zoning district include single family dwellings and related home
occupations. The home occupation ordinance (Section 86-368(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances)
allows home offices for professional services, personal service establishments, and offices of
professionals licensed by the state to treat human patients. Home occupations cannot utilize more
than 500 square feet of a dwelling and can only be used on an appointment basis.

The C-1 commercial district is intended to provide day-to-day retail and personal services to
persons living in adjacent residential areas with a minimum impact upon surrounding residential
development. The following commercial uses are allowed in C-1 zoning:

Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises
Retail merchandise establishments

Restaurants and cafes

Financial institutions

Offices

The following chart outlines the differences in lot area, lot width, and building setbacks between the
C-1 and RN zoning districts.

C-1 RN (RB for single family)
Side/Rear Setback: 15 feet 15 feet/30-40 feet
Setback when adjacent to | 50 feet (35 feet with N/A
Residential district: landscape screening)
Lot Area: 4,000 square feet 8,000 square feet
Lot Width: 50 feet 65 feet
Maximgm Lot Coverage/ 70 percent 35 percent
Impervious Surface:
Building Height: 35 feet 35 feet

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request. A resolution will be
provided at a future meeting.

Attachment
1. Rezoning criteria.

\/ A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Part I

REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST

Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof. Explain your position on the lines
below, and attach supporting information to this form.

A Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1)

There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically:

2) The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects:

3) The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

4) The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting
the Zoning Ordinance, specifically:

5) The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at
the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the
area:

6) The current zoning restrictions on the use of the property do not further the health safety or
general welfare of the public, explain:

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate:

1) Requested rezoning is consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

2) Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site,
specifically:

3) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain:

4) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water
and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services,
explain:

5) Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically:

6) Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain:

7) Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and

therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services,
explain:

Page 2



	March 16 2020 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda
	February 24 2020 Planning Commission Minutes - DRAFT
	SUP 20011.pc1 with attachments
	SUP 20011 application 2-10-20
	Plan Commission Supplemental Info 022620
	Site Plan revised  3-10-20
	E-96034-Sheet 1 02-28-20
	E-96034-Sheet 2 02-28-20
	E-96034-Sheet 3 02-28-20
	E-96034-Sheet 6 02-28-20
	E-96034-SUP Sheet 4_02-11-20
	E-96034-SUP Sheet 5_02-11-20

	SUP 20011 building elevations & floor plans 2-11-20
	Sheets
	A2.1 - FIRST FLOOR OVERALL
	A2.2 - SECOND FLOOR OVERALL
	A2.3 - THIRD FLOOR OVERALL
	A2.4 - FOURTH FLOOR OVERALL
	A3.0 - ELEVATIONS
	A3.1 - ELEVATIONS
	A3.2 - RENDERINGS
	A9.0 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE DETAILS


	Conceptual Landscape plan 3-10-20
	SUP 20011 trip generation letter 2-3-20
	SUP 20011 natural features assessment 1-25-16
	Submitted Wetland Report_8-28-2018
	WDV 18-15 Township consultant verification letter

	SUP 20021.pc1
	REZ 20010.pc1 with attachments
	REZ 20010.pc1
	REZ 20010 application
	REZONING criteria

	REZ 20030.pc1 with attachments
	REZ 20030.pc1
	REZONING criteria



<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /All

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice





